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Producing iron ore
pellets for 35 years
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Ferrexpo’s vision is to
be a sustainable iron

ore producer through
the commodity cycle.

This has resulted in a reputation
for reliable production while
maintaining prudent financial
management.

For up-to-date information
please visit www.ferrexpo.com
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Highlights
A Snapshot of 2012

6.6

US cents per share

spectal dividend as recognition of
the progress made since IPO and
in particular of the opening of the
Yernistovo mine
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Ferrexpo increased production from own ore during
2012, and maintained a level of profitability which
reflected lower market prices and industry cost
inflation, and a continued competitive position on
the global cost curve for iron ore.

Sales and Marketing
Average benchmark China CFR 62% Fe fines price 23% lower at
US$H128 per tonne (2011 US$168 per tonne)

—  Sales volumes 8 7 millon tonnes of pellets (2011 & 8 million tonnes
of peliets)

- Lower prices partially mitigated through reduced freight rates to
seaborne market

Operations

— 93 milion tonnes of pellet production from FPM (2011 91 milion tonnes)

—  PFirst ore at FYM, 01 milion tonnes of pellet production 2011 nil)

— 1 cash cost' of US$59 6 per tonne (2011 US$50 7 per tonne)

— C1 cash cost reflacted a stable exchange rate between Ukranian Hryvnia
and US Dollar as well as tigher energy pnces and local inflation

Growth Projects

— Growth projects progressed as planned

- First ore achieved at FYM in July 2012, commercial production expected
in 2013

~  Signdicant capital Investment of US$429 milion (2011 USS380 million)

Performance

Yearended  Year ondled
US$ mdbions unless otherwise statad 311212 31121 %
Pellets produced from own ore {thousand tonnes) 9,409 9,063 4%
Total pellet production (thousand tonnes) 9,690 9,811 (1%)
Sales volumes (thousand tonnes) 9,675 9,876 {2%)
EBITDA? 402 801 {50%)
Profit before tax 262 691 (62%)
Diluted EPS (US cents per shars) 38.57 96 97 (62%)
Capital mvestment 429 380 13%
Net debt 423 80
Cash and cash equivalents 597 890 {33%)

1 TheC1 cash cost of production per tonne 1S defingd &s the cash costs of prodduction of won pallets from own dvided by
production volume of own ore and excludes non cash costs such as dePreciation. PEN3:0n Cosls and Mvaniory movements
costs of purchased ore concanirate and production cost of gravel

2 EBITDA - the Group calculates EBITDA as profit from contywrng operations before tax and finance plus depreciation and
amoriisabion and non recumng excaphienal dems ncludad in cther ncome and olber expenses and the net of gains and losses
om dsposal of nvestments property, plant and equpment
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Ferrexpo at a Glance
Scalable Assets

Long-life Ferrexpo’s ore body IS a single 50 kilometre-long stnke
Resource divided into 10 adjacent deposits. The southem five

mines have JORC classified of 6.8bt and the northem
five 13.2bt FSU Soviet Classified.
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Yeristovskoye
First ore at Yenistovo
reached in 2H 2012,
commercial production
axpected In 2H 213
Once in full production,
mine to deliver 28mtpa
of ore
FYM pnt as of May 2011
Poltava
The FPM open pit mine 1s over 350
metres deep and seven kilometres
fong In 2012 it mined 29,761 thousand
tonnes of ore
FPM pit as of June 2011
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3 5bt

4 Obt

Brovarskoye

Production
Deavelopment
Licence Maintenance

Gdantsev Succession
quartzite scrist filite
schist units

Saksagan Succession
BIF urits

Basement
amphilobite
granite, migmiatite




High Quality
Processing

Ore from mine

Open cut, hard rock ron
ore minNg, using
truck and shovel

Avarage Fes contant
of 30%

Gnnding
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Ferrexpo produces two types of pellets,
62% Fe and 65% Fe.

Pnmary crushing Medium fine Dry magnetic
crushing separation
Rock
Ore
The ora 15 crushed and screened to allow 1t to ba upgradad Cry magnetc saparation The waste rock
through separaton by two crushing plants Input particle size separates waste matenal 1S sold on for use
0-1200mm cutput paricle size 0-20mm from the iron rasuiting as thickeners
in output particles and gravel
of 0-20mm with a
Fe content of 40%
Wet magnetic Flotation tanks
separation

The ora 1s ground to producs fine particles of 0=0 44mm in size

Pelletising

Four kiin grate units
which heat and form
the matenals into
pellots of around
16rmm Temperatura
of pelletising kin
1,250°C

The fing ora particles are
collected to produce 63%
Fa concentrate, half of
which goes to the
palistiser 1o produce 62%
Fe ron ors poflats

Approximataly 50% of the
concentrate s upgraded to
67% Fa content used to
create 65% Fe iron ora
pelliets with unwanted
waste matenal removed to
the talings storage area

Customers

Transportation

Ferrexpo transports its finished products by rad to border dispatch

points From the borger points the means of transportation
nclude rall, barges and capesiza vessels
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Ferrexpo at a Glance
Distribution and Markets

Sophisticated
Logistics
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Ferrexpo transports its finished products by rail to border
dispatch points, predomunantly using ts own rail cars.
From the border points, means of transportation include

barges and rail to customers in Eastern and Central

Europe and capesize vessels for seabome cargo

v

Ferraxpo owns just

under 2,000 rail cars
which transports a high
proporbon of its pellets to
border dispatch pomnts

v

In 2012, 17 capesize ships
were loaded, allowing the
Group to benefit from lower
freight rates as compared
to panamax vessels

N2

In 2012, Ferrexpo
shipped approximately
1 4mt of pellets to
customers in Europe via
its 143 strong bargefleet
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Close Proximity Ferrexpo sells its product to the key steel producing
to End Markets regions in the world.

End Markets

o Tragkbonal

B Growih

®Natural

Developing the Customer Base Since 2008

+ Entered new markets in Japan and Germany
¢ Captured significant market share of pellet demand
from China's leading steel mill

Reducing Freight Costs

* Panamabxes to Far East being phased out

* 17 capes loaded in 2012; more than 30 expected
to be loaded In 2013

¢ Iron Destiny transshipment vessel to reduce top-off  Traditional Markets These markets are located
costs and reduce time taken to load within Central and Eastem Furope and mnclude steel
cape vessel (Increasing port efficiency) plants that were designed to use our pellets

Growth Markets Ferrexpo has the potental to deliver new
and significant sales volumes to these markets in Asia.

Natural Markets These markets include Turkey, the Middle
East and Westem Europe and are located where we have
a competitive advantage over more distant producers
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Ferrexpo at a Glance
A Sustainable Producer Through the Cycle

Significant Investment

Ferrexpo has reinvested its profits
to modemise and develop FPM’s
mine and production facilities and
to develop the FYM deposit as well
as its logistics capabilities. These
investments should yield operating
efficiencies and ncreased output
while greater logistics infrastructure
provide a more competitive level

of service to customers.

us$429m

capital investment in 2012

Fasrexpo fransshiprnent vessel, lron Destny,
armvad in port in Decambar 2012
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17

capesloaded
in 2012




Output and Grade to Steadily Increase

A Caterpillar excavator
at work In tha FYM pit
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S

ore at Yeristovo
n 2012

07




Ferrexpo plc
Annual Repart & Accounts 2012

Business Model

A sustainable high quality iron ore
producer through the cycle
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Iron Ore Producer Value Chain

Development

Ferrexpo Key Strengths

Large Brownfield Resource

Farrexpo's sigrificant resource base 1s
situated along a single ore body, which allows
for efficient expansion through brownfield
developments The FPM mina has consistent
geology and allows for a long-fe producton
profile The development of the FYM mine fully
utiises known and existing technology and
infrastructure, as well as the Group's skill base
As of 1 January 2013, Ferrexpo had estmated
resources of approximataly 6 8 billion tonnes
classified according to the JORC Code and
afurther 13 2 billon tonnes of resources
estimated under the FSU Classificabon




Mining

Processing

Logistics
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Marketing

Low Cost Pellet Producer

On a cost of production basis,
Ferrexpo 1s a competitive cost
producer of iron ore concentrate
with relatively low pellstising costs
on global basis The cornerstone
of the cost reduction strategy 1s
to maximise produchon cutputs
and continually implement
efficiency enhancements
through the Business
Improvernent Programme

High Quairty Output

Ferrexpo produces ron ore
pelets, which are a premium
nput used 10 the steet Ndustry
Ferrexpo's product mproves
blast fumace productmty in the
steel production process due to
its form, substance and low level
of mpunties Approximately half
of the Group’s products contan
65% Iron content, which the
rnarket considers to be premium
content, and thus commands a
prermum to the benchmark pnce

Integrated Logistics

An integrated and well-invested
logistics systemn s an essential
and a key competitive advantage
for a bulk commodity producer
Ferrexpo transports its finished
products by rail to border
dispatch points, predominantty
using its own rall cars From

the border paints, means of
transportation include barges
and rall to customers n Eastem
and Central Europe and capesize
vessels, through its 49% owned
port, for ssabome cargo

Customer Relationships

Ferrexpo remains committed

to long-term framework
agreements with custorners that
are focused on producing high
value added steel products It
has supplied many of its existing
customers for a number of
decades The Group Is focused
on suppiying a geographicalty
dversified customer base and
allocates a proportion of sales
to potential new customers
through tnal spot cargoes
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Chairman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

“In acknowledgement of the progress made since
the IPO, as well as the significant milestone of
reaching first ore at FYM, the Directors are pleased
to announce a special dividend of 6.6 US cents
per share. As in previous years, the Directors
are recommending an unchanged final ordinary
dividend of 3.3 US cents per share.”
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Lett to nght

Kostyantin Zhevago,
Chlef Executive Officer,
Michael Abrahams,
CBE DL, Chairman

Introduction

In the last five years, since its IPO,
Ferrexpo has made significant progress
In achieving its strategic objectives

In the face of general cost inflation prevalent in
the mining industry, the Group has mantained
its position as a competitve cost producer

of peflets and in 2012 it lowered its seabome
freight costs delvenng more product via
capesize vessels both enhancing margins
and allowing Ferrexpo to provide a better
servica to first class steel mills around the
world with its hugh quality ron ore product

The Group has continusd to develop its
asset base through the modernisation of

the existing mine and processing facilities

at Ferrexpo Poltava Mining {'FPM’), and In
2012 by opening its second mine, Femexpo
Yenstovo Mining ( FYM'), the first new iron
ore mine in the CIS for many years Once
mining operatiens at FYM have rampead up,
Ferrexpo will have two mines in full operation
prowviding asscciated cost benefits through
hrgher output and remains on track to ncrease
production in 2013 and to reach s target of
12 milion tonnes of pellet production in 2014

As a result of the above factors, Ferrexgpo
has reduced its operational and financial nsk
and enhanced its reputation as a premium
supplier of pellets with excellent qualty and
service In the financial markets, Ferrexpo

1s Increasingly recegnised for its sound
management and good governance

Results

Group revenue declined by 20% to USE1 4
bilion for the 12 months ended 31 December
2012 (2011 US$1 8 bilkon) due to lower
market pnces for ron ore In 2012, the average
benchmark price for 62% Fe iron cre fines

to China CFR fell by 24% to US$128 per

tonne compared to an average of US$168

per tonnein 2011 Group sales volumes

were in ine with 2011 at 8 7 millon tonnes

The Group's averags C1 cash cost' of
production increased by 18% to US$60 per
tonne, compared to the average C1 cash
cost in 2011 of US$51 per tonne This was
due to Increased electncity tanffs and gas
prices as well as iocal inflation while the
Ukraimian Hryvnia remained stable aganst
the US Dollar Since October 2008 when
C1 costs reached US$51, overall cost
inflation has amounited to 4% per year

1 The Gi cash cost of peoduction par tonne s defined as the
cash costs of produchon of ron peliats frorm own ora o the
muine gata tdndiad by peoduction volume of own ore and
exchides Non-cash costs such as depracation pension
costs and mveniony moverments costa ol purchased ore
concentrale and production Cost of gravel
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Ferrexpo maintaned satisfactory levels of
profitabiity reflecting lower market prnices
and industry cost inflaton while retaning
its competitive position on the global

cost curva for ron ore EBITDA for the
penod was US$402 milion (2011 US$801
milion) Group profit after tax geclned to
US$216 milion (2011 US$575 milon)

Net cash flows from operating activities were
US$119 millon for the penod (2011 US$503
milion) reflecting higher working capital
requirements following a US$130 million
increase in VAT recenables outstanding in
Ukraine dunng the year The gross Ukramian
VAT recevable balance as at 31 December
2012 was US$302 million, a US$20 milion
discount has bean recorded to reflect the
time value of money for VAT due to the
expectation that a portion of VAT will be
recoverad after mora than one year

During the year the Group spent US$429

midlion (2011 US$380 million) on capital

investment in s existng and new mines

as well as on logistics infrastructure, which

was the highest level of annual capital i
irvestment at Ferrexpo on record ‘

Al the penod end, Ferrexpo had net debt
of US$423 mifion (2011 US$B0 million)

Dividend

Ordinary Dividend

As 1s consistent with the Group's dividend
policy since ksting, of paying a modest
sustanable dvidend commensurate with

tha growth profile of the business through

tha economic cycle, the Board of Directors
recommend a final dmdend in respect of
profits generated for the Group in 2012 of

3 3US cents per Ordinary Share (2011 final
dradend 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share) for
payrment on 31 May 2013 to shareholders on
the register at the close of business on 3 May
2013 The dividend will be paid In UK Pounds I
Sterling with an election to receve US Dollars

Special Dividend

The Group has invested significartly over

the past five years and has mantained its

dmadend since IPO at 6 6 US cents per

share split equally between intenm and final

payments The Group 1S contnuing to invest

N its operations and the Directors beleva i 15

appropriate at the current time to maintain the

ordinary dradend at its current kevel until furthar

milestones are achieved In recognition of the

openng of the Yenstovo mine which lowers |
the operational nsk profile of the business and
given Fermexpo’s strong balance sheet the
Directors are pleased to announce a special

Ly
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Chairman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s Statement continued

Demand for iron ore pellets has been steadily
increasing due to declining availability of high

quality lump iron ore.

dmdend of & 6 US cents per share, amounting
to approximately US$39 million, for payment
on 28 March 2013 to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 22 March
2013 This dmdend will be paid In UK Pounds
Sterling with an election to receive US Dollars

Market Environment

in 2012, according to the World Steel
Association, globat crude steel production
grew 1% to 1 6 bilion tornes while the
average capacty utlisation of steel milis
declned to 79% from 81% in 201t China,
the prncipal dnver of the iron ore market in
recent years, ncreased its steel production
by 3% to 717 milion tonnes and accounted
for 46% of global steel producton

CRU estimates that in 2012 the giobal
consumption of iron ore ncreased 1% while
production was margnally below 2011 levels
The ndustry move 1o a generally accepted
benchmark pncing mechanism based on
spot pnees ensured that the market remained
largsly In balance, atthough ron ore pneing
was volatile, moving from US$140 per tonne
at the begnning of 2012 to a thres year low
of US$B7 per tonne before finishing the

year around the US$145 per tonne level

Production of ron ore remans highly
concentrated with the top four producers
accounting for over 70% of seabome

iron ore production in 2012 Historcally,
thera have been challenges in dsveloping
greenfield ron ore projects including access
to affordable financing, a lack of equipment,
skills shortages, prohibitive logistcs costs
and local permitting and geopolitcal
restnctions Bank of Amenca Mermill Lynch
estmates that as much as 2680 million tonnes
of iron ore capacrty was etther delayed

or cancelted dunng 2012 as the above
chalenges mpacted project economics

With regards to ron ora pellets, demand has
been steadily ncreasing due to dechning
avallabiity of high guality lump ron ore

and growing ervironmental pressura

12

on sinter plant emissions CRU estimates that
demand for pellets will show a compound
annual growth rate of 5% from 2012 to 2017
compared to total ron ore consumption of
4% per annum for the same penod CRU
expects the premium for pellets over sinter
fines to remain at around US$30 per tonne
for this penod although this could fluctuate
according to the level of steel demand

Marketing and Logistics

Ferrexpo's marketing strategy 1 to supply
the world's leading steel producers, whe
are focused on producing high quality
steel for premium applcations

Ferrexpo ams to supply a gecgraphically
diversified customer portfoke under long-
term framework agreements indeed it
has been servicing some of its custorners
for decades secunng reliabls off-take
volumes The Group enjoys a balanced
sales portfolio with approximately half of
sales derved from Central and Eastern
Europs while the remamder ongnates
from Western Europe, Turkey and Asia

A critically mportant logistics focus of the
Company 15 to secure rehable and compettive
shipping to customers in Asia compared

to the major pellet producers from Brazil
Ukramne's central locaton allows Fermexpo

to ship at increasingly competitive rates

to the major ron ore pellst markets The
Group has a 49% stake in the TIS-Ruda port
terminal at Yuzhny on the Black Sea with a
capactty of over S mifion tonnes per annum
In 2012, the Group invested in upgrading 1is
loading and shipping capabilties to allow

for the routine use of capesize vessels

As a result, Ferrexpo loaded 17 capesize
vessels compared o nine in 2011 and it
intends to further ncrease this method of
shipment n 2013 by loading over 30 capesize
vessels In December 2012, Ferrexpo’s
transshipment vessel, iron Destiny, was put
in operation which should allow the Group
to further reduce intemational freight costs

An integrated and wellnvested logistics
system 1s an essential and a key competitive
advantage for a butk commodity producer
In addition to the Group's port facilities, as
at 31 December 2012 Ferrexpo owned just
under 2,000 ral cars enabling it to transport
a fugh proportion of its pallets to border points
with its own fieet, reducing its relance on
state rall cars and lowenng transportation
costs Femexpo also has in place alarge
barging fleet operating on the Danube and
Rhine mvers further securing reliable access
to customers in Central and Eastern Eurcpe

Resource Base

Ferrexpo holds the licences to the largest ron
ore resource base in Eurcpe This resource
base 1s stuated along a single ore body
containing 10 adjacent deposits, which allows
the Group to efficiently expand producton
through brownfield developments The
deposits exploted by the subsidiary FPM have
consistent geclogy and a long-life producton
profie The opening and development of

the Yenstovskoye deposit in 2012 through

the subsidiary FYM fully utiises known

and existing technology and infrastructure,

as weall as the Group's current skills

As of 1 January 2013, Ferrexpo had
estmated proved and probable reserves of
15 bilon tonnes classified according to the
JORC Code These reserves are Included
In estimated resources of approximately

6 B bilkon tonnes classified according o
the JORC Code Ferrexpo has further
estimated rasources of over 13 2 billion
tonnes classified under the methodology
used in the Former Sovet Union

Production

In 2012, FPM produced 9,409 thousand
tonnes of pellets from own ore, a 4% increase
compared to 8,063 thousand tonnes of
pelets produced In 2011 This ncludes

108 thousand tonnes of pellets mined from
FYM cre The production of pellets from
purchased third party concentrate was lower
due to recuced avadability of concentrate




Health and Safety Highlights
* No fatalties in two years

¢ Regular safety audits
* LTIFR continuing to fall

Caterpular 7830 truck at FYM

on the local market at pnces able to generate
positive margins, as such tota! production
declined by 1% to 9,690 thousand tonnes
compared with 9,811 thousand tonnes in
2011 The average peltet iron content from
own ore was 63 3% in 2012 in Ine with 2011

Importantly, FPM continued throughout the

year with the modernisation programme of its
existng mining and processing faciities whilst
maintaining consistent and reliable production

The current level of production from own

ore represents full mining capacity of
approximatety 30 mifion tonnes per year
{30% average won content) Once processed
into Iron ore pellets with an average content
of 63 3%, this franslates into 9,301 thousand
tonnes of peltsts The Group Intends to
increase its annualised pellet producticn
from own ore 1o 12 0 million tonnas n

2014 To accomplish this, it wilt continue

to develop the FYM mine, where first ore
was reached in the second half of 2012

Health and Safety

In accordance with the Group's policy of
continuousty Improving safety standards,
Ferrexpo 1s pleased to report that there have
been no fatalities at its rmines N well over two
years and that the lost-time inury frequency

Ferrexpo plc
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rate (LTIFR) at FPM continued to fall to 0 74
per milhon man hours worked (2011 082)
FYM, the Group’s new operating mine,
expenenced no lost-time injuries dunng the
year which was a major accomplishment
Overall, the Group’s total LTIFR in 2012

was 0 66 compared to 077 1n 201

The management of Ferrexpo fosters and
continually develops a citure of safety in
the organisation, inking safety performance
to remuneration The Group has regular
safety audits by DuPont and Is determined
to continue to follow international best
practice as well as to set the standard for
mining comparias operating in the CIS

Costs

FPM 1s a cost competitive producer on the
global ron ore concentrate cost curve on both
a FOB and CFR China basis Furthermore, its
cost of converting its ron ore concentrate iInto
pellet form pesibons it as a profitable producer
on the glebal pelletising market through the
commodities cycle Crucially, this combination
of low cost concentrate production and pellst
conversion has enabled i to sustain positive
aperating cash flows every quarter since 2008

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the
C1 cash cost of producton of pellets from
own ore was US$80 per tonne compared
to US$51 per tonne in 2011 Inline with the
industry, the increase In costs was drven
by higher energy pnces and local mflation

Justover half of C1 cash costs are
denominated tn Ukrainian Hrywmia The
Hryvrua has remained largety stable since
2009 at UAHS to the US Dollar Pnor to
the devaluation of the Hryvnia at the end
of 2008, when 1t depreciated from UAHS
to UAHB to the US Dollar, production
costs peaked at US$51 per tonne In
this context, since 2008 production
costs have iIncreased by a compound
annual growth rate of 4% per annum

Ferraxpo offsets cost increases by increasing
output and producing at maximum capacity
to ensure full absorption of the fixed cost
base Improved energy efficencies are also
achieved through the Business improvernent
Programme ('BIP') which ams to reduce

the C1 cost of producton by 1% to 2% per
annum on a constant output basis The

BIP programme has resulted in an overall
reducton in the C1 cost of US$7 per tonne
or US$64 million since its nception in 2006
Looking forward, it s anticipated that the
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Chaiman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s Statement continued

Ferrexpo has maintained
strict financial discipline
over many years.

CSR Highlights

mingtg and processing of FYM ore will have
a positve impact on tha Group's overall
production cost through lower mining costs
and the addition of higher grade ore

Capntal Investments

Ferrexpo aims to finance capital Investment
out of operating cash flows and, excluding
the increase in the Group's VAT recenvable,
has broadly dene soin 2012 and the

five year penod since 2007 As such, the
pace of investment inevitably depends

on the market pnce for ron ore Group
pelicy is to ensure that the balance sheet
does not become over leveraged and

that Ferrexpo has a sustainable funding
position despite iron ore pnce fluctuations

The Group s part way through a US$650
million investment programme to Increase the
quality and quantity of its pellet output The
successful implementation of this programme
will enable Ferrexpo to increase cutput at

FPM by approximately one third to 12 milkon
tonnes of pellet per annum in 2014 {from
current production levels of 9 4 milion tonnes
of pellet per annum) and to further ncrease the
qualty of the Group's pellet output to 65% ron
content (currently average pellet ron content
1563 3%) 1n 2015 The increase to 12mitpa of
pellet output 1s expected to be inially acheved

* Significant investor in local community inthiatives
+ 23% of the local working population are employed by the Group
* Unemployment in the town of Komsomolsk ts significantly below

the national average

1T lesson at school in Komsomaolsk
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utihsing crude ore from FYM These prosects
are progressing on time and to budget

The next phase cof nvestment concems the
constructon of a 10mtpa concentrator at FYM
to process the remamning crude ore that it can
mene annually (total annual mining capacity is
expected to be 28 millon tonnes) In October
2012, the Board of Directors approved
US$30 million to begin this development in
2013 which, subject to market conditions,

1s targeted to begin concentrate production
In 2018 and to ramp up to full producton

by the end of 2017 Thus, following further
capital expenditure, Ferrexpo expects to
produce approxmately 12 millon tornes

of pellets per annum with 85% iron conterit
and 8 to 10 milion tonnes of concentrate

per annum with up to 67% iron content,
doubling output from 2012 production levels

The Group will continue 1o evaluate, and
if appropnate, invest n NPV accretive
opporturvties, both within the Comparny
and externally, that de-nsk and diversify
its operations

Financial Management

Ferrexpo has mantaned stnet financial
discipling over many years Key aspects of
the Group's approach nclude funding capital
expenditures out of operating cash flows
and where appropnate debt, mantaining
robust hquidity and retaining cormpetitve
credit metncs and cost of financing

Ferrexpo's financial position reflects this
strategy, as evidenced by the strong batance
sheet, low gearng and EBITDA to debt ratios
and competitve cost of financing Net geanng?
was 21% as of 31 December 2012 {compared
to 6% as of 31 Decermnber 2011} and net debt
to EBITDA was 105x as of 31 December 2012
{compared to 0 1x as of 31 Decemnber 2011)
The Group's average cost of debtin 2012

was 5 24% a 1% improvement cormpared

to 2011 at 6 23% As of 31 December

2012, the Group had net debt of US$423
million which included cash of US$597

milion In 2013, Ferrexpo has minmal detst
rapayments of approximately US$19 million

1 Netgeanng & calculated as net financal Ndentadness over
net financal ndebtedness plus shareholder § aquity




Ferrexpo will continue with its strategy of developing its

significant resource base, improving the quality of its

pellets, and further advancing its logistics infrastructure

to enhance its service to first class steel customers
around the world with its premium iron ore product.

VAT

Ukraine 18 a young demecracy which

has been subject to vanous changes in
govemment over the past 20 years Asis
common with developing econcmies there
15 a nsk that the country may develop ina
manner that 1s adverse to gereral business
practice Thess operating rsks are commionly
faced by all mning companies In emerging
markets, and the Board believes Ferrexpo
has the expertise to manage themn

As of 31 December 2012, Ferrexpo was
owed US$302 mulion of VAT by the Ukrainian
govermnment, the majonty of which s
significantly overdue This amount has been
discounted by US$20 millon to US$282
million in order to reflect the cost of financing
those VAT balances that are expected to be
recoverad mare than one year after the penod
inwhich they arose As part of the procedure
adopted in Ukraing, it1s common for VAT
clams to be challenged by the government In
the court systern A significant portion of the
VAT outstanding is currently being challenged
In this way, although the Directors believe that
the fult amounts will eventually be recovered

The late repayment of VAT s, in the view

of the Directors, a result of the Ukrairian
govermnment's current weak fiscal position
The Directors believe that there is a nsk that
continued fiscal weakness could further
preciude the prompt repayment of VAT for
some tme This would lead to fugher levels
of working capital and increase ths nisk of
afinancial loss when repayment occurs
which would depend on the eventual type
of repayment and the prevaiking exchange
rate if repayment was made in local currency
Ferraxpo continues to have a constructive
dialogue with the Ukraiman authonties
regarding the repayrment of overdue VAT

CSR

In 1960 the town of Komsomolsk was
estabiished adjacent to the Poltava mina

to support the mining and processing
operations Ferrexpo remains the largest
employer in the town, which has a population
of approximately 55,000 people, of which
approximataly 23% of the workung population
are employed by the Group Ferrexpo has
been a significant investor i local commurity
initiatves from the outset, investing funds

in the social iInfrastructurs of Kemsomolsk
and the surrounding area These funds

have been spent on medical facilities,

social services, education, religion, culture
and sporting actvities, as well as on the
maintenance of certan of the aity's social and
cultural structures In 2012, Ferrexpo spent
approximately UAH166 million (US$21 milion)
{2011 UAH102 milion or US$12 milkon)

on community projects Due to Ferrexpo's
presence as a major iocal employer and

its contnbutions to community inhiatives,
unempioyment in Komsomolsk is
sigruficantty below the national average,

and the avarage salary 1s significantly

above the national average

Corporate Governance

The Beard remains dedicated to maintaning
the highest standards of corporate
govemance in the conduct of s busness
throughout the Group, as welt as instiling a
culture of commutment and accountabilty in al
employees Ferrexpo has fully complied, since
its 2007 isting, with the Combined Code on
Corporate Govemnance, and since 2011 with
the UK Corporate Governance Code of 2010

The Board 1s compnsed of eight members

a Non-executive Chasrman, four independent
Non-executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and twe Executive Directors The
Board beleves that this 1s an appropriate
size and structure to manage the

Group successfully
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People

2012 has been a notable year in the history
of Ferrexpo Without the dedication and
commitment of all Ferrexpo employees
this would not have been possible The
Board would very much ke to thank

the management and staff for their
continued hard work which directty
contnbutes to the progress achieved

Strategy and Outlook

Ferrexpo will continue with its strategy of
developing its significant resource base,
improving the guality of its products, and
further advancing its logistics infrastructure

to enhance its senvice to first class steel
customers around the world with its

prermium iron ore pellets It will do so in a cost
competitve manner to ensure It can deliver its
product rehably through the commodity cycle

The Group 1s well placed to iIncrease its
production from 9 4 million tonnes of pellets,
frorm own ore, with an average iron content of
63 3%, to its stated goal of 12 milion tonnes of
pellets per annum N 2014 The Group 1s also
on track to increase the average ron content
of its pellets to 85% 10 2015 As Ferrexpo's
total output of crude ore ramps up following
the opening of the FYM pit, t willbe in a
position to buld further processing facilities
and double production cutput This will be
undertaken in accordance with the Directors’
approach to prudent debt management

and adequate levels of lquidity consistent
with the cyclical nature of the business

Overall, pnaing for the won ore market remans
difficult to pradict while the economic outlook
for Ukraine 1s uncertain In this environment,
Ferrexpo's proven management tearm will
continue to implement its strategy, and the
Directors belteve that the Group will make
further progress dunng the current year
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Strategic Priorities

Delivering the Group’s vision to
be a sustainable iron ore producer
through the commeodity cycle.

16

To develop the Group’s
significant resource base

FYM open pit as
of 31 May 2012

Ferrexpo's significant resource base {the largest in Europe) is situated
along a single ore body, which enables efficient expansion through
brownfield devalopment

What's been achieved i 2012

+ First ore at FYM, the first new iron ore mine in the CIS for many years
* Mine ife expansion at FPM
* Land acquison and feasibility studies underway at FEM

Objectives for 2013

+« Ramp up of FYM ore to commercial production
+ Continuation of mine life extension at FPM
* Development of feasibiity study at FBM

Key performance indicators




To improve the quality
of the Group’s pellets

Ferrexpo sells high
gualty ron ore
pellets to premium
customers

Ferrexpo 15 On track to increase the average quality of its pellets from
63 3% rron content to 65% ron content in 2015 Currently, 65% wron
content pellets account for approxmately half of output

What'’s been achieved in 2012
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Maintain a competitive
cost of production

Ferrexpo 18 well
positioned on the
global cost curve
sustaining profitability
dunng downturns

Ferrexpo believes it 1s a competittve cost producer of ron ore
cancentrate with relatively low pelletising costs on a FOB & CFR basss,
allowing it to be among the most competitive ron ore pellet producers
globally This has allowed Farrexpo to maintan positve operating cash
flows each quarter since 2006

What’s been achieved in 2012

* Modemisation of key gnnding and WMS sections dedicated to the
nigher grade concentrate cireuit

* Construction of flctation capacity to yseld higher grade peflets

» Upgrade of tha baling machines and installed larger capacity
vacuum filters

* Installabon of a new annular cooling nng

Objectives for 2013

+ Since October 2008 whan C1 costs reached US$51, overall cost
inflation has amounted to 4% per yaar

» The BIP has reduced the Ct cash cost by US$S6 9 per tonne
since 2005

Objectives for 2013

+ Complete construction of first of two new flotation sections,
Including five vertirndls

* Installation of new concentrator mixers

+ Evaluation of new gas burners for pellet kins

Key performance indicators

+ (ffset cost inflation through higher production volumes
+ Mantain the current level of the C1 cash cost at constant currency

Key perforrnance indicators
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To expand the Group’s
logistics capabilities

Acntcal focus s to
secure relable and
competiive shipping
to custorners in
Europe and Asta
compared o major
pellet producers
from Brazil

A kay aspect of iong-term sustanable competiive costs with consistent
production and product delivery 1s an integrated and well-nvested
logistics system In this context, Ferrexpo owns almost 2,000 rail cars,
over 140 barges and has a 48 6% ownership In a port terminal on the
Black Sea

What's been achieved in 2012

To open and develop
new markets and customers

Ferrexpo's locaton
n Ukraine allows

it to supply a
geographically
diverse customer
base

Ferrexpo supplies some of the world's leading steel producers, which
are focused on producing hgh quality steet for premium applications
The Group allocates a portion of sales to potential new customers
through trial spot cargoes, and have conducted such tnals with several
significant producers in Asia and Germany ahead of the planned
production growth from FYh

What's been achieved in 2012

¢ Sgnificant reduction in seaborne fraight costs which increased
the Group's net sales pnce

* Amval of Ferrexpo's own transhipment vessel

¢ Further acquisition of rail cars

QObjectives for 2013

* A new long-term contract with a customer in Eurcpe
* Captured significant market share with China's leading steel mill
+ Tnal cargoes to premiurn steel producers In Asia

Objectives for 2013

¢ Transshipment efficiency gans
» | oading of over 30 capestze vessels
* |ncreased producton volums to be shipped to sealbxome markets

Key performance indicators
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+ To convert previous tnal cargoes into long-term contracts

Key performance indicators




To maintain adequate liquidity
and low balance sheet gearing

As at 31 December
2012 Ferrexpo

had cash of
US$597 milion

Ferrexpo’s financial focus 15 on employing stnct financial discipline to
ansure financial stability through the economic cycle

What's been achieved in 2012
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To be a responsible
corporate citizen

In 2012 Ferrexpo
refurbished the
local swimming
in Komsomolsk

Ferrexpo’s comrmitment to corporate soctal responsibility denves from a
strong belef that the Group's icence to operate will be undarpinned by
the Group's CSR performance

What's been achieved in 2012

¢ Further diversified sources of funding with an increase in Export
Credit Agency lending, lowenng the Group average cost of funding
and lengthening debt matunties

Objectives for 2013

* No work related fatalties dunng 2012 or 2011, and the lost time
injury frequency rate continued to improve, reaching the lowest point
in the Group's history

» Total emission levels (NO,, SO,, CO, and dust) declined vs 2011
and were within reguiated mits

* FPM & FYM continued to foster relationships with local communities
e g supply of new equipment to schools, construchion of new
apartments for empioyees, supply of medical equipment to local
and regional hospitals, provision of medicines to pensioners

Objectives for 2013

* Continue to review the Intemational debt capital markets as a
potential scurce of financing subject to market conditons

+ Continue to manage the debt profile of the Company through
lower cost funding and longer dated maturities

Koy performance indicators

* Mantan the trend towards lower emissions (per tonne of
pelets produced) white continuing to develop the mine and
ncrease produchon

+ Continue to support the community through various inatves
aimed at helping children through to pensioners

Kay performance indicators
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Risks

The list of the principal risks and uncertainties facing

the Group’s business that follows below is based on the
Board’s current understanding. Due to the very nature

of risk it cannot be expected to be completely exhaustive,
New risks may emerge and the severity or probability
associated with known risks may change over time.

Risks Relating to the Group’s Operations

Iron Ore Prices and Market

Possible impact Mitigation Associated
Fluctuabons in iron ore prices as well as N demand may negatively - Ferrexpo has a competive cost base which has enabled it to strategic priorty’
impact the financial rasult of the Group procuce at full capacity and remain profitable throughout the

commodites cycla

- The Group has an established broad customer base and logistics
nfrastructure which can serace regonal and seabome markets
This provides flexibiity should a particular region expenence a
declne in demand

Mining Risks and Hazards

Possible impact Mittigation Associated

Miming nsks and hazards may result n matenal rmine or plant ~ Safety, anvironmental and operational performance is regularty strategic prionty"
shutdowns or penods of reduced produchon Such events could and ngorously reviewad throughout the organisation including

damage the Group s operating results and reputation the COO, the Executive Committee and the Board

~  Through its capstal nvestment programma Ferrexpo Is
modernising its menang and production faciities which 15 mproving
safaty emaronmental and operational parformance

- Allacoidents are fully nvestigatad anc lessons are drawn
and mplementsd

- Appropnate safety traming 1s regutarly provided to employees

- Employes remunération 1s inked to safety performance
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Reliance on State Monopolies

Possible impact Mitigation Associated
The Group purchases certan goods and services from state-owned - The factors affectng the Group s future cost structure are strategic pnomty*
enterprisas, and changes in tha related tanfts affact the Group s cost closely managed
base Avalability of servtes can also ba bmited, which could affectthe - Costreduction wibatves ara planned and reported to the Board
Group s ability to produce and deliver pefiets Examples includeraitway - Since inception of BiP in 2006, 1t has reduced the G1 cash cost by
tantfs and avalabiity of rad wagons supply of gas and electricity and US$6 90 per tonne of pellsts
assocated tanffs, and rmening royalies -~ The Group has purchasad s own ral wagons to reduce relance

on state-owned rait cars

- The Group sourced alternative gas supphes in January 2009 when
there wera gas pnce disputes batween Russia and Ukraine
- Ferrexpo actvely looks to invest N areas to reduce refance on

state monopoies
Logistics
Possible impact Mitigation Associated
The Group s logistcs capabiity 18 dependent on services prowdedby - The Group continues {0 invest n its logistics capablites norder 10 gtrategic priority’
third parties and state-owned organisations mainky in relation to ral ensure avalable capacity, better service is customars, lower costs
and port services  Logstical bottlanecks may affect the Group s ability and to reduca rehance on third party providers Beside
to distribute ts products on trme ympachng customer relationships considerable mvastmant In the rail car flaet over recent years

Ferrexpo owns 143 barges oparating on the Danube/Rrine River

comdor It also owns a 48 6% in the port of TIS Ruda which

guarantaes the Group independent access to the seaborne

markets aveiing relance ¢on the state port
Counterparty Risk
Possible mpact Mitigation Assoctated
The Group operates in Ukraine which has a weak country credit - The financial strength of all of the Group s counterparties s subject  strategrc prionty!
profile as definac by ntemational credit rating agencies. Financial to regutar and thorough review The results of thesa renews arg
instabiity of the Group's counterparties, Including ds major customers, used 1o determine appropnate ‘evels of exposures consistent with
supplers Ukraman Government and local financial nstitutions and benefits obtaned in ordar to mitigate tha potantial risk of financlal
banks could lkead to lower sales volumnas delays in projects and loss The Group has not expanenced any financial lossas from
ntarruption of production or financial loss and adversely affect its transactions with its counterparties
future financial rasutts - The Group regularty reviews its suppher base in ordar to avoxd

excessive dapendence on any supplier actively encouraging a

diversity of supply where possible
Licences
Possible impact Mitigation Asgsociated
Sea also ‘Risk relating to the Group's strategy - Govermment - The Group comphes with commitments under its vanous icences strategic priority’
approvals of expanson” n order to ensure that the condibons contanad vathin the Ecences

are fulfiled or, f appropriate wawers are cbtanac
Mining and land allotment icences are cntical to the Groups
operaticns, and there can be no guarantee that they will be
rengwad or that additonal icencas will ba obtaned This could
adversaly affect the Group s operations and s abdty to develop
in the future
Risks Relating to Finance
Exchange Rate Risk
Possible mpact Mitigation Associated
Tha Group recaves the majonty of its ncome in US Dollars whie 8 - Histoncal weakness of tha Ukraimian Hryvria in times of low strategic pnorty'

large proporbon of s costs are denominated in Ukraian Hryvia

An approciabion of the Ukraznian Hryvmia aganst the US Dollar could
have a negatve impact on the profitabikty of the Group

1 Please sse pages 16 and 19 for the KP! assocated with the Strategic Prionties

commaodity pnces has provded a natural hedge dunng downtums
in the commodity cycle All of the Group s revenues and
associated debt are denomenated n US Dollars
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Risks Relating to Finance continued

Interest Rate Risk

Possible impact Mitigation Associated

A portion of the Group's finance faciity 1s inked to US Dollar LIBOR - Tha Group has optmised its debt structure mantainng low strategic priority’
rates Anmncrease n interest rates wall have a negative inpact on the balance sheet geanng As a result, its miterest costs are a low

Group’s financial Gosts thus affecting profitability proparbion of its profitabihity

Financing Risk

Possible mpact Mihgation Associated

Tha Group s daveloprnent projects may be funded using debt secured
with financial guarantees. Thera s a rsk that cancellation of contracts
as aresult of force magsure events and/or lower ron ore pallst pnces
would imit the amount of funding avallable to the Group, and could
prompt lenders of existng finance fachties to requ ra Ferrexpo ©
assgn additonal contracts to meet agraed ratios

The Giroup s financing nsk nas been mitigated by the 1Issue of a
USS500 muion Eurobond and a US$420 midion bank faclity

The avarage debt matunity at 31 Decernber 2012 was thres years.
The Group has mimimal debt repayments of USE19 milion in 213

strateqic priority’

Risks Relating to the Group’s Strategy

Expansion Capital Investment

Possible impact

The Group s growth depends on its ability to upgrade sxsting facitres
and davelop ts Iron ora resourca basa For any major capital project
thera s a nsk of nsufficlant controls, cost averruns, shortage of
required skils and unaxpected techmical problems atfecting tha tme
taken to complete the project and the return on the capita) mvestad

Mitigation

The Group has establshed stnct procedures to control, moritor
and manage this expenditure which 1s regularly reviewed hy the
irvastmant and Executive Committes and the Board

Associlated
strategic prnorty’

Government Approvals of Expansion

Possible impact

The Group does not yst have all the govemnmental approvals recuired
to devetop future deposits Although alt approvals that have been
applied for have been granted, there 1s no guarantes that others willbe
grantad i the future
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Mitigation

Ferrexpo mamtans an cpen and proactve relationship with vanous
govemmental authonhes and ks fully aware of the importance of
comphance with local legssiabon and standards.

The Group montors and reviews is cornmtments under its
vanous mmning hcences in order to ensure that the condrons
containad within the licences are fulfiled or the appropnate wavers
obtaned Ferrexpo maintans stnet compliance with the Ukramian
mining code and exacuton of work in accordance with the propct
design through active engagemant of Ukrainian and mtematonal
legal advisers

Associated
strategic priority®
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Risks Relating to Operations in Ukraine

Political

Possible impact Mitigation

Ukraing 1s a young democracy which has been subject to vanous - Management proactively engages with local regional and central
changes in government over the past 20 years As1s common with government Ferraxpo protects its local and international interests
devaloping aconomeas thera s a nsk that the country may devalopn a by ensunng it operates to the very highast intemational standards

manner thas 1s adverse to general business practice This could mclude and actrvely defends s nghis
aweak udicial systarn that s susceptble © outside influence

Tha Group faces an ongaoing legal claim over a sharshokding in
Femexpo Poltava Mirung The case has been runring for more than six
years in Ukraine and the Directors balieve it stillhas some way to go
Tha Board continues to recee legal advice that the case aganst
Ferrexpo has itle lagal ment under Ukrasnian law for legal technical
and practcal reasons

Associated
strategic prionty'

Ukrainian Producer Price Inflation (‘PPI’)

Possible impact Mitigation Assoctated
As the Group s operations are In Ukraine itis exposed to costinflation - Trie Group's BIP has achieved continuing efficiency improvements  gtratagic priority*
Ukraine has experiencad high levets of inflatan over a number of years and cost reducbions over many years Since ncepton of BIPin
Tre mflabonary ervironment increases kocal costs if not mitgated by 2006, the cash cost of production has reduced by US$6 90 per
a devaluation of tha Ukrainian currency and operaticnal efficency tonne of pellets The Group also has a consistent track record
wnprovernants of preducing at fuli capacity to achieve maximum overhead
absorphon and s set to expand production output In 2013
Ukrainian VAT Receivable {See Note 26 in the Accounts)
Possible impact Mitigation Agsociated
As the bulk of the Group's output s exported 1t does not collect ~ The Group mantans an open dialogue with the Govemment and strategic prniority'
substantial amounts of VAT on sales twhich could otharwise ba offsat operatas to best ntermatonal standards ensunng the vahdity of
aganst VAT mcurred on purchases of goods and services for the VAT repayments
operatng and nvestment actvties) The Ukramian government refunds
the cutstanding balance of VAT although not abwvays on a tmety bass
Tha tata repayment of VAT results in ncreased working capital, which
must be funded from operating cash flows and debt Ukrainian VAT
balances are exposad to a nsk of davaluaton of the UAH Tha country
of Ukraine as the debtor of the VAT balances has a rating of B {S&F)
As of 31 December 2012, Ferexpo was owed USS302 milion of VAT
by the Ukrainian government, the majeaty of which s significantly
overdue This amount has been discounted by USS20 miflion to
US$282 rillon in order to reflect the cost of financing those VAT
balances that are expected to be recovered more than one year after
the pencd n which they arose As part of the procedurs adopted n
Ukraing, 1t 18 common for VAT damms to be challenged by the
governmant (0 the ¢ourt systam A significant pertion of the VAT
outstanckng is currently being challenged in this way, although the
Dwectors bebeve that the full amounts will eventually be recovered
Ukrainian Taxes (See Note 36 in the Accounts)
Possible Impact Mitigation Associated
The Group 15 exposed to changes inlocal tax laws especially n —  The Group takes regular athaca on tax matters from Ukraine tax .
Ukraine Ukrammsan tax laws are compiax and subject to vanng exparts and comphies with all known requirements The Group strategic priority
interpretations, and nconsistant enforcement by local, regional and mantans a transparent and open relabonstup with local, regonal
national authores Tax authonties can chalenge the Group's and national tax authorties
merpretation and treatment of these laws rasulbing in ncreased
tax iabities owed by the Group

1 Please seq pages 16 and 18 ior the KPl assocmted with the Strategic Priontes
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Reserves and Resources

Ferrexpo’s resource base consists of a magnetite
ore of average 30% iron content, which is
particularly well suited for pelletising. The ore
body is a single 50 kilometre-long strike divided
into 10 adjacent deposits.

The Group 1s currently exploting the

first two deposits through the subsidiary
Ferrexpo Poltava Mining (FPM’) in July
2012, Ferrexpo reached first ore at the FSU classified resources, management
thurd depost with its subsidiary Ferrexpo beleves the Group holds the ticences to
Yenstovo Mining {FYM?), and first commercial  the largestiron ore deposit in Europe!
production of ore from this mine 15 expected
i 2013 The Group 1s nvesting In the
development of the fourth depesit through
Ferrexpc Belanovo Mining ('FBM')

classified according to the former Sowiet Urion
method of classdfication (FSU classification)
Based on a combination of the JORC and

Tha tables below set cut our estimates
of Iron ore reserves and measured,
indicated and inferred mineral resources
as at 1 January 2013 The reserves and
resources estimates are preserted in
accordance with the JORC Code

In total, as of 1 January 2033, Ferrexpo

had estmated resources of approximatety

6 B billlon tonnes classified according to the
Australasian Joint Ore Reserves Committee
(JORC" code, and further estmatect
resources of over 13 2 bilhon tonnes

Five further deposits are estimated to
contain resources of over 13 2 billion tonnes
according to the FSU (‘Former Soviet

1 Excluding European Russia wes! of 1he Ural mountang

Table 1: JORC Reserve Statements as at 1 January 2013

Reserves
Proved Fa grade Fe Probable Fa grada Fa
Dapost {mifion tennas) (totaly (magnette)  (milon tonnes) (tota} (magnetie)
Gonshne-Plavnnskoye' 207 26 17 496 30 22
Lavnkovskoye' 39 32 22 97 32 24
Yenstovskoye® - - - 631 34 26
Total 245 - - 1,224 - -

1 Theraserves estimates for the GPL deposits are those estmated in the report by RHDHV (Former Turgss UK Censulting (Pty) Ltd } dated 29 May 2009 less the volume of ors mined from GPL deposits

n 2009 2010 2011 and 2012

2 Theresarves estimales for ihe Yenstovskoye deposits are based on a report by SRK Cansuthng (UK) Lid (SRK) dated 15 June 2007 lass the volume of ore mined frem 1he Yensiovskoye depos:td

n 2012

JORC Resource Statements as at 1 January 2013

Resources

Measuract Fograda Fe Indicated Fegrada Fo nferred Fegrade Fe
Dopost {mifion tonnas) fiota) {magnetial  imiion tomnes) {tota) {magnette)  (mSon tonnes) ftota) fragnetis)
Gonshne-Plavninskoye' 285 31 21 1,044 3t 23 1,275 31 23
Lavrikovskoye' 100 28 20 682 31 23 174 29 20
Yengtovskoye? 267 34 27 560 32 26 364 30 23
Belanovskoye? 336 31 24 1,149 3t 23 217 30 21
Galeschinskaoye? - - - 268 55 - 58 55 -~
Total 988 - - 3,713 - - 2,088 - -

1 Theresource estmates for tha GPL deposits werp calculatad based on a review conducted by SRK i March 2008 less the volume of ore mined from GPL deposits n 2008 (27 8 milion tonnes)
2000{28 & milion tonnes) 201028 & mibon tornes) 2011 (29 6 mikon tonnes) and 2012 (29 8 miion tonnes)
2 Therasource asimates are based on a report by SRK Consulting (UK) Lid {SRK?) dated 15 June 2007 less tha volume of ore mined from the Yarnstovskoye deposit n 2012

{114 miSon tonnes
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Union') classification code Ferrexpo 15
cumently working together with intemationat
consultants to convert these resources to
the universally accepted JORC standards
These deposits are colectvely known

as the ‘Northern Deposits’ and are
classified under the names Manuilovskoye,
Vasievskoye, Kharchenkovskoye,
Zarudenskoye and Brovarkovskoys

Ferrexpo mines and develops its reserves
under the well-established laws and codes
governing mining in Ukraine The State Service
for Geclogy and Use of Natural Resources of
Ukraine has granted Ferrexpo development
kcences for the Gonshne-Plavninskoye,
Lavrikovskoye, Yenstovskoye, Belanovskoye

FPM Highlights

and Galeschinskoye deposits The Groupis
currently extending the exploration kcences for
the remaining Northern Deposits In general,

a development licence 1s granted for a penod
of 20 years and an explorabon licence 1s
granted for 10 years Renewal 1s deemed
automatic, subject to adherence of shpulated
requirements in terms of development of

the deposit and community obligations

Production

In 2012, Ferrexpo was the largest exporter of
pellets n the CIS and one of the top 10 pellet
producers in the globat seaborne iron org
market Production continued at full capacity
and a record guantity of ron units were
produced and shipped in the form of peliets

* [ncrease in production from own ore of 2.6%
« Ontrack to increase volume to 12mtpa in 2014
* On track to increase average pellet qualrty to 65% Fe n 2015

FPM pdd as at Juty 2011
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Review of Operations Ferrexpo Poltava
Mining ('FPM’)

FPM consists of a mine, concentrating and
pellet processing faciites that exploit the
Gonshne-Plavrinskoye and Lavnkovskoye
('GPL) deposits As of 1 January 2013, the
GPL deposits had iron ore resources of 36
bilion tonnes, of which approximately 839
million tonnes were proved and probable
reserves with an average ron content of 30%
under the JORC Code The mine s adjacent
to ral and port faciities on the Dnieper River
and 15 six klometres long and over 350
metres deep FPM operates a traditional
shovel and truck open pit mining operation
extracting approximately 30mtpa of crude
ore This mine has operated successfully

for aver 40 years without any significant
disruptions or delays n production

At FPM's production facilities, the crude ore

15 ground and crushed to remove rock and
concentrated, thereafter, 1tis formed into balls
and fired to produce won ore pellsts which
have a current average iron content of 63 3%
FPM's production faciities have technical
capacity to produce 12mtpa of pellets
QOutput, however, Is currently Iimited to 10mtpa
dus to the amount of crude ore avallable

from the FPM pit and certain bottlenecksin
concentrating and pelletising, which are being
upgraded and modernised as part of the
sustaning capital expenditure programme

For the year ended 31 December 2012, FPM
increased the amount of iron ore mined to
29,761 thousand tonnes compared to 29,637
thousand tonnes in 2011 9,301 thousand
tonnes of pellets from own ore were produced,
of which 4,118 thousand tonnes had circa 65%
ron content and 5,183 thousand tonnes had
circa 62% Iron content FPM also produced
108 thousand tonnes of pellets from FYM

ore and 281 thousand tonnes of pellets

fromn purchased third party concentrate

FPM plans to mine up to 30 milkon tonnes

of ore per year from the pit equating to an
estimated mine Ife in excess of 25 years
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25 years

mine life

30 million tonnes

of crude ore mined per annum
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Increasing the Quantity
and Quality of the
Group’s Pellets

“FPM is on track to increase
production output from own ore
by c. 30% to 12mtpa in 2014 and
to increase the average quality of
its pellets from 63.3% Fe to 65.0%
Fein 2015.”

Viktor Lotous
Chisf Operating Officer of Ferexpo Poltava M ning

“These projects are brownfield in nature as while FPM
increases its future production capabilites it must do so without
affecting current production levels and most importantty
without compromising safety FPM places great emphasis
on continual improvements tn work place safety The graph
below demonstrates the iImproverments it has made ™
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Table 2 Production Statistics

Gnanga

(000t unless ctherwise stated) 2012 2011 + %
Iron ore mined 29,761 29,637 124 04
Average Fe content 30 66 3023 003 01
Iron ore processed 29,803 29 535 268 09
Concentrate produced ('WMS") 11,830 11,487 343 30
Average Fe content % 62.24 B2 60 {0 36) {0 6)
Floated concentrate 6,834 7,241 (407) 56
Higher grade 4,5M 4,685 (114) 29
Average e content % 67 67 - -
Purchased concentrate 325 8564 539) 62 4)
Average Fe content % 65 66 {1} (16
Purchased iron cre 373 - 373 -
Pellets produced from own ore 9,301 9,083 237 28
Pellets produced from FYM ore 108 - - -
Tetal Group production from own ore 9,409 9,063 346 38
Higher grade 4,118 4,256 (138) {33)
Average Fe content % 6485 64 85 ©n €2
Lower grade 5,291 4,807 484 101
Average Fe content % 62.14 622 jo]es) o
Pellets produced from purchased concentrate

and ore 281 748 (487) 62 4)
Higher grade 56 543 487} 897)
Average Fe content % 65 65 - 00
Lower grade 225 205 20 98
Average Fe content % 62 62 - =
Total pellet production 9,690 5811 {121) (12)
Pelist sales volume 9,675 9,876 (201} 20)
Gravel output 2,822 2,855 (33} 12
Stripping volume 27,916 28,214 (258) (11

BIP Highlights

* In 2012, FPM implemented 36 projects as part of BIP

saving US$64 2 million

« Since inception of BIP in 2006, the C1 cash cost of

production has reduced by USS6 9 per tonne

Bucket wheel excavator at FPM stockpile
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Heatlth and Safety

There were no fataliies at FPM in 2012 and
2011, and lost-tme njunes reduced from 11

in 2011 to 100 2012, reducing the LTIFR to

0 74 per millon man hours worked which is
the lowest rate n FPM's history (2011 082
per milion man hours worked) This reduced
the three-year moving average to a LTIFR of
096 compared to the pnor three year average
of 112 per milion man hours worked

The management of Ferrexpo strongly
encourages a culture of safety in the
organisaton linking safety performance to
remuneration The Group has regular internal
safety audits and external audits by DuPont
and I1s committed to followang internatonat
best practice and to set the standard for
mining companies operating In the CIS

Business Improvement Programme
{'BIP")

In 2012, FPM completed and mplemented
36 projects as part of the BIP This reduced
the C1 cash cost of producton by US$64 2
million or 1 8%, In ne with its goal of 1%

to 2% cost savings per annum Of these
projects, 17 related to mining actvities,

six projects were focused onimproving
productvity in the processing faciliies and
13 progects focused on reducing downtime
In the service departments Overall 14
projects were amed at reducing electnoity
consumption Table 3 shows the actual
resource savings achieved in 2012

Table 3 Resource Savings Under BIP

Resource Savings
Power (rrifion kwh) 317
Stean (Geal) 1,9200
Gnnding media {tonnes) 7410
Diesel fusl (tonnes) 792
Lning (tonnes) 17

it 1s an essential part of the Group's strategy to
reduce costs In order to remain a competitve
pellet producer This has been achieved
through ongoing efficisncy improvements

and cost reductions over many years Table 4
llustrates the effect of these projects Since
incepbon of the BIP programme mn 20086,

FPM has achieved savings of US$6 9 per
tonne in the C1 cash cost of production




Table 4' Improvement in Consumption Norms

Norms - exgmples 202 2005 Ch%
Electncity <Wh/t) 1731 2055 (158)
Gas (mA) 170 220 (23 1)
Gnnding bodies (ka/t) 56 64 (128
Labour productmty (thousand tonnes/person) 15 07 108 8
Examples of the BIP in 2012. Descnption of Project

Decrease in Consumphtion of Steel
Grinding Medsa in Concentration Plant
Cost no capital cost required

Total savings since the project nception In
2011 are 1,998 tonnes of steel gnnding media
and reduced electncity costs of UAH18 million

Descnption of Project

A programme was designed to monitor
electncal consumption of the motors on the
ball rrulls i the concentration plant Ball mills
contain stee! gnnding media which are used
to gnnd the iron ore into an optmum size for
further processing By studying the pattern
of power consumption, FPM assessed when
grincing media were being over or under
ioaded As a result, FPM could optimise the
process for consistent foading of gnnding
media and reduce overall power consumption

Benefits

1 More efficient energy management

2 Reduction of required gnnding media
3 Consistent particle size achieved

Reduction of Power Consumption at the
Tailings Plant

Cost UAH13 milion

Total savings since the project nception in
2010 are 33 millon kKWh of power and reduced
electncity costs of UAH21 mifion per annum

Descrption of Project

Tallings, fine particles of waste which are
a by-product of pellet producton, are
stored In a talings dam FPM redesigned
the piping from the dam to the processing
plant to allow water to flow by gravity back
to the processing area thereby elminating
the use of large electrical pumps

Benefits

1 Lower alectncity consumption

2 Reduction n wear and tear of
water pumps

3 Recychng water

Mine Dewatenng System

Cost UAHO 5 milkon

In 2012, 1 7 mdlion kWh of power was saved
and electricty costs were reduced by

UAH1 2 million

The project commenced in 2011 with the
design and approval by FPM's technical
committee n December 2011, the pit
dewatenng scheme at the Lavnkovskoye
depostt (at the northern end of the pit} was
changed from a double stage dewatenng
system to a single stage system This allowed
FPM to eliminate a transitional purmping station
located near ground level of the pit by installng
higher capacty pumps at -90 metres in the pit

Expected Project Quicomes

1 Electnety cost reduction

2 Mantenance cost reduction
3 Improved efficiency

The BIP 1s embedded in the Company's
culture with targeted outcornes inked

to operatonal managers' performance
evaluations The Group believes the
programme 1$ essential {o ensure continued
improvement in the cost reduction of

its mining and processing actvities

Sustaining Capital Investment at FPM
During the period, the Group allocated
US$108 4 million for the modemisation
and debottlenecking of FPM's production
faciiies (2011 US$121 0 rmilion)

Included in sustaning capital nvestments

are projects to upgrade FPM's beneficiating
and pelletising faciihes to allow processing
capability of 35 milion tonnes of crude ore
per annum by the end of 2013 This wil
ensura FPM can process ore from the FPM
pit and, additionally, the first ore from the

FYM pit, increasing the Group's pellet output
capacity to 12 milion tonnes per year Actvities
dunng tha penod, focused on the redesign
and refurbishment of the gnnding sections
These were completed and commissioned
through the year, while maintaning day to

day operations and production levels Future
actmties will Invelve the rmodemisation of
additional gnnding sections of the existing
beneficiation plant, as well as the replacement
of vacuum filters, and mixers i the pallstising
plant to achieve a higher quality of won ore
concentrate to feed the baling machines
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Sustaining capital investment also provides
for the modemisation of existing assets and
systems to Increase operating efficiencies
benefiting the cash cost of production

Davelopment Capital Investment at FPM
FPM 1s undertalkung a number of
development and improvement projects

that willincreasa its volume of output, as

well as the average quality of its pefllets and
drve down the overall cost of production
through increased operating efficiency

Quality Upgrade Programme

In Novernber 2010, the Board of Dwrectors
approved a US$212 milion investment
programme fo increase the average
quality of FPM's pellet output from 63 3%
iron content to 65% ron content

In order to iImprove the qualty of the
pellet product, the overall rgn content of
the concentrate requires upgrading The
pnmary method to achieve this is through
vertmil fine gnnding technology and
flotation Thus will allow for the production
of concentrate with an average 67% won
content (compared to the current average
ron content of 65%,) and will ensure all
pellets contain 85% ron content Below s a
sumimary of the key stages In the project

« Construction of a new flotation unit
consisting of vertimills and flotation tanks
to allow for further processing of the
lower grade ore mined n FPM's pit

* Modemisabon of the existing flotation
urit that currently processes the
figher grade ore from the FPM pit,
ncluding installation of vertimills

» Construction of an additonal flotation
unit to process talings from the above
flotation sections to berate further ron ore

* Expansion and upgrads of the talings
faciles to accommodate the increased
volumes that will be processed as
production of pellsts from own ore 1s
increased from 9 4mitpa to 12mtpa

¢ Construction of a new filter plant at the
pelletising plant which will accommodate
the filttenng of the higher grade concentrate

Since 2011, FPM has spent US$38 3 million
primarily on engineenng design works and
processing equipment such as vertimdls
FPM expects to spend US$67 8 million out
of the remaning US$173 7 milion in 2013

FPM expects to be able to deliver pellsts with
an average grade of 65% ron content in 2015
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50 mitlion me

of overburden removed at FYM as of
31 December 2012
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First Ore at FYM -
a Milestone in the
Group’s History

“FYM is the first new mine in

the CIS since Ukraine gained

its independence. Ferrexpo is
developing the mine to world class
levels, aiming to set the standard
for mining in the region.”

Nikolay Goroshko
General Director of Ferrexpo Yenstovo Mining

“In 2012, FYM reached first ore in July and developed much
of the required infrastructure which will be commissioned
In 2013 As such, not only will it ramp up ore production to
approximately 8 milkon tonnes in 2013 but it will commssion
the tyre wash centre, the welding bay, the handiing facility,
the service, administration and reparr centres, the canteen,
the portable water faciities as well as the field cffices In
conjunciion, FYM will finalise the detalled design for a
10mtpa concentrating facility to be in operation, subject
to Board approval and market conditions, by 201617

FYM mine and inkastructure as of October 2012
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28 million tonnes

of crude ore availiable to mine per annum following rarmp up
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Bnan Maynard
Group Chiet Qperating Officar

Mine Life Extension Programme
Capital sxpenditure of US$168 million over
a penod of eight years was approved in
November 2010 to extend the estmated
Iife of the existing FPM mine by 12 years

to 2038 The project will involve removal
of 45 2 millon m? of overburden As of

31 December 2012, 24 8 million mé of
overburden had been removed

For the year ended 31 December 2012,
US$48 6 mibon was spent on mining
equipment and stnpping works, compared
o US$45 7 million in 2011 The successful
implementaton of this project should result
N the: ore output from the existing mine
peaking at 35mpta in 2014 compared to the
current output of approximately 30mpta

Review of Operations Ferrexpo Yenstovo
Mining (‘FYM"}

Developing the Yeristovskoye Deposit
Ferrexpo has a icence to mine the
Yenstovskoye iron ore deposit at FYM, which
15 located approximately two kilometres
north of the FPM mine The FYM depaosit
has estimated resources of 1,191 milion
tonnes under the JORC Code, of which
approximately 631 milhon tonnes were
proved and probable reserves with an
average ron content of 34% Assurrung an
iron ore production rate of 28mitpa (broadly
similar to FPM's current production), it

has the capacity to add approxamatety

23 years to the Group's production profite

32

First ore at the Yenstovskoye deposit was
reached in the second half of 2012 Ferrexpo
spent US$146 3 millon and US$128 9 milion,
respectvely, for the year ended 31 December
2012 and 2011 This expenditure was primanly
on miring equipment, stnpping works and

pit nfrastructure In total, US$383 milhon has
been spent since 2008 to develop the mine

The FYM mine 18 managed and operated
ndependently from the existing FPM mine,
although its proximity to the FPM mine

will facilitate the shanng of certan facilities
and resources, particularty dunng the early
stages of operation The ore Intially extracted
from the FYM mine will be processed at
FPM's processing complex Together with
existing output from the FPM mine, the
Group expects to increase its annualised
pellet production from 9 4mtpa of own ore
In 2012 to i2mtpa of pellets from own cre

in 2014 In 2012, 01 milkon tonnes of peliets
were produced from FYM ore Meaningful
commercial production of pellets using FYM
ore 15 expecied in the second half of 2013
once FYM has mined through the inmal
layer of weathered ore This will contrbute
to increased production volumes n 2013
and position the Group to reach its 12mpta
target (n 2014 as production ramps up

FYM s developing additonal processing
and pelletising facilites for the remaning
avalable crude ore mined at the FYM pit
These processing facilities will be new and
stand alone and are expsacted io Increase
combined output of both the FPM and
FYM rmines to around 20mtpa of pellets or
concantrate equivatlant per annum This
project will add an additional concentrating
complex with 10 million tonnes of capacity
In October 2012, the Board of Directors
approved US$30 million to begin the detalled

enginaering work for this development in 2013,

which, subject to market conditions, will be
considered for final approval In the second
hatf of 2013 and targeted to begin concentrate
production in the second half of 2016 with

full production targsted by the end of 2017

Health and Safety

Since its nception in 2008, FYM has had
an excellent safety record There were no
fatalties or lost time injunes in 2012 or 2011

Ferrexpo Belanovo Mining (‘FBM'}

The Betanovskoye deposit has totat JORC
resources of 1,702 milkon tonnes Dnling
works and site preparation actvities are under
way and dunng the peried the Group spent
US$32 9 mifion (2011 US$8 0 million) Topsoi
15 being removed and donated to the district
councl The Belanovo actnties are focused
on development of a feasitility study, icence
maintenance and the acquistion of land Pre
strippmng work will start following full financial
appraisal and the grant of appropnate permits

Ferrexpo Galeschino Mining (‘FGM")
and the Northern Deposits

The Group holds a mining icence for

the Galeschinskoye deposit, located
mmediately north of the FBM mine
Galeschinskoye has estmated total JORC
classified resources 326 millien tonnas

The Group 1s In the process of extending the
exploration licences for the five remaming
Northem deposits, namely Vasilievskoys,
Kharchenkovskoye, Manullovskoye,
Brovarskoye and Zarudenskaye, located to the
north of Galeschinskoye An inttial assessment
of these depesits has been undertaken and
total n situ reserves of 13 2 billon tonnes
classified according to the FSU Classificaton
have been delineated These deposis are
situated adjacent to the Group's existing
logistics infrastructure and Ferrexpo belleves
the development will be relatively low nsk

Marketing

Sales and Logistics

Ferrexpo exports 99 9% of its production to
markets outside of Ukrane and recewves all
of ts revenues in US Dollars The marketing
strategy 1s centred on securing sales for a
large percentage of production with long-
term contracts Customers are targeted who
produce high value added steel products




This 13 designed to maximise revenue stabilty
and secunty through the economic cycie

For the year ended 31 December 2012,

sales to long-term customers accounted

for approximately 75% of our sales

volumes from own ore, In ling with 2011

In advance of the planned FYM mine
expansion, Ferrexpo currently allocates around
10% of sales to potential new customers to

be suppled through tnal spot cargoes As

a resutt of this, the Group recently secured
long-term contracts with key custorners

n both Western Europe and Asia

Ferraxpo services the key steal producing

regions in the world through three market

segments

* Traditonal markets these e within
Central and Eastern Europe and include
steel plants that were intially designed
to use Ferrexpo pellets Ferrexpo has
well-established logistics routes and
wifrastructure to service these steel mills
by both rver barge and ral The Group's
products represent an attractive alternative
to Brazilan and Canadian supphers due
to the closer proximity allowing for a
contnuous small-parcel delvery chain
Key tradibonal customers are based in
Austna, the Czech Republic, and Slovakia

* Natural markets these markets include
Turkey, the Middle East and Western
Europe and are located whera the Group
has a similar logistics cost advantage
compared to more distant producers
Ferrexpo currently has a relatively low
market share in these markets which
offer sales growth opportunities

s Growth markets these markets are In Asia
and have the potenhal to deliver new and
significant sales volumes to the Group
Within this region Ferrexpo 1s focused
not only on China and India but alsc on
bullding relationships with the premium
steel producers in South Korea, Tawan
and Japan Ferrexpo concentrates on
redueing is freight costs to this region by
delivenng via capesize vessels anablng it to
remain competitive on a landed cost basis

The following talble shows the % of Group
sales volume by market segment

Table 5 Sales Volume by Market Segment

2012 2om
Market
Traditional 49% 53%
Growth 42% 40%
Natural 9% 7%

Ferrexpo intends to mantain and consoldate
its leadership in Traditional markets while
lookng to maximise opportunities for sales
growth in its Natural and Growth markets

In Natural and Growth markets, the Group
has been steadily reducing the cost of freight
Ferrexpa's 48 6% owned port terminal at
Yuzhny on the Black Sea has guaranteed

capacity of Smitpa This port berth was intially

designed for vessels of cammying capacity
of up to 100,000 tonnes, and histoncally
vessels were lcaded in the range of 70,000
to 85,000 tonnes Ferrexpo nas developed
a cost effective capabiity to load standard
capesize vessels, typically around 172,000
tonnes, by use of a transshipment vessel
In 2012, Ferrexpo loaded 17 capesize
vessels compared to rine in 2011 and 1t
plans toload over 30 capesize vessals

N 2013 As of December 2012, Ferrexpo
operates its own transshipment vessel
which will further reduce loading costs

Overall, the lower freight costs achieved n
2012 were as a result of reduced capesize
rates in the market generally, the greater
use of capesize vessals for shipping

and the mors efficient transshipment

and loading of vessels This resulted in

a higher net sales pnce for the Group

Logistics Capital Investment

In 2012, Farrexpo Invested US$43 5 milion in
the development of its logistics infrastructure
2011 US$57 8 milhon} This included

US$14 4 milion for its transshipment vessel,
Iron Destiny, as well as US$29 1 milion

for ral wagons As of 31 December 2012,
the Group owned 1,933 rail cars which

allow It to transport a high proportion of tts
pelets to Ukrainian border ponts reducing
its reliance on state rail cars and lowering
transportation costs In February 2013,

the Group ordered a further 267 rail cars
which will taka the inventory of rad cars to
2,200 units As part of sustaining capital,

the Group Irvested US$5 0 million (2011
USE6 4 milion) in ks barging operations
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Jason Keys
Chigt Marketing Officer

Pricing

Pellets are a high quality iron ore product
which can be drrectly charged into the blast
furnace and provide steelmakers with a igher
level of productwty As a resutt, ron ore pellets
are generally priced at a premium compared
to ron ore fings or lump Ferrexpo's pellats

ars relatively low (n alumina and phosphorus,
which 1s partcutarly important to ftat steel
manufacturers Pellets can generally be
shipped consistently In cold chmates as

the lower maisture content makes them
easler to handle and less prona to freezing
Currently in the global iron ore market, there
are a number of pnaing methodologies being
applied by industry participants depending

on geography and custormer With regards to
the major suppliers, the ndex based pricing
mechanism 15 now well established in long-
term contracts whilst it 1s common for these
companies to regularly place shipments to
the increasingly igud spot market i 2012,
61% of Ferrexpo's sales contracts were priced
on a quarterly basis whie 14% were priced

on a monthly basis and 26% were on a spot
basis This compares to 76% on a quarterty
basgis and 24% on a spot basis in 2011

The Group will follow international pncing
trends increasing the proportion of
contracts pnced on a formuta or Index

basis Ferrexpo will continue utiising a

‘value in use' methodology Ferrexpo
believes that its geographic proxamity to key
steel customers represents an attractive
alternative to the major seaborne suppiers
due to the lower costs of transporting petlets
over a shorter distance from Ukraine
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Table 6 Summary Financial Results

LUS$000

Yaar anded 3112 12 Yoar ended 311211 Change
Revenue 1,424,030 1,788,012 (20 4%)
EBITDA 401,549 800,946 (49 9%)
As % of revenue 28.2% 44 8%
Profit before taxation 262,005 690,900 62 1%}
Income tax 46,425 115,964
Profit for the penod 215,580 574,936 (62 5%)
Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 36.6 g70
Final dmvidend per share (US cents) 3.3 33 -

Chris Mawe,

Chief Financial Officer




Revenue

Group revenue declined by 20 4% to
US$1 4 bilion for the 12 months ended
31 Decemnber 2012 {2011 US$1 8 bdlion)
due to lower market pnces for ron ore In
2012, the average benchmark pnce for
62% Fe wron ore finas to China CFR fell by
23 8% to US$128 per tonne compared to
an average of US$168 per tonne n 2011

The average realised pnce achieved by the
Group for its pellets deciined 21 7% in Ine
with the market, decreasing revenues by
US$326 9 million 38 8% of sales wers on
a CFA or similar basis adding US$113 5
million to revenue (2011 US$119 6 mullion)
Group sales volumes for the pertod

were 9,675 thousand tonnes compared

to 2011 at 9,875 thousand tonnes

Relance on the Company's two largest
customers, iIn Central and Eastern
Europe, was reduced to 36 2% of pellet
sales from 43 1% of sales in 2011

Other revenue, not related to pellet sales,
amounted to US$34 0 milion (2011 US$88 1
mdion} This iIncluded revenue from thurd
party services, such as freight services and
bunker fuel sales, at the Group’s barging
operations as well as sales from gravel

Cost of Sales

Total cost of sales {or the year ended

31 December 2012 increased 6 9% to
US$694 & millon (2011 US$649 5 million)
Cost of sales consists of the C1 cash
cost of sales and other costs including
depreciation These are reviewed below

C1 Cash Cost

The C1 cash cost of production per tonne s
defined as the cash costs of production of
pellets from own ore dmded by production
volume of own ore, and excludes non-cash
costs such as depreciation, pension costs and
nventory movements, costs of purchased ore,
concentrate and production cost of gravel

The Group's average C1 cash cost of
production increased by 17 6% to US$59 6 per
tonne, compared to the average C1 cash cost
in 2011 of US$50 7 per tonne This was due

to ncreased electnerty tanffs and gas pnces

as well as local inflation while the Ukrainian
Hryvria remained stable aganst the US Dollar

Just over half of C1 cash costs are
denominated in Ukrainian Hryvria The
Hrywnia has remained largely stable since
2009 at UAHS to the US Dollar Pnor to the
60% devaluation of the Hryvnia at the end of
2008, production costs peaked at US$510
per tonne In October 2008 In this context,
since then production costs have increased by
a compound annual growth rate of 4 0% per
annurn reflecting local inflaton and increases
In gas and electncity tanffs offset by savings
from volume increases and efficiency gans

Of the US$8 9 per tonne Increase In the

C1 cash cost in 2012 compared to 2011,
commodity related pnce inflabon accounted
for 46 0% of the increase In 2012, gas and
electricity prices rose by 24 1% and 18 7%
respectively while the cost of diesel fuel was
6 9% higher, reflecting ugher gicbal ol prices
during the year and increased domestic

fuel taxes In total, these factors added

US$4 3 per tonne to the C1 cash cost

Personnal, reparr and maintenance and other
matenal costs Increased the C1 cash cost

by US$4 5 per tonne These expenses are
pancipally denominated in local currency

The Group produced at full capacity
throughout the perod which helped to absorb
the costincreases In addition, the Business
Improvement Programme (' BIP') reduced the
C1 cash cost by 1 8%, generating savings

of US$0 8 per tonne Since the Inception

of tha BIP in 2006, cumulative productivity
gains have achieved savings of approxmately
US$6 ¢ per tonne of pellets produced, or
US$64 2 milon to the 31 December 2012

Table 7 C1 Cash Costs

Farrexpo plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW
GOVERNANCE
FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Cost of Sales outside C1 Relating

to Pellet Production

These costs amounted to US$133 5 milion
for the penod (2011 US$190 0 million)

Depreciation and amortisation increased
by 37 2% to US$39 3 milion, reflecting the
Group's capital investment programmes
to modermnise and upgrade the existing
mine and production faciities

The remamnder of non-C1 cost of sales
related to the purchase of concentrate for
reprocessing into pellets The Group has
nominal pelletising capacity of 12 milion
tonnes of pellet production per year FPM

1S currently able to mine cre sufficient

to produce just over 90 millon tonnes

of pellets To utlise its spara peletising
capacity efficiently, third party concentrate 1s
purchased, when available at economic prices,
on the local market During the year, 2810
thousand tonnes of third party concentrate
was acquired (2011 747 3 thousand tonnes)
which generated a positive contribution As
FYM ore comes on line in 2013 the Group
will replace third party concentrate

Gross Margin

The Group's gross margin was 51 2% for
the penod compared to 63 7% In 201
This reflected lower market prices for
iron ore and industry cost inflation

Year ended 311212 Year ended 31 12.11

US5000 % of total USE000 % of total

Electncity

Gas

Fuel

Gnnding media

Explosves

Other matenals

Spare parts, mantenance and consumables
Personnel costs

140,227 250% 118,148 257%
77,424 13.8% 58,821 130%
§5,223 9.8% 47,064 102%

41,716 7 4% 40,921 89%
15,970 2.8% 13151 28%
56,478 101% 38 662 84%

100,386 17.9% 78,191 17 0%
64,280 1.5% 55,810 121%

Royatties and levies 9,444 17% 7,746 18%
C1 cost of sales 561,148 459,514
C1 cost per tonne 596 507
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Financial Review continued

Selling and Distribution Expenses
Selling and distnbution expenses ware
US$311 9 milkon for the year compared
to US$318 1 mition in 2011

Selling and distnbution costs to the Ukrainan
beorder increased by US$2 4 million to

US$140 4 millon in the penod (2011 US$1380
million}, equating to US$14 5 per tonne (2011
US$14 © per tonne) These costs primarly
include raiway freight to the southem ports

at Yuzhny and lzmail and to the western
Ukrainian border as well as port charges

Rall tanffs increased on average by
approximately 12 2% in 2012 compared

{o 2011 reflacting a full year mpact of tanff
ncreases in 2011 This was partally offset by

a discount for volumes transported by the
Group's own rall cars Ferrexpo owns 1,933 rail
cars and receved discounts from 8% to 15%
for using its own cars, depending on direction

Intermational freight costs amounted to
US$113 5 milion (2011 US$119 6 million)
These costs, which are also reflected as

part of revenue on associated CFR! sales,
refate to the shipping of pellets by ocean
vessel to custoners n Asia (on a CIF? or CFR
basis), and by barge fo customers in Serbia
{on a DAP? basis} The Group shipped 3 8
million tonnes of pellets by sea to customers
in Growth and Natural markets on a CFR

or equvalent basis pnnepally through the
loading of 17 capesize vessels Ltlisation of
capesize vassels alowed Ferrexpo to reduce
seabome freight costs by approxmately
US$21 million in 2012 compared to 2011

Depreciation amounted to US$9 8
milion {2011 US$S 2 milion) and
ralated to amortisation of the Group's
nver vessels as well as to ral cars

1 CFRis defned as debvery nchuding cost and fraight.

2 ClF s defined as delvery ncluding cost, snsurance
and fraight,

3 DAP s dafined as defivered at place
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Table 8: Selling and Distnbution Expanses

Yoar ended Year anded
{USS milion unksss therwise stated) 31212 391211
International freight for pellets 135 186
Railway transportation 93.4 892
Port charges 320 377
Other pelet transportation costs 186 135
Costs of logistics business 275 367
Gravel delvery costs 0.5 18
Advertising 96 689
Depreciation 9.8 B2
Other 70 44
Total selling and distribution expenses N9 3180
Total sales volume {thousand tonne) 9,675 9,876
Cost per tonne of pallets sold (including intemational freight) (US$) 322 322
DAP/FOB distribution costs per tonne of pellets sold (US$) 14 5 140

General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses were
US$56 3 million {2011 US$52 0 midlon)
The increase was related to new marksting
offices in Singapore and Japan as well as
personnel costs reflecting local inflabon

Cther Income and Expense

Cther income was US$11 3 mifion in

2012 (2011 US$6 © miion) The Increase
reflected higher operating income from the
lease of premises to third parties at FPM

Other expenses increased to US$30 2 milion
{2011 US$171 milliony This reflected increased
spending on support for the iocal communities
in the Poltava region, where FPM s based

anc s a key part of the Group's strategy

EBITDA

The Group calculates EBITDA as profit from
continuing operations before tax and finance
plus depreciation and amortisation and
nen-recumng exceptional items Included

in other Income and other expenses, and

the net of gains and losses from disposal of
Investments, property, plant and equipment

Ferrexpo mantamned satisfactory levels of
profitabiity reflectng a 23 8% fall in market
prices and Industry wide double digit

cost inflaton EBITDA for the penod was
US$401 5 milion {2011 USEB00 9 million)

Finance Income and Expense

Finance ncome was US$2 6 milion (2011
US$2 5 million) Interest from cash held
was USE2 5 million in ine wath 2011 The
average cash balance dunng the year was
US$743 4 milion (2011 US$604 8 milion)

Finance expense increased to US$88 1 million
{2011 US$68 2 milior) which included a

full year of interest payment on the Group's
US$500 million Eurobond totaling US$39 5
million 2011 USS28 8 mifkon) Due to financial
nstability in the global banking sector,
particulary n Wastern Europe, Ferrexpo
drew In full its US$420 million ravolving bank
faciity in October 2011 which remained
outstanding in 2012 Interest on this facility

15 225 basis points above LIBOR which was
significantly below the previous bank facility
The average cost of Group debt for the penod
was 5 24%, almost a percentage point lower
than the average of 6 23% in 2011 reflecting
afull year of the lower cost bank faciity

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses
Operating Foreign Exchange Gains
and Losses

Ferrexpo prepares and reports its financial
staternents in US Dollars and operatng
foresgn exchange gains and losses reflect
the revaluation of trade recevables and
trade payables that are danominated n a
currency other than the Group's reporting
currency at the balance sheet date




Lunng the perod, the Likrainian Hryvnia
remained stable against the US Dollar

at an average rate of UAH7 9905 (2011
UAH7 9579} As a result, there was no
sigrificant operating foreign exchange
movements, with a gain of US$0 7 million
recorded (2011 loss of US$1 4 million)

Non-operating Foreign Exchange Gains
and Losses

Nen-operating foreign exchange gains or
losses result from the retranslation of financal
Iiabilities, loans and cther similar iterms

The Group recorded a non-operatng
foreign exchange gain for the penod of
US$6 6 million (2011 loss of US$1 9 mulkon)
This related to ncome receved from the
conversion of US Dollars for settlerment of
liabilities denominated in Ukrarian Hryvrnia
at an exchange rate higher than the one
applicable upon intial recognition

Income Tax Expense

Ferrexpo pays tax in vanous junsdictions
The sffective Income tax rate was 17 8%
for the year ended 31 December 2012
compared to 16 8% for 2011 This rate s
influencead by the Group's mix of profits
pnmanly between Switzedand, Ukraine
and Duba, as well as the amount of non-
deductible expenses for tax purposes

Cash Flows

Net cash flow from operating actvities
was US$118 6 million for the perod
compared to US$502 7 mifion in 2011

Worlang capital increased by US$128 2 million
primartly reflecting higher VAT recevables
(2011 working capital increase was US$111 4
milior) As a result of high capital expenditure
dunng the year on which the Group pays

20% VAT, and a delay in respect of VAT
repayments from the Ukrainian government,
VAT recevables increased by US3$129 9 million
dunng the pencd to US$301 5 milion A
US$20 0 milion discount has been recorded
to reflect the time value of money for VAT
gven the expectation that a portion of VAT

will be recovered after more than one year

Total caprtal irvestment for the year was
US$429 3 milion, a 13 5% increase
compared to US$380 4 millon in 2011
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Sustairng and modemisation capital
rvestment was US$113 5 million for the Group
{2011 US$128 0 million) of which US$108 4
million was invested at FPM (2011 US$121 3
million) The remaining US$5 1 millon was
largely Invested In the barging operations

In November 2010, the Board approved
US3646 9 millron for developrment projects
at FPM and FYM In 2012, the Group spent
US$230 0 rnillion in this regard (2011
development capex US$1779 million)
US$83 7 millen was spent at FPM, while
US$146 3 million was invested at FYM

US$41 8 mullion was spent on the FBM
and Northern deposits duning the perod
(2011 US$120 millon) The spend

was prmariy retated to FBM for topsol
remaval and site preparation actvities

Total development expenditure on logistics
was US$43 5 million 2011 US$57 8 mulion)
Of this US$29 1 milion related to the
acqusition of raill cars and US$14 4 million
was for the Group's transshipment vessel

The Group's closing cash balance was
US$596 6 million (2011 US$890 1 million}
This reflectad lower levels of profitability dus
to a subdued market ervironment in 2012 as
well as record levels of capital Investment

Ferrexpo's gross debt had an average
maturity of 3 0 years at 31 December 2012
The Group has rminimal debt repayments of
US$19 2 milion n 2013 Net debt to EBITDA
as of 31 December 2012 was 105 tmes

Table 9 Summary of Group Liquidity

and Debt

Asol As of
US$ mzan 31212 311218
Cash and equivalents 596 6 8901
Gross debit 1,0199 9703
Net debt 423.4) Bo2
Total eguity 1,569 9 1,383 1
Undrawn faciites - 500
Total iquidrty

{faciities plus cash) 596.6 9401

Chnstopher Mawe
Chief Financial Officer
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Corporate Responsibility

Chairman's Statement

Ferrexpo's Board 1s fully committed to the
Group's corporate social responsibiity
('CSR") inmatives, which am to achieve a
hign interational standard of performance

The Board focuses its attention on three
Key areas

Safety- with the assistance of external
consultants, Ferrexpo 1s embedding an
improved safety culture throughout the
orgarisation This 1s reflected in the steady fall
In the accident rate and in the accompanying
distress and disruption

Environment continuous efforts are made to
manage and reduce dust, gas and effluent

emissions, by introducing new equipment and

procedures Ferexpo s keenly aware of ts
duty to manage its resources carsfully and
with the proper regard for the natural and
soctal environment

Community Ferrexpo benefits encrmously
from having a thrving, well-educated and
waell-motivated local community which aids
the recruitrment and retention of staff To this
end t pursues a wide range of nhatives,
from dealing sensitrvely with its immediate
neighbours, to sponsorshie of the football
teams that enjoy overwhelming support
among employees and the local community

In afl of this the Board ams to foster high
standards of behaviour among employees,
reinforced by appropnate codes of conduct

Michael Abrahams
Charman
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2012 Highlights

Safety

— There were no work related fatalites during 2012, and the lost
tme frequency rate continued to umprove, reaching its lowest
point In the Company’s history This reflects constant efforts
10 Increase safety standards and reduce inunes

— Noincidents requinng evacuaton of staff or members of the
local community

Environment

- Total emissions levels (NQ,, SO,, CO;, and dust) decined
versus 2011, and were within regulated hmits

— Further regulatory permits were obtained for exploration,
production, and processing activities

Commumty Initiatives (see also panel on page 47)
Project managsment and monetary support for Regional and
District Planning Councils

— Continuing sponsorship of the Ukraxmian Premier League
football club FC Vorskla which has a large following among the
staff and local community, and also the local club FC Gormyak

—  Supply of new equipment for local schools

— Construction of new apartment urnits

- Supply of medical equipment to local and regronal hospitals

— Maore than 500 employees added to FYM in preparation for
2013 commercial production

- Successful resettiement of exght households from the Yemtsy
village, n order {0 support the FYM business

— Medical sponsorship for pensioners and others who are not
able to acquire all necessary medicines and supphes

2013 Challenges

Environment

- Mantain the trend towards lower ermissions (per tonne of
pelets produced), while continuing to develop the site and
increase production

— Minmising dust levels from the expansion of the FYM open pit
and asscciated infrastructure

Skills Availability

- Ferrexpo Is examining many business and commurity
processes {including peer group compensation analysis,
accomrodation/housing, and sports/entertanment facilities),
In order to attract and retain tha skills required to support the
modemisation and growth of the site




CSR Strategy

Set out below are the short-, medium- and long-term CSR goals for the Group

Short 1grm (2012 2014)

Madum 1erm (2012 2016)
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Long term (2012 2021)

Healthand Reduce/elminate recurmng Implement effectve systems Implerment hazardous operations
Safoty injunes through Improvement in to ensure compliance with analysis and nsk assessment
safe workplace behaviour company safety standards processes to dnve best practice
Employees Increase avalabilty of mproved Increase employee Integrate recrutment and
Ivng accommodation develcpment programmes retention systems
Environment Keep controled emissions (dust, gas Adapt production techniques Increase productive output
and sffluent) below parmitted Imits S0 as to minimise use of Inputs while reducing the impact on
and reduce further where possible and minimise waste the environment through new
processes and technology
Improve workplace conditions
through the mplementation of
modem equipment and processes
Commuruty Contnbute to the development Aligr the growth of operations with Woark jointly with local communities
of the education and skills of the land acqusition and city planning to create new infrastructure, soctal
focal population, and support processes for rural and wban Iving programmes, and leisure actvities
the modemisation of local
community infrastructure and
services, In order to develop and
maintain the local labour pocl
Conduct successful negotiations with
local cormmunites in order to faciitate
land acquisition for mining nfrastructure
About this Report The content of this report has been investment analysts Other users may

The Board and its CSR Committes (descnbed
below} ars committed to continuing the drive
to improve health and safaty, environmental
and social performance and reporting As part
of thus programme the decision was taken

n 2011 to adopt a more coherent structure

for raporting which can be built on as the
Company's monitoring procedures grow

This report covers the reporting penod

1 January — 31 Decernber 2012, and reporting
1s on an annual basts However, If thers are
any significant CSR issues or developments
dunng the year, these are reported in the
half-yearty report. The last annual CSR review
was In the Cormpany’s 2011 Annual Report

Report Content

The scope of this report covers all areas
of Ferrexpo’s actvities and those of iis
operatng subsidianes

defined by consideration of

+ Company prnciples and policies

+ Consideration of the Company's stratagy
and how this may be affected by
sustainable development nsks facing
the Comparny

* Feedback from and interests of
stakeholder groups

* Key CSR topics entfied by serior
management engaged with the
CSR process

¢ Baeview against peer group companies

* Legstation and regulation that affects
the Company

The topics coverad are those that have been
assessed to be most matenal to the Company,
including those highlighted in the Risks and
Opportuniies secton on pages 41 to 42 We
will take account of stakeholders’ views in
order to refine and buld on our CSR reporting

Report Audience
The report i1s aimed prncipally at exsbing
and prospactive sharsholders and

include local and natonal govemment,
empioyees, communrties affected by
the Company's operations, contractors,
supplers, custorners and the media

External Assurance

This report has been seff-reviewed, which 1s
considered to be appropnate at this stage
In the development of cur CSR reporting

Qrganisational Profile

Information on the Group and its activites
may be found in the Business Rewiew on
pages 10 to 37 and employes numbers

are detalled in note 35 to the Financial
Statemants For inforrmation on the scale of
crganisation (revenues, assets, caprtalisation,
etc) please seenotes 6, 18t0 21, and 28

to the Financial Statements

Governance

The general governarice structure of
the Group 1s explained in the Corporate
Govemmance Report on page 50
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CSR Governance

The Corporate Safety and Social
Responsibility Committee

The Group has a Corporate Safety and
Social Responsibility Committee (the ‘CSR
Committee’) which is a sub-committaa of
the man Board and ncludes two Board
members and two senior executives
monitors the mplementation of CSA policies

The CSR Committee i1s chaired by Bnan
Maynard {Group Chief Operating Officen) The
other members of the CSAR Committee are
Michael Abrahams (Chaiman of the Board),
Kastyantin Zhevago {Chief Executive Officer)
and Viktor Lotous (FPM Chief Operating
Officer} To assist them in the exercise of thew
duties, the CSR Commitige will, from time to
time, engage specialist technical advisers

During the year the matters considered

by the CSR Committee and the

Board included the following

* Monitoring the review of targets and
metnics to be set in relation to the CSR
Performance Indicators, this work wall
continua in 2013

+ Reviewing the work being done to
implerment the greenhouse gas emissions
reporting regulations 1 the UK

»  Overall review of salety n mining and
processing operations, Including analysis of
industral Injunes and sickness, warkplace
conditions, and labour safety audits

*  Areview of CSR related nsks

Business Conduct

A concem for high standards of business
conduct informs the Group's approach to its
actvities Awareness of the Group Policy on
Bnbery and Corruption was reinforced with

all managers and commercial employeas
dunng the year with franing provided when
required, In order to ensure best practice

and compharce with the UK Bribery Act

It 1s the responsibility of the Chief Financial
Cfficer to monitor the Group's anti-brnbary
policies and report to the Committee of
Independent Directors on therr effectiveness
The Committee of Independent Directors
oversees the operation of business ethics and
anti-bribery policies and makes any necessary
racommendations for improverment
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Structure

Commitment to CSR 1s demonstrated through
*  Group policies

* Board and management focus

¢ Asset level management systems

* Performance management at all levels

The Board considers that Ferrexpo has
continued to make good progress in 2012
The Group’s values {see the Charman's
Statement at the beginning of this CSR
review) ars reflected in a Group-wide Code of
Corporate Responsibiity and Business Ethics

The CSR Framework

Management recognises that reaching the
highest standards will ental a continuous
process of evaluation and improvement
founded on a sound CSR framework
Ferrexpo has adopted a seven point CSR
framework covenng values, strategy,
policies, objectives, targets, montonng
and auditing, and communication

CSR at FPM

As 1t is still by far the largest asset within
the Group, FPM prowides the main focus
for development and implementation of
the Group's CSR procedures, based on
established Group policies Wittin FPM a
single departrment 1 responsible for health
protection, industnal safaty, ar and water
testing laboratones, tha medical centra, fire
prevention service, gas senace, civil defence
and ernergency response headquarters
and workshops This department reports
directly to the FPM Chief Operating Officer

CER at FYM

The FYM open pit was commissioned in 2012
and will begin commercial production in 2013
A department has been created to deal with
heaith, safety, and ervronment matters

1,091

number of staff at FYM

The number of staff at FYM grew steadily
durng 2012, to 1,091 CSR matters form
an increasing part of FYM's regular
reporting procedures

CSR at First-DDSG Logistics Holding GmbH
(formerty Helogistics Holding GmbH)

See secticn on First-DOSG Logistics on
page 47

All Employees

All Group employees are expected to take
personat responsibility for ther conduct,
and management recognises the need

to create a cultural and behavioural
environment among the Group's workforce
that will allow the policies agreed by the
Board to be successfuly implemented

Adherence to External Charters

Safsty

Management continues to take into account
best practice both in Ukraine and abroad

In 2012, there was further action on the
recommendations of the DuPont audit of 2011

In 2006, FPM intiated the development of
a health and safety management system
congistent wath the requirements of OHSAS
18001, the Internationally recognisaed
standard for health and safety management
This system was externally audited under
the Ukrainian UkrSEPRC system in March
2007 and accreditation was obtaned in
Apnl 2007 The accreditaton is renewed
every five years, most recently in January
2013, and audits are carned out annually

Environment

FPM and FYM are currently In compliance with
all applicable standards under environmantal
laws in Ukraine, which set regurements for
the protection of the natural environment, the
use of natural resources, emissions into the
atmosphere and water and waste disposal
FPM holds a number of ervironmental icences
and parmits, including permits for atmospheanc
emission control, solid waste disposal, talings
disposal, mine waste disposal and industnal
use of fresh water In 2008, the Ervronmental
Department started to develop a full
Envirornmental Management Systern (EMS'}

in accordance with IS0 14001 The EMS was
extemnally audited by the Ukrainian UkrSEPRO
authonty and given a certificate of conformity
with ISC 14001 in the second quarter of

2007 The systern was last audited in May
2011, and the accreditation was confirmed

by external auditors At FYM, which 1s at an
earhier stage of development, preparatons
have been made for ISC 14001 certfication




Stakeholder Engagement
Stakeholders

Stakeholders are those groups or
individuals who are significantly affected
by Ferrexpo's actvities or those whose
actions may affect the abilty of the Group
to Implement its strateqies and objectives

The stakeholder groups that the Group
engages with are descnbed below

Sharenolders and the Investment Community
Directors and senior executives have frequent
discussions with institutional investors and
majer shareholders on a range of issues
including performance, strategy and
govemance The Head of investor Relations
manages programmes and communications,
particularly at the time of the full and half-year
results annocuncements when presentations
are grven to analysts, brokers and major
shareholders The Annual General Meeting

i an important avant in the calendar, gvng
all shareholders the opportunity to engage
clirectly with Directors and managernent

Customers and Suppliers

Ferrexpo has had successful business
relationships with several of its customers for
over 20 years Marketing plays an mportant
role in developing new relaticnships in order
to dversify the customer base in anticipation
of the planned increase in producton

How Ferrexpo Engages
with its Stakeholders

Employees (and Trade Unions)

Successful communication with employees
1$ crucial in helpng Ferrexpo to achteve

its obyectves Commurnication starts at

a personal leve! when employaes begin
their employment through an induction
programme, and continues throughout ther
tme with Ferexpo It takes a vanety of forms
according to the circumstances - from face-
to-face discussion to formal group training
prograrnmes, from job-specific training 1o
programmes for ensunng comphance with
lagal or regulatory requirements (such as
that undertaken in 2011 In implementing
anh-bribery procedures across the Group)
Communication is of course two-way,

and employees arg encouraged to give
feedback erther through their managers

or occasional employee surveys

Local Commurities

Ferrexpo has a positve impact on local
communities through being a major employer
As a mining company, it also recogrises the
sensitivities that surround the occasicnal
necessary displacement of small communities
by its operations, and those operations’ impact
on the physical landscape It works hard to
mantan dialogue with local communities,

and has a dedicated department through
which communications are channelled

Sharegholders and Investment

Community

— Apnual Report and Accounts

- Website

~ Analyst and investor meetings
and conferences

- Annual General Meeting

— Whntten commurication and email

— Presentations

— Sitewsis

Customers and Suppliers

- Whntten comemunication and email
— Facetoface

- Annual Report and Accounts

— Networking at conferences

Employees and Trade Unions
— Face to face regular mestings
with employees and unions
— Informahion boards around the site
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Local Traning Institutions

Ferrexpo works towards establishing a closer
relationship with the local tranuing institutions,
with a view to developing accelerated training
programmes that improve the flow and
qualty of new recruts to its operations

Govemment (Nahional and Local}
Engagement with local and national
govemment 1S open and proactva
Communication cften revelves around project
implementation and land acquisition, as

well as routine submission of nformation as
required by the authonties Recerit actvities
included sponsored development of future
town planning in the Kremenchuk distnct

Risks and Opportunities

The main CSR-related business nsks are

* Mining nsks and hazards

* Licences

* Govemnmental approvals for expansion-
related projects

* Relocation of communities

Mining Risks and Hazards

The Group's mining operations are subject
to nsks and hazards including industnal
accidents, equipment falure, unusual

or unexpected geological conditions,
environmental hazards, extreme weather
conditions (especially in winter) and other
natural phenomena Many of these nsks
are cutside management’s control

Traning

- Wntten communication and email
- Surveys

Special programmes (e g ant-
bnbery procedure traming)

tocal Communities

- Sponsership (finance and know-how)
- Funding of community projects

- Local TV

- Local press articles and interviews
Site wsits

Government (National and Local)
- Wntten commuricabion and email
- Facetoface

- Site wisis

Audits and 1nspections

Annual Report and Accounts
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Mitigation The Group 1s dedicated to a
zero-harm objectrve, and the miigation of
mining nsk1s one of its pnmary operational
goals All safety inibatves and processes
are regularty reviewed by management and
adjusted to changing crcumstances, with
the support of third-party service providers
(e DuPont) as required Appropnate safety
tfraning and refresher training 1s given to all
relevant employees, and ther remuneration
15 partly Inked to satety performance The
modemisation of plant and equipment has
also allowed safer worlang practices and
improved enmaronmental performance
Accidents are fully nvestigated and
remedies proposed and mplemented
However, given the nature of mining
operatons there can be no guarartee that
accidents and fatalhies will not coeur

There wera no tatalhies In 2012, and
the accident rate for the year has
falen compared with 2011

Throughout the Group's 40-year history
of operahion it has not expenenced
any significant shutdowns

Licences

Alllicences for FPM's and FYM’s operations
have been renewed upon expiry The nsk of
Icences being revoked 1s low, but requires
tmely and close monitoring in order to prepare
for all extemally controlled situations

Mitigation The Group continues to monitor
and review ts commitments under its
vanous llicences in arder te ensure that the
conditions contained within the kcences

are fulfiled or the appropnate wavers
obtained There 1s careful assessment of the
situation regarding transfers of licences
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Govermment Approvals of Expansion

The process of obtaining govermmental
approvals 1s time-consuming  The Yenstovo
mine 15 beng developed according to plan,
and the extension of the current mining
hcence was approved The Group does

not yet hold all govermmiental approvals
required to conduct all of its future expansion
projects that are under study, although
none of the approvals applied for to date
has been refused by the authonties

The nsk 1s kept under careful review

Mitigation The Group continues to maintain
an open and proactive relationship with
vanous governmental authonties and 1s
aware of the importance of compliance with
local legislation and standards The Group
maintains stnct comphance with the National
Resources Code of Ukraine and execution
of work in accordance with the project
design, through the active engagement of
Ukrainian and international legal adwvisers

Relocation of Communities {this 1s a subsichary
nsk, and for that reason 1s not included in the
Pnncipat Risks on pages 20 to 23)

Certain small rural settiements will have to be
relocated in order to allow us to proceed with
some of our mine expansion projects Potential
solutions have been explored, and progress
has been made during the recent months

Mitigation The resolution of the issue s
supported by strong actmty at the local level
including timely mestings and dialogue with
community representatives, in-order to reach
consensus on the benafits of relocation In
terms of improved accommodation and utiities
and better access to transport Infrastructure
and social services Communties are paid a
fair pnce for thew land and compensation for
disruption As it 1s Included in the approved
funding of the Capital Project, the topic is
under constant review, ncluding weekly
meetings at site, and when necassary at
monthly Executive Committee meetings

(Ses also 'Community Iniiatves” under
‘Highlights’ on page 38}

Ferrexpo's Approach

Health and Safety

Policy

The prevention of Inunes to employees
1$ the hughest pnonty of the Board
and management Policies and
practces at all levels reflect this
Withuin the operating assets,
accountability for heatth and

safety performance lies with

senior hine management

All operating assets are required

to develop and implement health
and safety management systems

In line with Group pohcy, including
performance management
Performance metrics will reflect

the Group's commitrment to strive
to achieve the highest standards of
health and safety perfornance
Senior ine management 1s responsible
for ensunng that adegquate resources
ars commitied tc health and safety
They have an obligation to secure
therr resources through the Group's
planning and budgeting crocesses
Adeguate health and safety

training will be given to alt
employees and contractors
Specific focus needs to be applied
to behavioural safety at all levels,

to fatal nsk preventicn and to the
major industnial health hazards
associated with our operations
Employees are personally
responsible for their own safety

and that of ther colleagues

Goals

Ferrexpo’s goal 1s to develop a culture in
which safe production 1s recognised as
cost-effactive, and which leads to mproved
workplace conditions and behawour The
objective {onginally set in 2008) of achieving
the best mining salety record in Ukrane is
supported by targsts including a reduction
of 5% n the lost-time inury frequency rate




For 2012 management set itself the task

of further renforcing the safety culture at
Ferrexpo, through an increase in safety
spending as a proportion of sales revenue,
through the development of the salety training
programme, and through a continuing knk
between safety performance and staff
remuneration (safety KPIs now apply to al
staff down to middle management level)

Performance

Monitonng the effectiveness of heaith
and safety policies includes the review
of health and safety performance, as
measured by key KPls as shown below

22 2011 2010

Lost Tims Injury

Frequency Rate

{LTIFR — see nots) 066 077 146
Fatal acckdents 0 0 1
Total accdents 10 1 20
Lost days 338 469 8916
Notes

LTIFR = Number of work retated kst ime rpunas per mibion man
hours {not ncluding contractors)

The prevention of INjunes to employees Is the
highest prionty of the Board and management,
who follow tha prncipls that all accidents are
avoidable There were no work-related fatalities
within the Group dunng 2012, and the accident
rate In Ferrexpo's operations has fallen

In ine with policy, all accidents are
investigated to determine the cause and
dentify appropnate remedial action

This analysis, which also covers minor
accidents not Involving tme spent off work
(‘microtraumas’) 1s camed out according

to a methodology created with DuPont
Fatafibes and other senous acoidents

are additionally investigated by the State
authority The Board, the CSR Committee
and the Executve Committee require senior
management to provide full reports on the
causes of fatal and senous accidents, details
of corrective actions to prevent these types
of accident from recumng, and plans for
enhancing overall safety management based
on the lessons leamt Senior managers

are expected to present these reports, in
person, at the first Executive Committee
meetng after the accidert concemed

In accordance with Ukranian compulsory
social insurance laws, compensation
equivalent to up to five tmes annual salary
Is payable to the victims of accidents

{or therr famikes in the case of fatalities)
Workers contnbute {o a statutory insurance
fund which 1s responsible for paying the
compensation FPM s aware that it has
amoral as wel as a legal responsibility
towards the familles of employeess affectad
by accidents at work and wilt also make
addmonal voluntary payments to the family
of employees on a case-by-case basis to
ensure that they do not suffer hardship
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4,655

employees trained In safety
at FPM training centre 2012

Organisational Responsibility

In accordance with the legal requirements

of the junsdictions within which Ferrexpo
operates, it has developed health and safety
policies approprate to its operations and types
of actmty Compliance with these policies

13 montored via a three-tiered system daily
control1s conctucted by operating personnel,
engineers and techrioians, producton
managers cary out weekly inspections, senor
management conducts penodic Inspections

In conjunction with government personnel

There is a centraksed Directorate for Industnal
Labour Safsty and Emvironmental Protecton
takung the place of the prevous more localised
structure, in this Directorate the remuneration
of safety engineers i1s no longer directly inked
to operational output (thereby contnbuting

to the maintenance of health and safsty
standards) Procedural maruals on labour
safety and environmental protection at the
operational level continue to be iImplemented

Training

Staff are trained in Heafth and Safety matters
as part of their general technical training

In 2012, safety traning at the FPM Training
Centre was provided to 4,655 employees

at all levels of the Group (see "Traming and
Development’ under ‘Employess’ on page 44)
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Corporate Responsibility continued

Employees

Policy

Ferrexpo's employment principles include
policies and practices on company
standargds, security, recrutment,
remuneration, equal opportunies ang
traning and development These are
backed up by subsidiary company
employment manuals to cover local

legal and regulatory requirements

Goals

Ferrexpo 1s aware of the ncreasing

demand for staff with mining expertise in
the CIS countries and elsewhere, and 1s
constantly looking for ways to motvate

and retain its employees by involving an
increasing number of staff in ts employee
development programmes and by providing
competitive compensation packages

Ferrexpo also aims to combine emplovees’
local knowledge with modern technology so
as to enhance the capacity and utiisation

oi its physical plant and equipmert

Ferrexpo also intends to imptement more
up-to-date Human Resources systerns

Performance

In 2012, 66 staff were able to join the employee
housing programme, which enables selected
employees to take out loans for the purchase
of accommedation in Komsomolsk, at a highly
subsidised rate of Interest and without the
narmal requirernent In Ukrane of a substantial
down payment This plays an important part in
Ferrexpo's strategy for retaning key employees

Further information on employee numbers
15 set out In note 35 to the Accounts

Orgarusational Responsibility — Trade
Umions and Industnal Relations

The Group does not have iIndvidual contracts
with its employees in Ukraine other than with
its senior managers Every year a Collectve

Labour Agresment 1s signed which states, inter

alia, that Individual salanes will be increased
at least n bne with iInflation Management
believes, having conducted market research,
that wages paid by the Group are higher than
average wages in Ukrane There has been
no major iIndustnal action or labour dispute

at FPM since its privatisation in 1985

Tramning and Development

The Group 1s cormmitted to developing its
employses The Group provides techrical
trarning for all employees consistent with their
duties and responsibiities In particular,

6,937

employaes banefited from
various forms of in-house
and external tramning

nvestment has been made in facilites for
health and safety traring Traning takes

the form of basic and specialised traning,
retraining and refresher training courses,
both internal and external In 2012, 107
employees were sponsored by Ferrexpo
atinstitutes of higher education Total
educational spending for employees in higher
educational establishments was UAHB31
thousand (US$79 thousand) In 2012, a total
of 6,937 employees received vanous forms
of in-house and external training, at a cost
of UAHB 5 milton (US$813 thousand)
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uaH9Im

invested on implementation of
environmental protection measures

Rwer Drueper

Envi + Utlise stnpping matenals (topsoil, sand, In 2012, FPM spent UAHZ1 million on the

nvironment clay, rock) to support the creation of new implementation of environmental protection
plant and transport infrastructure measures, this increase was due mainly
+ BEiminate workplace waste through to work on the talings storage area

Policy improved management systems, and utiise  Additionally, JAHES millon was spent on
plant faciitiss to re-use scrap matenals environmental monitonng and maintenance
* Operating practices and growth plans * Monitor processes and employee actvites Charges payable under emissions

will be implemented in a manner
congistent with the principles undertying
long-term sustainable resource
development, Ferrexpo will always bear
in mind the long-term environmental
consequences of its actions

+ Al operating assets are required to
develop and implement ervironmental
management systems, In lne with
Group policy

* Al new capital projacts will include
environmental risk assessments

behawviour in order to minimise waste and regulations declined shghtly from UAH32
by-product contaminants and improve the  milbon in 2011 to UAH31 million n 2012
condiben of plant and equipment due to lower waste disposal charges

* Monitor dust and gas emissions and waste
effluents in order to keep them below the Ongoing environmental management
permitted hmits and reduce them further actvities in 2012 included the bulding of
wherever possible resarvors for water conservation {using

*  Work with engineers and National Design mining overburden to buld dams), further
Institutes to ensure that modermisatonand  development of the closed water cycle
production growth plans include designs for production actvities, environmental
and documentation that reduce ther overall  eguipment upgrades and landscaping work

impact on the environment
&cfgg?;g;?éiagg;rgﬁgn;?nmce « Monitor new technologies that could assist  Orgamisational Responsibility
Socul Performance Standards) and in the reprocessing of Iron ore tailings Ferrexpo has a dedicated Environmental
mitigation plans Department the pnmary responsibilty of which
Performance 1 to ensure that all necessary permits are in
Monitonng the effectivensess of environmental  place, to undertake montoning in accordance
Goals policy includes the review of key KPIs for with the prevalling regulatory requirements and
s Maximise recovery of iron from ore, talings,  emussions which are shown below to supervisa the implementation of an agreed
and concentrate so as to ensure the best programme of emvironmental Improverments
use of Ferrexpo's natural resource Emissions in Tonnes based on the Pepartment’s own assessments
* Mirimise use of produchon consumables 2012 20n 2010
such as water, electnaity, natural gas, Total gas emissions 6,332 5,803 6,294
diesel fuel, and explosives in order to Of which
reduce demand for externally sourced Nttrogen dioxide 3203 2475 2922
natural resources Cabonmonowde 2,226 2345 2336
* Use tmely Investment to sustan existing Sulphur dioxide 813 887 037
operations, and develop new projects S0y eoidemssons 3296 3968 3,575
as to aliow mineral resource to be Total MISSIONS 9,628 9771 9889

converted INto new Iron ore reserves
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Corporate Responsibility continued

Communities

Policy

+ Ferrexpo's presence should benefit
those communities around its
operaticns, operations wil benefit
iflocal communities are thaving

+ Ferrexpo strives to be recognised
as an attractive local employer and
a concerned corporate ciizen

*  Ferrexpo will assist in the development of
the micro-economic ermironment within
the communities in which it operates, so
as to ensure that thair dependence on
Ferrexpo for therr ivelihood 1s reduced

s Farrexpo ams to enhance and
have a positive relationship with the
communities around t, to hold an open
dialogue with those communities, and to
ensure that its involvement with them s
cost effective and refevant to ther needs

46

Community Context

The Poltava region, in wihich Ferrexpo’s
mining operations are situated, I1S an area of
predominantly flat agncultural land close to
the River Drieper, one of the largest European
nver systems and an important transport
artery for Ukraine, Belarus and Russia Iron
ore mining In the area dates from the 19th
century, although the major expansion of
mining actwty occurred in the earty 20th
century The town of Komsomolsk was
estabhshed adjacent to the mine to support
the mining operation and ancillary industnes
{transport, power etc) Ferrexpo 1s still by

far the largest employer in the town, which
has a population of around 55,000 people,
with approximately 23% of the working
population of Komsomolsk being employed
by the rmine In one ¢apaaity or another

Goals

¢ Make operational leadership accessible to
the vanous local ciizen groups and
organisations, so as to allow Ferexpo to
assess and pnontise ther concemns about
s various Intiatives

» Provide expertise and voluntary sernices in
order to sustain and/or Improve community
nfrastructure, supphyng financial
assistance where appropnate

« Participate in the devetlopment of modemn
cultural and social programmes and
actmties in the local area

*  Work consistently with local town and
village councils in order to understand ther
expectations of Ferrexpo, so that Ferrexpo

Ferrexpo 18 a mayor sponsor of FG Vorskla a football
club based in the Poitava Regron which plays in

the Ukramne Premuer League As well as providing
important adverisng opportunities for Ferrexpo,
this sponsorship of a club that 1s enthusiasticaly
supported by many people In the local community 1S
a key part of Ferrexpo’s social responsipity strategy

can within reason provide value added
solutions or altematives

* (Gve preference to suitably qualified local
residents when hinng to fill vacancies

Performance

Community Initiatives

FPM

FPM has been a significant invastor in local
cormmurnity intatives from the outset, nvesting
substantial funds in the socid) nfrastructure
of Komsomolsk and the surrounding

area These funds have been spent on
medical faclites, social services, education,
rehgion, culture and sporting actvities, as
well as on the mantenance of certain of

the city's social and cultural structures

Links with the local community are
strengthered by meetings of serior
managsment with heads of schools and
colleges, supporting local celebraton days,
gmving vocational guidance and vacation
work to the students of local schools
(including prowding financial sponsorship

to indndual students whom FPM may
subsequentty employ) and orgarising student
excursions to FPM and its museum

Histoncally, FPM has employed a significant
number of peaple in providing support
services 1o the Group's mining actvibes

In many cases, these services could be
made avallable on a commercial basis to
other enterpnses within the local cormmunity
which i tum Improves the viability and




sustanabiity of the local economy To
encourage this process, FPM has offered
financial and other support to employees
who provide these in-house services so
as to sncourage them to transform intemal
departmerts into stand-alone businesses

FYM

FYM stnves to contnbuts to all spheres of

the life of the local community, believing that
a healthy and flounshing community 1s of
crucial mportance for sustainable growth

in its operatons As arapidly expanding
company, FYM has been able to provide
significant employment apportunities for local
pecple and ams to have good relationships
with the communities near its operations

First-DDSG Logistics Holding GmbH
{formerly Helogistics Holding GmbH)
The Group acquired the nver transport
company Helogistics Holding GmbH (now
renamed First-DDSG Logistics Holding
GmbH ‘First-DDSG’) at the end of 2010
Because of the different nature of its
activities its CSR 1s reported on separately
from that of the Group’s mining operations
Ferrexpo's strategy is to integrate First-
DDSG fully into Ferexpo's CSR cutture

(a} Health and Safety

The accident rate at First-DOSG dunng 2012
was determined by six lost time accidents,
equating to a LTIFR of 811 acaidents per
millon man hours, and a total of 70 lost days,
with no fatalites Accidents were manly due
to injunes causes by handling equipment
dunng frequent barging and meonng
operatons Accidents are reported to and
discussad at monthly meetings with the
senior management of the Group, and steps
are taken to minimise therr reocccurrence

{b) Employees

First-DDSG provides traning for staff so that
they can develop the knowledge, skills and
values necessary for the performance of
ther roles

(c) Environmental

First-DDSG complies with the apphicable
ervironmiental regulabions of the countries
along the Danube In which it operates (for
example, regarding the prevention of fuel
leakages and the grounding of barges}

{cf) Community

As a transport company operating over a
wide area rather than concentrated in one
place, First-DDSG does not at present
consider it appropnate to incur significant
axpenditure on comrunity Inthathves
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Community initiatives achieved in 2012

During 2012, FPM and FYM continued to
pursue the polkcy of fostenng relationships
with the communities around the penmeter
of the mining and processing sites, Including
Komsomolsk, Dmitrovka, and Pryshybe
Work In Kemsomolsk, the town where FPM
and FYM are based, and where much of
the workforce lves, has concentrated on
inmatves designed to increase its attractions
as a place in which to live, and thus create
favourable conditions for the development of
the pool of labour on which Ferrexpo relies

Upgrades to the local and employer
bus transpoert vehicles

More than 300 workers hired

from the local communties
Donation of modern equipment

to school classrcoms

Purchase of advanced

equipment for local hospitals
Continuation of the "My First Job?
programme, and placement for 92
graduates of the local technical schools
Renovations and repars to schools
and sports faciies, and hostsl
accommodation for familes

Refurbishment of schoots 1o aid with
insutabon and upgrade of squipmant
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

Executive Committee

1. Michael Abrahams, CBE DL (75}
Non-executve Chairman

Michael Abrahams joined the Board

on 14 June 2007 He s chairman of the
Prudential Staff Pension Scheme He was
deputy ¢harman of Prudentia! pl until May
2000, and has served as charman and

as a drrector of a number of quoted and
unguoted companies He was charrman

of the London Chnic untit March 2012

2. Kostyantin Zhevago (39)

Chief Exacutive Officer

Kostyantin Zhevago joned the Board as a
Non-executive Director on 14 June 2607
and was appointed Chief Executive on

1 November 2008 Hets uttimately the
controling shareholder of Ferrexpo He has
been a member of the Ukrainian Parliament
since 1998 He Is currently a member of the
Pariamentary Committee on Law Policy
From 2002 until 2012 he was a rmernber of
the permanent delegation of the Ukraiman
Parlament in the Parlamentary Assembly

of the European Council and a member of
the Ukrairvan faction of the Committee for
Parliarentary Cooperation between Ukrane
and the European Union He has previously
served as charman of the management
beard and deputy charman of the supervisory
board of CJSC Commercial Bank Finance
and Credtt (Bank F&C') Between 1893 and
1996, he was financial director of F&C Group
of companies Me s a non-executive director
of New World Resources plc, a subsidiary
of BXR Group Limited He graduated from
the Ky State Economic Unversity in 1996,
specialising In International economics

3 Chnstopher Mawae, FCA (51)

Chief Financial Officer

Chns Mawe joined the Boardon 7
January 2008 He qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant with Coopers and Lybrand
n 19K, hawing gained a First Class
Honours degree n Engneenng He has
held senior financial positions for the past
16 years, first with IMI pic in both the UK
and Europs, and then with Carclo plc as
finance director Before joirvng Ferrexpo
he was finance director of UK Coal plc

4. Oliver Banng (68)

Senior Independent Non-executive Director
Olver Banng joined the Board on 1 December
2007 He has been chaiman of Mwana Afnca
plc since its reverse takeover of Afncan Gold
plc n September 2005 He retired from UBS
Warburg n 2001, having led the International
Mining Group with réspensibility for Afnca and
Europe Previcusly he had been head of the
UBS Warburg mining equity sales team and




was responsible for its respected coverage
and sales capability He was a partner in
Rowe and Pitman befora its merger with SG
Warburg Ha s non-executve charman of
First Afnca Hoidings Limnited, and 1s a non-
exacutive director of BlackRock World Mining
Trust plc, and a member of the Adwvsory
Counci of Sentient Rescurces Fund

& Raffaele (Lucio) Genavese (51)
Independant Non-executive Director

Lucio Genovese joined the Board on 14 June
2007 Ha s the chisf executive officer of Nage
Capital Management, a Swiss-based advisory
and propnetary company specialsng in the
metals and mining sector He is the non-
executive Chaimman of Firestone Diamonds
ple and serves on a number of other boards
of directors He has previously served as
investment officer and a member of the board
of Tay Investment Limited with responsibility
for its Incian public and private investment
pertfolio Pror to that, he held a number of
positions with Glencore International, ncluding
senior mamber of the Copper Division, CEO
of CIS Operations, manager of the Moscow
office and trader in the Ferrous Dvision He

1s a Chartered Accountant (South Afnca}

6 Wolfram Kuoni {46)

Independent Non-executive Director
Wolfram Kuoni joined the Board on 14 June
2007 He 1s the founder and senior partner of
Kuoni Attorneys-at-Law, Zunich, Switzerland,
and serves on a number of boards of
directors He has over 12 years of expenence
Ininvestment banking Pror to 2005, he held
a number of positions within UBS Investment
Banking (Zunch and New York}, including head
of the European Export and Project Finance
Team He also onginated and structured
cross-border acquisitons and equity capital
markets transactions He graduated with a
law degree from the University of Berne, and
holds a doctorate in taw from the University
of Zunch and an MBA from INSEAD In
France He 1s a member of the Zunch Bar

7 lhor Mitiukov (60}

Independent Non-executive Director

lhor Mitiukov joined the Board on 14 June
2007 He s the managing director and head

of country for Ukrane, Morgan Stanley He
was the general director of the Financial Policy
Institute until March 2008 From 2002 to 2005
he served as Extraordinary and Plenipotenhary
Ambassador of Ukrane in the United

Kingdom He also represented Ukraine in the
Intemational Mantme Organisation From 1997
to 2001 he served as Minuster of Finance of
Ukraine and, from 1995 to 1997, as Ukraine's
Special Represantative to the Europesan Unien

In Brussels In 1994, he was deputy govermor
of the National Bank of Ukraine and then
Vice-Pnme Minister of Ukraine for Banking
and Finance Pnior to that, he held vanous
positions at Agrarian-industnal Bank tkraine,
and was appointed as its deputy governor

in 1992 He graduated from the Cybernetcs
Department, Ky State University and has a
PhD in Economics {1985) from the Institute of
Economy, Academy of Sciences (Ukraing)

8. Miklos Salamon (58)

Non-executive Director

Mike Salamon joined the Board on 27 March
2009 He is a non-executive director of Central
Rand Gold, Gem Darnonds and Minera

las Cenizas He was executive chawman of
New World Resources plc, a subsidiary of
BXR Group Limited and managing director

of AMCI Capital, a private equity fund from
2007 untl 2012 With a career spanning more
than 30 years, recently with BHP Billiton, he
has extensive knowledge of the internaticnal
rmining and extractive industres Between
2003 and 20086, he served as an aexacutve
director of BHP Billiton with responsibiites for
the aluminium, copper and nickel businesses
From 2001 to 2006, he also chared BHP
Biliton's Operating Committes, which was
accourtable for nter alia the BHP Biliton
group's heafth, safety and environment,
projects, purchasing and operating excellence
In 2001 he oversaw the merger integration

of Billiton plc and BHP Limited He was a
co-founding director of Biliton plc in 1997, and
oversaw the company’s isting on the London
Stock Exchange in 1997 Before 1997 he held
a number of positions, first at Anglo Amencan
and later in the coal dmisions of Shell and
Gencor Ltd He graduated in 1975 from The
University of the Witwatersrand, Johannesburg
with a degree in Mining Engineernng (Cum
Laude} and obtained an MBA from the London
Business School, Unversity of London in 1981

Executive Committee

1 Kostyantin Zhevago
Chief Executive Officer
{See profile under Board of Brrectors)

2. Chnstopher Mawe, FCA
Chief Financial Officar
(See profile under Board of Directors)

3. Nikolay Goroshko (53)

General Director, FYM

Nikolay Goroshko joined FPM in 1984 He was
Chief Financal Officer of FPM untl Apnl 2007
and Chief Commercial Officer in charge of the
Group’s Growth Progjects in December 2007
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He became the Chief Financial Officer of FYM
upon fts formation n July 2008, and from 1
November 2012 the General Director of FYM
He 15 a graduate of the Ky Institute of National
Economics, specialising in Industnal Planning

4 Jason Keys (41)

Chref Marketing Officer

Jasen Keys joined Ferrexpa in July 2011
He held sales and marketing posts at Rio
Tinto Coal and Iron Ore and at BHP Biliton
Coal for 12 years, and then led BHP Biliton's
Iron Ore commercia) marketing team for
five years before joining Ferrexpo He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce degree irom

the Unversity of Wastern Australia and 1s

a Certified Professional Accountant

5. Nikolay Kladiav {40)

Chief Financial Officer, FPM

Nikolay Kladiev joined the Ferrexpo Group

in June 2005 and FPM in Qctober 2007
Over the course of his career Nikolay Kladiev
spent several years as an audit manager
with Emst & Young ana CFC of a large
Russian factory He holds a Masters in
Internabonal Economic Relations from the
Kywv National University of Economics

6 Viktor Lotous (48)

Head of Managing Board and Chief Operating
Officer, FPM

Viktor Lotous joined FPM in 1986 He became
chief engineer in 1997, and Head of Managing
Board and Chief Operating Ctficer in Apn
2007 He s a graduate of Kryvy Rih Mining
and Ore Institute, and of the Ky State
Economic University, specialising in Finance

7 Bnan Maynard (53}

Group Chief Operating Officer

Bnan Maynard joned the Group in January
2011 He spent 30 years with Vale Inco & Vale
Austrakia in therr nickel and coal operations
respectvely, working In technical, operations
management, and executve roles In 2007

ha was appointed Vice President, Miring in
the Vale Inco Ontarie, Canada operations

He moved to the President’s role in the
Manrtoba, Canada operations in 2008 and
was accountable for the fully Integrated mining,
milling, smelting and refining complex Most
recently he was the Global Coal Director —
Technical & Admenistrative Support (including
finance, sustainability, logistics, technical
services) in the Bnsbane head office of the
Vale Austraha operations He graduated in
1981 from the University of Mantoba, Canada
with a BSc in Geoclogical Engineenng
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Corporate Governance Report

Introduction

The Ferrexpo Board remans commutted to good corporate governance
prachces, In ts management of the affairs of the Group and in its
accountability to shareholders, and keeps under review the Group's
own policies and procedures In these areas As detalled in this report,
the Directors' Report and the reports of the Audit, Norminations and
Remuneration Committees, the Group has implemented an effective
corporate govemance framework and has established Board
committees, internal procedures and Group policies which are
considered vital for the proper management of the Group and geod
govemance of Farrexpo as an intemational business The Board and
managemaent of the Group have a policy of conducting all business
affairs in a fair and transparent manner and in maintaining high ethical
standards in dealings with all relevant parties As a company with a
premium isting on the London Stock Exchange, the Company i1s
subject to the 2010 UK Corporate Gevernance Code {the ‘2010 Code)
The 2010 Cods 15 avallable from the Financial Reporting Council's
website, www fre org uk

Infarmation Pursuant to the EU Takeover Directive

Tha Company has provided the additional information required by

the Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7 2 7 of the UK Listing Authonty
(Owrectors’ interests in shares, appointment and replacement of
Directors, powers of the Directors, restnctions on voting nghts and
nghts regarding control of the company} in the Directors' Report

and the Remuneration Report

Statement of Comphance

{In Accordance with Listing Rule 9 B 6R)

Durng the year to 31 December 2012 the Company complied with
all relevant prowisions of the 2010 Code

The 2010 Code establishes prneiples of good governance in five areas
Leadership, Effectiveness, Accountabilty, Remuneration, and Relations
with Shareholders This report explains how these pnnciples were
applied, with the exception of those relating to Directors’ remunerat:on
which are included in the Remuneration Report on pages 56 to 66

The Group's auditor has reviewed those parts of this statement which
it 15 required to review under the Listing Rutes of the Financia!
Services Authonty

Leadership and EHfactiveness

The Board

The Board 1s composed of a Non-executive Chairman  Michael
Abrahams, two Executive Directors. Kostyantin Zhevago, Chiet
Executve Officer { CEQY), and Chnstopher Mawe, Chief Financial Officer
{CFO"), and five Non-executve Directars Oliver Banng s the Senior
Independent Director The other Non-axecutive Directors are Lucio
Genovese, Wolfram Kuoni, lhor Mtiukov and Mike Salamon

Biographicad details of the Directors at the date of this report ara set
out on pages 48 and 49, and detals of therr membership of Board
committees are set out on pages 52 and 53 A summary of the roles
of the Chairman, the CEQC and the Senior Independent Director is
set out betow
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The structura and business of the Board are designed to ensure that
the Board focuses its attention on strategy, management, governance
and control 1ssues The Beard has a formal schedule of matters which
sets out those matters requinng Board approval and specifically
reserved to 1t for decision (such as approving the Group strategy and
budget, annual and long-term capital expenditure plans, and contracts
for more than a certain monetary amount) The Board i1s responsible for
setting the Group’s objectves and policies, providing effectve
leadership and control required for a public company and for approving
the Group strategy, budgsts, business plans and major capital
expenditure [t also monitars financial performance and critical business
issues Major project approvals, contract awards and key policies and
procedures also require the approval of the Board

Certain aspects of the Board's responsibiities have been delegated to
appropnate committees to ensure compliance with the Companies Act
2006, FSA Listng Rules and the 2010 Code Itis the responsibility of
the CEO and the Executve Committee to manage the day-to-day
running of the Group The Board Is supported by the Executve
Committee which meets approxmatelty monthly All of the information
that 1s submitted to the Board by management is reviewed and
approved by the Executive Committee

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who 1s responsible for ensuning that Board procedures are
followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with
The Company Secretary 1s also responsible for adwising the Board
on governance 1Ssues

Directors have the nght to request that any concems they have are
recorded In the approprate committee or Board minutes

The Board met six tmes dunng the reporting penod Attendance by
Directors at Board meetings and Board committee meetings 1S shown
on pages 52 and 53 All Board meetings are held in Switzerand

Charrman, CEQ and Senior Independent Director

The roles of the Chairman and CEO are held by different indwiduals
The dmsion of responsibilties between the Charman and CEQ has
been clearly estabhshed in wnhing and agreed by the Board

The Chairman 1s responsible for leadership of the Board, ensunng its
effectiveness, sething its agenda and ensunng effectve commurucaton
with shareholders The Chairman also ensures that thereis a
constructve relationship between the Executive and Non-executive
Directors From tme to tirme the Chairman holds meetings with the
Non-executve Directors without the Executve Directors present

The Charrman's other current responsibilities are set out In the
biographical notes on pages 48 and 49 Thers has been no increase
In those commitments dunng the reporting penod

The role of the CEQ 15 to prowide leadership of the executive teamn,
to develop proposals for the Board to consider, and to overses and
implement Board-approved actions Details of Mr Zhevago's other
appointments are set out In the biographical notes on pages 48
and 49




The Senior Indepencent Directar, Oliver Banng, in conunction with the
other independsnt Non-executive Directors, assists In communications
with shareholders conceming corporate govemance matters if that

is required He also charrs the Nominations Committee and the
Committee of Independent Directors At least once a year, the Senior
Independent Director meets the Non-executive Directors, without the
Charman present, to evaluate the Charman's performance

Board Balance and Independence

The Board considers that its membership of two Executive Directors,
a Non-executive Charrman and five Non-executive Owectors, four

of whom are deemed by the Board to be independent, Is of an
appropnate size and structure to manage the Group in an effective
and successful manner It also considers that no single Director can
dominate or unduty Influence decision making The Relatonship
Agreement with Kostyantin Zhevago specifically deals with decision
making More detalls are given below

The Board has carefully considered the guidance cntena on
independence of Non-executve Directors under the 2010 Code

in tha opimien of the Board, ali the Non-executive Directors bnng
independence of judgement and character to the Board and to the
Board committees on which they st The Board considers that, with the
exception of Mike Salamon who untll Septerber 2012 represented a
significant sharehclder, all of the Non-executive Directors as at the date
of this report are Indapendent of the Group within the terms of promsion
B11 of the 2010 Code

Lucio Genovese and Wolfrarm Kuoni are required to devote more time
to therr duttes as Non-executive Directors of Ferrexpo AG than had
hean expected at the tme of ther appointment The Board therefore
increased ther remuneration with effect from 1 January 2009 {as set
out In the Remuneration Report on page 66) In reaching this decision
the Board also concluded, n the ight of the supervisory and non-
exacutive nature of therr duties as directors of Ferrexpo AG, that both
Mr Genovese and Mr Kugni remained independent in character and
Judgement, as defined by provision B11 of the 2010 Code The Board
believes this still to be the case

Mr Zhevago 1s a baneficiary of The Minco Trust which owns 100% of
Favamotnico Sar1, the major shareholder in the Group Consequently
ha, The Minco Trust and Fevamotinico S arl have entered into a
Relationship Agreement with the Company to ensure that the Group ts
capable of carrying on its business iIndependentty, that transactions and
refationships between the Group, Fevamotinico S arl, The Minco Trust
and Mr Zhevago are at amm's length and on normal commercial terms,
and that there shall be at all imes a majonty of Directors independenrt

of Fevamotince S arl, The Minco Trust and Mr Zhevago on the Board
{the ‘Relatonship Agreement’)
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Conflicts of Interest

A procedure 1s in place to deal with Directors’ confiicts of interest and
the recording, reporting and, where appropriate, approval of related
party transactions and review of relevant disclosures This procedure

1S 1n Ine wath pubhished guidance, the Company’s Articles of Association
and the provisions In section 175 of the Companies Act 2006 on
conflicts of nterest Schedules of a Director's actual or potential
conflicts and related party transactions have been compiled based on
disclosures made by the Director These are updated and reviewed on
a regular basis by the Executive Committee, the Executive Related
Party Matters Committee (ERPMC’) (which is composed of certain
members of the Executve Committee and other members of senior
management) and the Committee of Independent Directors ('CID) Any
changes to the schedules are noted at the begnning of tha next Board
meeting The CID has delegated authonty to carefully consider and (if
deemed appropriate in the circumstances} approve on behalf of the
Board transactions where there 1s a nsk of a conflict of interests This
procedure operates effectively, and the Group undertaikes to follow
emergng best practice n this area

The Board has establshed the CID to consider and, If appropnate,
apprave related party transactions and transactons where there is
ansk of a confiict of interest to the extent foreseen within Chapter 11
of the Listng Rules {(whether in relation to Mr Zhevago or any other
Director}, and to consider any matters referred to i concermung the
operation of the Relationship Agreement and ensure that decisions
are taken objectively 1 the Company's interest This Committes also
oversees anti-ornbery compliance matters on behalf of the Board

Appointments to the Board and Re-election

Under its terms of reference the Nomnations Committee is responsible
for leading the process for appointments to the Board The process for
election and re-election of Directors 1s set outin the Directors’ Report
on page 67

Information and Professional Development

Directors recewnve bnefing notes and reports for ther consideration in
advance of each Board meeting, ncluding reports on the Group’s
operations to ensure that they are up to date on the latest
developments and are able to make fully informed decisions These
notes and reports take into account the factors set out in section 172
of the Companies Act 2006 (Directors' duty to promote the success
of the Company), which are considered by the Executive Committee
when making any proposals and recommeandations to the Board
Decisions made by the Board are set within the framework of the
Directors' statutory duty to promote the success of the Company
for the benefit of its members as a whole

Professional development and traning are provided in a number of
ways, including updates given to the Board on changes and proposed
changes In laws and regulations affecting the Group Site wsits to
ensurs Directors are familiar with the Group's operations are held at
least annually, and Directors may visit the operations of the Group
independently to the extent that they feel this 1s necessary Dunng

the year, as In previous years, the Board spent two days wsiting the
site n Ukraine
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All Cirectors may take independent professional advice at the expense
of the Group in the furtherance of ther duties On appaointment, all
Directors are advised of ther duties, responsibilites and habilities as a
Director of a public isted company In addition an appropnate nduction
programme 1s provided to a Director on appointment taking into
consideration the Individual qualfications and expenence of the
Cirector

Performance Evaluation

A process of evaluation of the Board and its Audt and Remuneration
Committees has been conductad in 2012 by the Chamen of these
bodies This 1s done by the Chairman of the relevant body interviewing
his colleagues whilst refeming 1o a questionnarre covenng matters
ncluding the balance and dversity of the body's membership, the
body's and its ndivdual members' effectiveness and performance (in
terms of contnbution to good governance), and the admnistration and
conduct of the body's business, and then discussing his findings with
the body as a whole The conclusicn of the evaluation process was that
the Board as a whole and its committees had functoned effectively
dunng the year, and no particular areas were identified as needing
improvement The mixture of skills and expenence on the Board and
the commitiees was felt to be appropriate

The Board's iIntention 1s to hold an externally-facilitated assessment
once every three years, In fine with the 2010 Code The first of these
15 now In progress and will be reported on in the 213 Annual Report

The Senior Independent Director and the other Non-executive Drectors
have evaluated, and will continue to monitor, the performance of the
Charrman

Board Committees

The Board has a number ¢f committees consisting of certain Directors,
and in the case of the Executive Committee and Corporate Safety and
Sociel Responsibility (CSR') Committeg, certain senior managers, to
which specific responsibiities have been delegated and for which
written terms of reference have been agreed The terms i referenca

of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and CSR Committees are
available for inspecton on the Group's website at www ferrexpo com
Membership of the various committees, including the Chairman

of each committee, 1s shown below

The Board perodically reviews the membership of its committees
1o ensure that committes membership is refreshed

In view of the lapse of five years since the IPO It was decided in 2012
to adjust the composition of some of the committees  This was done
in August 2012, when Oliver Banng was appointed as an additional
member of the Audit Cemmittee and Wolfram Kuoni replaced
Michael Abrahams as a member of the Remuneration Committee

The Group provides the committees with sufficient resources to
undertaks their duties, Including access to the Company Secretary

Tables of attendance of members of the Board and its pnncipal

committees at meetings during the financial penod together with
a summary of the terms of reference are set out below
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Board
Six Board meetings werea held dunng the year

Attendance
Board members record
M Abrahams Nan-executive Chairman B6/6
K Zhevago Chief Executwve Officer B6/6
C Mawe Chief Financial Officer 6/6
O Baring Senor Independent Non-executive 6/6

Director

L Genovesa Independent Non-executive Director 6/6
W Kuoni Independent Non-executive Director 6/6
| Mitiukov Independent Non-executive Director 6/6
M Salamon Non-executive Director 5/6
Audit Committee
Four Audit Committee meetings were held dunng the vear

Attendance
Committee members record
W Kuoni Chairman 4/4
O Barning' 1N
L Genovese 414
| Mitiukov 4/4

1 Appoinied to the Committes in August 2012

Under its terms of reference the Audit Committee 1s required to meet at
least three tmes a year at the most appropnate times n the reporting
and audt process The Committee monitors the integnty of the financial
statements of the Group, including its annual and ntenm reports,
Intenm management statements, prelminary results announcements
and any other formal announcement relating to its financial
performance, reviewing the significant financial reporting 1ssues and
Judgemerits that they contan The Audit Committee 1s also responsible
for reviewing interrat controls and nsk management systems, whistle-
blowing procedures and internal audit processes, and oversees the
relationship with the external auditors

Remuneration Committee
Frve Remuneration Committee meetings were held dunng the year

Attendance
Commitiee members record
L Genovese Chairman 5/5
M Abrahams! 4/4
W Kuong 11
| Mitiukov 5/5
0 Baring 5/5

1 Resgned from the Committes i August 2012
2 Appaintad o the Committes in August 2012

The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice a year, as required
by its terms of reference, and 1s responisible for reviewang and approving
all aspects of remuneration for the Executive Directors and members of
the Executive Committee  Further detalls concerning the Remuneration
Committee are set out In the Remuneration Report on page 56




Nominations Committee
One Nominations Committee meeting was held dunng the year

Aftendance
Committee membears racord
O Banng Chairman 171
M Abrahams in
W Kuoni in
| Mitiukov ifal
K Zhevago 11
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CIiD
Five CID mestings were held dunng the year

Attendance
Comrmittea membaers record
QOBanng Charrman 5/5
M Abrahams 5/5
L Genovess 5/5
W Kuani 5/5
| Mitiukov 5/5

Nominations Committee Report

The Norminations Committee meets at least once a year, as required
by its terms of reference The role of the Nominations Committee 1s
to identfy and nominate, for the approval of the Board, candidates
to fill Board vacancies, having due regard to the need for appropnate
balance and diversity (inctuding of gender) on the Board

No vacancles arose during 2012, however, when seeking to recrut
new Board members in future the Committee will have regard to the
recommendations of the Davies Report In accordance with the need
for the non-executive membership of the Board to be ‘refreshed’ from
time to tirme, the Commuttea will dunng 2013 start the search for new
directors, with a view to making new appointments and retiring current
directors from 2014 cnwards

Ferrexpo operates equal-opportunities policies with the am of
encouraging the employmant of women wherever this 1s reasonable
and practicable, so that over time wornen will increase as a proportion
of the work force and of the pool from which senior appointments are
made The Committes will consider the Board's diversity pohicy n 2013

CSR Committee
One C3R Committee meeting was held dunng the year

Attendance
Committea members racord
B Maynard Chairman 11
M Abrahams 11
V Lotous ifal
K Zhevago 11

The CSR Committee's role 1s to formulate and recommend to the
Board the Group's policy on comporate safety and social responsioility
1ssues as they affect the Group's operations In particular it focuses

on ensuring that effective systems and standards, procedures and
practices are In place in the Group The CSR Committee 1s responsible
In conunction with the Executve Committee for reviewing
management's investgation of ncidents or accidents that occur in
order to assess whether pelicy mprovernents are required Further
detals concerming the actvities of the CSR Committee are set out

in the Corporate Social Responsibiity Review on page 40

The CID 1s composed of the Senior Independent Director (Olver
Banng), the Charman ¢f the Board, and the three other Independent
Directors The Committee considers and, If appropnate, authonses
on behalf of the Board related party transactions within tha terms

of Chapter 11 of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority
and otherwise ensures comphance with Chapter 11 and with the
Relationship Agreement entered into between Fevamotnico S arl,
Mr Znevago, The Minco Trust and the Company The CID holds
delegated authonty to consider and, f appropnate, authonse
transactons where there 1s a nsk of a conflict of interest of any member
of the Board under the relevant section of the Cornpanies Act 2006

The Committes's terms of reference also cover the oversight of
ant-bribery procedure mplementation

The Executive Committes

The Executve Committee 1S a key decision making body of the Group
its members are detaled on page 49 It s responsible for managing
and taking all matenal decisions relating to the Group apart from those
that are reserved for the entire Board It meets regularty dunng the year
No meetings are held in the United Kingdem It 1s the responsibility of
the Executive Committee to ensure its duties are at all times set in the
context of the requirements of the Schedule of Matters Reserved for
the Board The Board has delegated to the Executive Committee
responsibilty for the execution of Board-approved strategies for the
Group, for ensunng that appropnate levels of authonty are delegated to
senior management, for the review of organisational structures and for
the development and implementation of Group policies

Accountability and Audrt

Financial Reporting

The Board 1s aware of its responsitality to present a balanced and
clear assessment of the Group's financial position and prospects
This assessment I1s prmanly prowvided in the Chairman's and Chief
Executve’s Statement and the Financial Review contaned in this
Annual Report Staterments of the respective responsibilities of the
Directors and auditors are set out on pages 71 and 72

Audit Committee Report

The 2010 Code recommends that all members of the Audit Committee
are independent Non-executive Directors, and that at least ons
member should have recent and relevant financial expenence The
Audit Committee complies with these requirements, and all members
of the Audit Committee are considered to possess appropnate
knowledge and skills Woifrar Kuoni, an independent Non-axecutive
Director, 1s Chairman of the Audit Committee The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee and attendance by members at its meetings
are outined on page 52
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Dunng the reporting penod the Audit Committee met four tmes, and its

actmties ncluded

* Reviewing with Ernst 8 Young LLP, the external auditors, the annual
and intenm financial statements and asseciated documents and the
preliminary resutts statement, ensunng that all matenal information
was property and clearty disclosed

* Reviewng with Ernst & Young LLP the scope of the audit work
proposed for 2012 and audit fees

* Reviewng the nsk matnx at each meeting, and discussing with the
Head of Internal Audit the internal audst plan and the findings of the
internal audit reviews conducted dunng the year

* Reviewing the Group's internal controls and nsk management
systems

+ Reviewing the Group's whistie-blawing arrangements

* Reviewng the effectiveness of the extemnal auditors, the quality of
ther auditing work, ther ndependence and the non-audit services
they provided, and considenng whether to recommend their
reappointment

A statement on the Board's position regarcing the Group as a gong
concern 1s contained in the Diractors’ Report on page 70

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal
control, which includes nsk management and reviewing its
effectiveness The systern of intemal control is designed to identfy,
evaluate and manage significant nsks asscciated with the achievernent
of the Group's objectives Because of the limitations nherent in any
system of internal control, this system is designed to meet the Group's
particular needs and the nsks to which it 1s exposed, rather than
elminate nsk altogether Consequently it can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The Board has delegated its responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of these controls to the Audit Committee The Audit
Committee reviews these systems on an annual basis The day-to-day
responsibility for rnanaging nsk and the maintenance of the Group's
systern of Internal control 1S collectively assumed by the Executive
Committee Key nsk and control issues are reviewed regularty by the
Executive Committee

On behalf of the Board, the Executive Committee has established a
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nsks
faced by the Group in accordance with the Tumbull Guidance This
process was followed throughout 2012 and up to the date of approval
of this Annual Report The Group has also adopted a nsk-based
approach in establishing the Group’s systarn of intemnal control and m
reviewing its effeciveriess To assist In managing key internal nsks, it
has established a number of Group-wide procedures, policies and
standards and has set up a framework for reporting matters of
significance

Full details of the Group’s policy on nsk and uncertainties are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements on pages 120 to 128 Ses also the
Rusks secbon of the Financial Review on pages 2010 23

The Board has, through the Executive Committee and the Audit

Committae, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal controls
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As a result of the continual review of intemal control procadures, several
key etements have been established within the Group to ensure a
sound system of intemal control which is described in detal below

These include

* Regular review of nsk and identfication of key nsks at the Executve
Committee which are reviewed by the Audit Committea and by the
Board

* Clearly defined orgarsational and reporting structure and hrmits of
authonty for transaction and investment decisions, Including any
with related parties, applied to subsidiary compartes including FPM
and FYM, the key Ukrainian subsidianes, and the Helogistics Group

+ Clearly defined information and financial reporting systems, including
regular forecasts and a ngorous annual budgeting process with
reporting against key financial and operational milestones

« Rigorous Investment appraisal underpinned by the budgetary
procass, where capital expenditure Imits are apphed to delegated
authonty hmits

+ AnInvestment Committee (an executive sub-committes) meets
once or twice a month to approve caprtal expendituras within imits
delegated by the Executive Committee and the Board

* The Financial Fisk Management Committee {{FRMC') (an executive
sub-committes) reviews financial information and managemant
accounts, and meets monthly

» Clsarly defined treasury policy menitered and applied in accordance
with pre-set Imits for Investment and management of the Group's
tquid resources including a separate treasury function

+ |nternal audit by an in-housa internal auditor based in Ukrane (see
below) who monitors, tests and improves internal controls operating
within the Group at all levels and reports directly to the CFO and tha
Audit Committee

» A standard accounting manual s used by the finance teams
throughout the Group, which ensures that information 1s gathered
and presented in a consistent way that faciltates the production of
the consoldated financial staterments

* A framework of transaction and entity level controls to prevent and
detect matenal error and loss

s Ant-fraud measures through an independent department operating
In the Group's key operating subsidiary FPM

» A whistle-blowing policy 1s in place under which staff may in
confidence, via an Independent, secure website, raise concerns
about financial or other impropnety

Treasury

Details of the Group treasury policy are referred to in the Charmar's
and Chief Executive Officer's Statement on page 14, the Risks section
of the Financial Review section on pages 20 to 23 and i the notes to
the financial statements on pages 120 to 128

Investment Proposals

A budgetary process and authonsation levels regulate captal
expanditure For expenditure beyond specified levels, detaled wntten
proposals are submitted 1o the investment and Executve Committees
and then i necessary to the Board for approval




Intermal Audit

A Group-wide internal audit function has been established, and
operated dunng 2012 using an expenenced intemal audrtor based In
Ukraine but Independant of operational management, who reported
directly to the CFO and the Audit Committee

Anintermal audit programme for 201214, approved by the Audit
Committee, focuses on the areas of nsk identfied by the nsk reviews
carned out on an ongoing basis by the Executve Committes and the
Board

Auditor Independence

The Audit Committee and Board place great emphasts on the
independence and objectmty of the Group's external auditors,

Ernst & Young LLP, when performing ther role in the Group's reporting
to shareholders

Tha effectiveness of the audit process and the overall performance,
independence and objectmty of the auditors are reviewed annually by
the Audit Committee, taking into account the views of management,
and the outcome of this review 15 relayed to the relevant partners of
Ernst & Young The Audit Committee has regular discussions with the
axternal auditors, without management being present

The Audit Committee has approved separate policies in respect of the
provision of non-audit services and employment of former employees
of the auditors These policies ensure that the external auditors are
restricted to provicing only those services which do not compromise
thesr ndependence The policy on the provision of non-audt services
prohibits the use of the auditors for the promsion of transaction or
payroll accounting, outsourcing of internal audrt and valuation of
matenal financial statement amounts Any assignment that i1s propesed
to be given to the auditors above a value of US$500,000 must first be
approved by the Audit Commitiee or its Charman The auditors are
also expected to provida to the Audit Committee information about
policies and processes for maintaning independence and moritonng
comphance with relevant current requirements, including those
regarding the rotation of audit partners and staff, the level of fees

that the Group pays in proportion to the overall fee income of the firm,
and other regulatory requrrements  The Committee reviewed these
arrangements dunng the year and believes that they are stil
appropnate

Fees for audit-related and non-audi-related services performed by the
extemal auditors ars shown in note 9 to the financial statements on
page 94
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Recommendation on Reappointment of Auditors

The Committee considered whather Ernst & Young (who have held
office as auditors since 2007) should be propased for reappontrment
by the shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting, or whether
the audit should be put out to tender as a matter of policy Taking Into
account therr general sausfaction with the audntors and the recent
rotation of audit partners, the Committee agreed to recommend to the
Board that Ernst & Young should be proposed for reappointment for
another year

Implementation of Requirements of UK Bnbery Act 2010

At the time of the introduction of the Bnbery Act In July 2011, and
folowing a thorough nsk assessment and the establishrment of due
dilgence procedures for business countarparties, all employeas were
informed {and gven instruction where necessary) about the policies
and procedures introduced in order to ensure cormpliance with the Act
(which took the form of the Group Policy on Brbery and Corruption}
The Board delegated responsibility for implementing the Pokcy and
monitonng ris effectveness to an anti-bnbery compliance officer
{currently the CFO), who reports to the CID at its meetings and makes
any recommeandations ansing from the meetings to the full Board

Relations with Shareholders

The Board attaches great importance to effectve communication with
shareholders Executive Directors and senior executives have frequent
discussions with institutional shareholders on a range of 1ssues affacting
the Group's performance, which include meetings following the
announcerment of the annual and intenm results The CEQ, the CFO,
and the Head of Investor Relations meet major shareholders to discuss
performance, strategy and govemancs, and the Non-executive
Directors are available for discussions with shareholders If required

4 P Morgan Cazenove, the Group's brokers, also provide regular
reports to the Board on changes to the shareholdings of the Group’s
major investors information about tha views of major Investors 1s
provided to the Board on a regular basis by the CEQ, the CFO and
the Head of Investor Relations

The Board uses the Annual General Meeting (AGM’) each year to
commurnicate with shareholders and welcomes ther participation The
Charmen of the Audit, Rernuneration and Nominations Committees
endeavour 10 be present at the AGMs to answer questions from
shareholders Notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to
shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting The voting
results of the AGM are avallable on the Company's website following
the meeting

Information on matters of interest to investors can be found on the
Group's website at www ferrexpo com

The Board approved this report on 12 March 2013
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Remuneration Report

Introduction

This Report has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board and complies with the requirements of the bisting
Rutes of the UK Listng Authonty, Schedule 8 of the Large and
Medum-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
fegulations 2008 and the UK Corporate Governance Coda Part A of
the report, which 1s not subject to audit, sets out the Company's
remuneration policy Part B provides detals of remuneration and share
mncentves of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2012 As
requred by Schedule 8 of the Companias Act, only subsections entitied
Pensioris 2010 LTIP award vesting, 2012 LTIP awards granted and
Emoluments table of Directors of Pant B have been subject to audit
This R=port wi'l be subject to an advisory shareholder vote at the
Company's 2013 Annual General Mesting

Summary Statement

A statement to Shareholders from the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to tntroduce the Diractors
Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2012 As1s
made clear elseevhers it the Annuat Report, in 2012 Ferraxpo
performed againin ine with s strategic objectves keeping costs under
congol and maintanmg producton and sales volumes and expanding
productive potential wath the opening of a second ming This was
aganst a backgrouna of cost inflation and volatie ron ore prices The
Remunerabon Committee beleves that this performance is fairdy
reflected in exacuive remuneration cutcomes for the year, as setout in
this report,

It s the policy of the Board to align executive and shareholder interasts
by knking & high proportion of remuneration to performance, basing
rewards on a balanced portfolo of performance measures, and
assessing them agamnst the relevant market sc as to ensure that they
attract, motivate and retain talented executives The Chief Executive
Ofticer's incentive 1s derved entirsly from fis sharehaolding in the
Company, and his salary 18 pad at a flat rate of US$240,000 per year
which 1s donated to chanty The Board considers this large
sharenoldng in the bus.ness o be a significant factor in aligning the
performance of the CEQ wath other sharsholders' interests and s
satisfied that this structure 1s appropnate  The remuneration of the
Executve Dhrectors 1s disclosed in focal currency and aliows year-on-
year companson, un nfluencead by exchange rate fluctuaticns on
notienal translation into US Dollars

Whilst the new regulations governing the reporting and shareholder
approval of executive remuneration do not come nito torce untl
Ferrexpo’s 2013 financal year wa have incorporated a number of
changas this year to help make our Remuneration Report clearer and
easier tounderstand In summary, this report s dvided into two distinct
sections the first {A) outhnes Ferrexpo's forward-looking remuneration
poficy settng out components of pay, haw they are linked to the
business strategy and ncentve opporunites for the Executive
Directors The second (B} reviews how the policy was implemented in
2012 and includes a table showing a singte figure of tatal remuneration
for Executve Directors

Lucio Genovese
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Part A: Policy Section

Remuneration Commuttee

Terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee have been
approved by the Board and its duties include the determinaton of the
polcy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and the mermbers
of the Executve Committee as wall as their specific remuneration
packages, including pension nghts and, where applicable, any
compensation payments In cetermining such poficy, the Remuneration
Committee 1s expected to take nto account all factors which it deems
necessary to ensure that members ¢ the senior axecutive
management of the Group are provided with appropnate incentives to
encourage strong perfermance and are in a far and responsibie
rnanner rewarded for their indnadual contnbutions to the success of the

Company

The compositon of tne Remuneration Cornmittea andt its terms of
reference comply with tha provis.ons of the Corporate Governance
Code'and are avaiable for inspecton on the Company’s webaie at
www ferrexpo com

ey Pnnciples of the Remuneration Policy

Ferrexpo's remuneration policy 1s designed to he'p attract motvata and

retan talented axecubves to help dnve the future growthand

perfornance of the business The polcy ams 10,

« align executve and shareholder interests,

¢ link a high proportion of remuneratton to performance,

¢ reward a balanced portfoto of performance measures (e g relative
Total Shareho'der Retum ( TSR') outperformanca of secior peers,
annual business prionties and indwvidual performance) and

« provile competiive rewards assessed aganst the refevant market
to attract mctivate and retain talented executives

in determining the Company $ remuneration potcy, the Remuneration
Committee takes into account the particular business context of the
Ferrexpo Group, the industry segment the geography of s oparations,
the relevant talent market for each executive and best practice
guideiines set by nshitutional shareholder bodies

The Remuneration Comimittee will be keeping under review
remuneration and incentiva plan polcy dunng the forthcoming year The
Remuneration Committee wil continue to give fulf consideration to the
prnciples set cut in the UK Corporate Governanea Coda in relation to
Directors' remuneration and to the guidance of wvestor relations

bodies




Summary of Ferrexpo’'s Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors
This section of our report summanses the key components of remuneration for Executive Directors

Purpose and link to strategy
Fixed pay

Base salary

To attract and retan
talent by ensunng base
salaries are competiive
in the market in which the
Indnadual I1s employed

Operation

Base salanes are reviewed
annually, with reference

to the Indwictual’s

role, expenence and
parformance, business
performance, satary levels

Onportunity

Base salary increases are
appled in ine with the
outcomne of the review

Performance metrics

Business and indmvdual
performance are
considerations n
setting base salary
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Changes for 2013

No changes to the
policy for 2013

Latest salary increases
were effective 1 January
2013 and are set out 1n the

for equivalent posts at Report on Remuneration
relevant comparators, In 2012 on page 61
cost of ving and inflation,
and the range of salary
increases applying
across the Group
Pension
To provide retrement Executive Directors are Penston plan entitles Not performance related None
benefits members of the Ferrexpo members to a fixed
AG pension plan which pension depending on a
IS a mandatory nsurance  cornversion percentage
scheme under Swiss ratio fixed by the Swiss
law, prowided for all govermnment, with the
employees of Ferraxpo AG  employer hable to
make up any deficit
Benefits
Designed to be competitve  Benefits include life Benefits values Not performance related None
in the market nwhichthe  insurance, annual vary by role and are

indmidual 1s smployved

leave, and medical
insurance Where
appropriate, alowances
for accommodation,
relocation, and tax
advice may be offered

reviewed penodically

Variable pay

STIP

AIms to focus management
efforts on delivery of annual
business pnonties, based
on a scorecard of key
performance indicators
refating to both Company
and indmidual performance

KPIs are set at the start of
the year and are weighted
to reflect the contnbution
of each executive

At the end of the year,

the Remuneration
Committee determines
the extent to which these
have been achieved

The Remuneration
Committee has the abiity
to exercise discrstion o
adjust for factors outside
management control

The CEC does
not participate

For the GFO, maximum
(‘'stretch’) STIP opportunity
of 150% of salary,

target STIP opportunity

of 100% of salary

KPls selected, and therr
respective weightings,
vary each year depending
on strategic pnonties

Measures used for

the STIP are set out

n the Report on 2012
Rernuneration on page 62

No change to the policy
except for minor changes
Inweighting of measures
as set out on page 62
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Purpose and ink 10 strategy
LTIP

Aims to motvate
participants to delver
appropriate longer-term
returns to shareholders

by encouraging them to
see themselves not Just as
managers but as part-
owners of the business

Operation

The Remuneration
Committee has the ability
o grant performance
shares or market value
options under the LTIP

To date, the Remuneration
Committee has only
awarded performance
shares to executives

The award levels and
performance conditions
on which vesting depends
are reviewed from tme

to ime to ensure they
remain appropriate

Dimdends accrue on
performance shares over
the vesting penod, and are
pad on shares that vest

The CEQ does not
participate

Oppartunity

For the CFO, the LTIP
provides for annual awards
of performance shares and
options up to an aggregate
limrit of 2009 of salary in
normal arcumstances This
it may be exceeded in
excephonal crcumstances,
eg recrutment

Actual awards are made
on the basis of a smilar
number of shares to
participants at comparable
levels in the organisation

Parformance metncs

The vestng of awards

15 usually subject to

+ continued employment

+ the Company's
performance over a
three-year performance
penod

The parformance
measures appled to LTIP
awarcs are reviewed from
time to time to ensure they
remain appropnate and
aligned with shareholder
interests Measures

used for the 2012 LTIP
award, and expected

for the 2013 LTIP award,
are set out In the Report
on 2012 Remuneration
on pages 62 to 64

Changes for 2013

None expected

Share Ownership Guidelines

With effect from the grant of 2010 LTIP awards (vesting n 2013), Executive Directors and members of the Executive Committee are encouraged, in
line with the growing practica among FTSE 250 companies, to buld up a holding of shares of equivalent value to a year's salary (in the case of
Executive Directors) or six months' salary (for other members of the Executive Committee} Executives will be encouraged to retain therr vested
LTIP shares on an after-tax basis unt the applicable guidelne levelis achisved

Pay-for-Performance Scenario Analysis

The CEQ does not participate in any incerntive plan, for reasons stated in the introguction to this report Under all scenanos, therefore, tus
remuneration, which 1s donated to chanty, remains as set out In Section B of this raport For the remaining executiva director, the graph below
provides estmates of the potential future reward opportunity and the potential split between the different elements of remuneratien under three
different performance scenarios, ‘Below threshold’, ‘Target’ and 'Stretch’
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In llustrating potential reward opportunites the following assumptions have been made

Scenano STIP e Fixed pay
Stretch Maximum STIP (150%  Performance warrants
of salany) full vesting'

Target Ontarget STIP{100%  Performance warrants Latest known base

of salary) threshold vesting {20%) | salary, pension, benefits
Below threshold No STIP payable Threshold not achieved
{ri)

1 Excludes increase in value ansing from share price growth

Potential reward opportunites lllustrated above are based on the policy which will appty in 2013, appled to the base salary in force at 1 January
2013 For the STIP, the amounts illustrated for the CFO are those potentially recewable in respect of performance for 2013 For tha LTIP awards, the
award opportunity for the CFO 1s assumed to reman the same nurmber of shares as in 2012 (e 120,000 shares for the CFO) and the face value 1s
estmated using the average share price over Q4 2012 of 215 pence) It shoutd be noted that the LTIP awards do not normally vest until the end of
three years folowing the beginning of the year n which they were granted

Employee Context

In making remunerahon decisions, the Remuneration Committee also considers the pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group Pror
to the annual pay review, the Remuneration Committee receves a report from the CEO setting out changes to broader employee pay This forms
part of the basis for determining Executive Director remuneration

Remuneration of Senior Executives Balow the Board
The palicy and practice with regard to the remuneration of senior executives below the Board 1s consistent with that for the Executive Directors,
except that they may particopate in local, discretionary plans

Santor executives parbcipate in the LTIP with the same performance measures applied as for Executive Directors In exceptional circumstances,
such as recrutment, long-term incentive awards may be granted without performance conditions to participants below the Board

Details of Executive Directors’ Service Contracts

The Executive Directors are emplayed under contracts of employment with Ferrexpo AG, a Group company The Remuneration Committee sets
notice penods for the Executive Directors at 12 months or less, which reduces the Ikaelhood of having te pay excessive compensation in the event
of poor performance The pnncipal terms of the Executive Directors' service contracts (which have no fixed term) are as follows Mr Zhevago's
service contract with the Company 1s tenminable on not less than six months’ notice to be given by the Company or by the executve Mr Mawe's
service contract with the Gompany 1s terminable on not less than 12 months’ notice to be given by the Company or not less than six months’
netice to be given by the executve

Notice penod

From From
Executive Director Poshion Date of contract  employer  emplayee
K Zhevago CEO 1 November 2008 6months 6 months
C Mawe CFQ 7 January 2008 12months 6 months

Exit Payments Policy
The policy on tarmination payments Is to pay no more than what may be stipulated in an individual’s service contract

The Executive Directors’ service contracts contain a provision exercisable at the option of the employer to pay an amount on early termination of
employment equal to the respective notice penod If the Company elects to make such a payment {which in practice it wall do if the speed and
certanty afforded by this provision are thought to be In the bast interests of shareholders), the Executive Director will be entiled under his contract
to recewe all companents of his remuneration, allowances and expenses far the extent of the notice period including (only In the case of Mr Mawe)
the STIP, which reflects the practice in the Company at the time when Mr Mawe was appointed

it 15 the Remuneraton Committee's policy to review contractual arangements prior t0 new appaintments in the ight of developmants in
best practice

Unvested LTIP awards held by leavers normally lapse However, if the individual s considered a ‘good’ teaver e g for reasons of death, il-health,
injury or disabiiity, his employing company ceasing to be a member of the Group, the business (or part of the business} in which he 1s employed
being transferred to a transferea which is not a member of the Group, or any other reason which the Remuneration Committee In its absolute
discretion permits), any cutstanding LTIP awards will be pro-rated for tme and performance The Remuneration Committee retains discretion to
alter these provisions {as permitted by the relevant Plan Rules) on a case-by-case basis following a review of circumstances, in order to ensure
farness to both sharsholders and participants
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Extemnal Appointments

It is the Board's policy to allow the Executive Directors to accept directorships of other quoted companies provided that they have obtained the
consent of both the Chaiman of the Beard and Kostyantin Zhevage Any such directorships must be formally notfied to the Board Detalls of
external directorships of quoted companies held by Executive Directors, along with fees retained, are as follows

Fees
Executrva Director Company Rolels) held retaned
K Zhevago New World Resources plc Non-axecutive Director Nif

C Mawe - - -

1 Thefee s donated to vanous chanties

Relative Importance of Spending on Pay
The graph below shows Ferrexpo's profit after tax, dvidend. and total employee pay expenditure {this iIncludes pension, vanable pay, and sociat
secunty) for the financial year ends 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012, and the percentage change

Considerations of Shareholder Views
The following table shows the results of the adwisory vote on the 2011 Remuneration Report at the 24 May 2012 AGM It 1s the Remuneration
Committee’s policy to consuit with maor sharsholders pror to any maor changes to its executive remuneration structure

For Against
9944% 0 45%

Votes withheld (which are not votes in law and are therefore not counted In the calculaton of votes cast for or agamst a resolution) were equal
to 0 11% of the votes cast on this resolution

Part B: Remuneration in 2012

The following section provdes details of how the remuneration policy was implemented dunng the year

Remuneration Committee Membership in 2012

The Remuneraton Committes 1s composed of five Independent Non-executive Directors Lucio Genovese is the Charman of the Commuittee, and
its other members are Michael Abrahams, Olver Baring, Wolfram Kuom and [hor Mitukav The Remuneration Committee met five times dunng the
year Attendance at meetings by indmidual members is detalled in the Corperate Governance Report on page 52 A summary of the topics
discussed at each meeting n 2012 15 detaled below

+ Rewview of remuneration of Executive Directors and members of the Executive Committee

LTIP performance and the Company's performance compared to its peers

General market considerations surmounding executive remuneration packages and structure

Performance evaluation of the Committee

The CEO usually attends meetings of the Remuneration Commuttee at the iInvitation of the Chairman of the Remuneration Comimittes, and the
Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committae No Director 1s present when his own remuneration is beng discussed
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Advisers

The Rernuneration Committes retains Kepler Associates to provide advice on remunaration policy, with particutar emphasis on the structure of
long-term incentives for serwor management Other than advice to the Remuneration Commitiee no other senices were provided by Kepler
Associates to the Compary The fees paid to Kepler Associates in respect of work camed out in 2012 totalled GBP31,000

The CEOQ provides gudance to the Remuneration Committee on remuneration packages of senior executives employed by the Group (but not
In respect of his own remuneration)

Single Total Figure of Remuneration
The table below sets out in a single figure for each currency of payment the total remuneration recesved by each Executrve Director for the year
ending 31 December 2012 and the prior year {See also table on page 62 below, showing how STIP targets were met in the year)

K Zhevago (CEQ) C Mawa (CFO)

All figures shown in currency of payment 2012 201 2012 2011
1 Salary US$240,000 US$240,000 CHF632,000 CHFB626,000
2 Benefits US$49,000 LJ5$100.000 CHF188,000 CHF168,000
3 Pension CHF2,000 CHF2,000 CHF48,000 CHF48,000
4 STIP - - CHF650,000 CHFB20,000
5 LTIP - - £229,000 £269,000
6 Dmdands - - £6,000 £7.000
Total uUs$289,000 JS$340,000 CHF1,498,000 CHF1662,000

plus CHF2,000 plus CHF2,000 plus £235,000 plus £276,000

The figures have been calculated as follows
Base salary amount earned for the year

2 Benefits the taxable value of benefits receved in the year (accommodation allowance)

3 Pension increase In transfer value over the year, less Director's contrbution Other formulas {such as 20 times the Increase In the vatue
of accrued benefit over the year) are not considered approprate since this 1s not a classic Defined Benefit scheme (see 'Pensions’ below),
and for expatnate staff the pension is repaid as a lump sum on leaving the country

4 STIP this is the total bonus earned on performance during the year

5 LTIP the market value of shares that vested on performance to 31 December of tha relevant year (2012 91% vested on performance,
2011 100% vested on performance) and share price on 31 December 2012 of 251 2 pence and 31 December 2011 of 268 8 pence

6 Dwidends the total value of dividends earned dunng the vesting penod on LTIP shares vesting on 31 December, paid in cash

Base Salary

Base satanes are reviewed annually, with referenca to the iIndmgual’'s rote, experience and performance, business parformance, salary levels at
relevant comparators, and the range of salary increases applying across the Group Bunng the year the Cormmittee consiclered pay levels against
international rmining comparators and cther FTSE-bsted companies of similar size Fofowing this review the Committee decided to increase Mr
Mawe's salary by 1% frorm CHF626,160 to CHF632,424 with effect from 1 January 2012 Mr Zhevago's salary, which he donates to Ukrainian
chantes, rermained unchanged at US$240,000 A further change has been made for 2013, as set out below

Base salary at.
Executve Director Position 1 January 2013 1 Jarwary 2012 Increase
K Zhevago CEQ UsS$240.000 LIS$240,000 -
C Mawe CFO CHF638,748 CHFE32 424 1%

The increase to the CFQ's base salary for 2013 of 1% 1s In ine with the average increass across the Group {outside the relatively high-inflation
environment of Ukraine) of 1% The CEQ's salary remained unchanged

Pensions

The Group does not operate a separate pension scheme for Executive Directors Chns Mawe and Kostyantin Zhevago are members of the
Ferrexpo AG pension plan which 1s a mandatory insurance scheme under Swiss faw, provided for all employees of Ferrexpo AG, to which the
Company contnbutes an average of 6% of ther annual base salanes Penston benefits sarned by the Directors in the year ended 31 Decernber
2012 were

Translervaue Transler value

Aceruad Actrued Transfer vaua of acorued of acorued Increase n

benefit m benefi &t kcreasen  of net ncrease pansion ot penson at Dvector's transier value

31 Decomber 37 December penca(netof  naconal over 31 December 31 December conlnbutons ey less Dvechors
CHIROOO Age 212 201 Ndexatont panod Forex effect 2012 o1 2012 contnbutons Forex aftact
K Zhevago 38 56 41 4 i 0 24 18 4 2 0
C Mawe 51 648 485 56 97 0 348 275 23 45 0
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Benefits

Under his service agreement, Kostyantin Zhevago is entitied to 25 working days’ paid holday per year Ha is also entitted to furnished
accommaodation in Switzeriand (and elsewhere in Europe if necessary for the performance of his duties) which cost US$49,480 in 2012,
and up to US$5,000 per annum for professional tax advice

Under his service agreement, Chns Mawe 1s entitied 1o 25 working days’ paid holiday per year Ferrexpo AG also provides him with CHF 167,780
of accommodation allowance per annum

STIP
The STIP applies to the members of the Executive Committee, excluding Mr Zhevago The STIP s a discretionary annual bonus scheme For 2012,
the maximum STIP opportunity for members of the Executive Committea ranged up to 150% of salary

Key performance indicators {KPIs'} for 2012 were set at the start of the year for each member of the Executve Gommittes and were weighted

1o reflect the contnbution of each executive to the achievement of that KPI KPis dunng tha year related to financial performance (EBITDA and
NOPAT), operational performance {pre-stnpping, producton and sales volumes), safety (behawvioural safety inatves and improvernents in lost-time
accident statistics), and personal and project performance  Financial KPls were adiusted, as in previous years, to take account of market and raw
matenal cost price developments, as appropnate, to the extent that these were not under the direct control of management Adustments were at
the full discretion of the Committee The lavel of achievernent against each of KPIs for FY2012 as deterrmined by the Committee in the case of the
relevant Executive Director 1s set out in the table below

Max Actual

Weighting FYy2012 bonusas  bonus as

KPI for CFO assessment % of salary % of salary

Financial EBITDA Just below stretch 23%

NQPAT 22 5% Just below target 3375% 4%

Operational Production Just below target 16%

Sales volume 225% Betwesn thmglold and target 3375% 2%

CSR 10% Just below target 15% 8%

Development Projects, Projects (weighting 109} - below target 7 3%

Personal and 45% Parsonal and governance (weighting 35%) — 67 5% 42 5%
governance batwean target and stretch

Total 100% 150% 102.8%

No payment 1s made under the STIP f performance is below thrashold For the CFO, threshold performance earns a bonus of 50% of salary,
target performance 100% of salary and stretch performance 1509 of salary

The Company's overall performance in 2012 was assessed as being shghtly above target Taking account of this, and indvidual performance, the
Comrrittee rmade an award to the CFO under the STIP of CHFB49,935, equivalent to 102 8% of salary in respect of 2012

The outcome of the KPis for other members of the Executive Committee under the STIP, as determined by the Remuneration Committee, ranged
between 59 9% and 91 1% of salary depending on the achievernent of the relevant KPls, which were weighted towards the responsibilities and

targets of the executive concerned

The STIP framewerk for 2013 1s n Iine with the pnnciples of the 2012 framework CSR, projects and personal KPIs continue to be set as in previous

years Weightings for the CFO in 2013 are shown in the table below

Weighting
KPI for CFO
Financial (EBITOA, NOPAT) 225%
Operational {Production, Sales volurmne) 20%
CSR 10%
Personal, Projects, Governance 47 5%
Total 100%
Lne

The LTIP framework was approved by shareholders at the 2008 AGM  The LTIP provides for annual awards of performance shares and options up
to an aggregate imit of 200% of salary in normal circumstances Total outstanding awards granted under the Plan from its inception in 2008 unyl
the end of 2012 are equivalent to 0 20% of iIssued share capital Actual awards are made on the basts of a simiar number of shares to participants
at comparable levels in the organisation The award granted to the CFO in 2012 did not exceed 100% of salary As mentioned earlier, the CEQ
does not parbcipate Awards are in the form of performance shares which vest according to the extent to which Femrexpo's three-year TSR
matches or cutperforms that of a comparator Index.

62




Ferrexpo plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW
GOVERNANCE
FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Relatve TSR s the pnmary long-term incentive measure as the Remuneration Committee continues to believe this 1s the most objective extemal
measure of the Company's success over the longer term  The Remuneration Cormmittee reviewed the constituents of the comparator ndex and
their weightings prior to the grant of 2012 LTIP awards and dropped Brockman Resources which was acquired by Wah Nam Intermational

Holdings in July 2012 The constituents of the index for the last three cycles are summansed in the table below

Focused iron ore miners
Aflas Iron
Brockman

China Vanadium
Cliffs

Fortescue Metals
Gindalbie Metals
Kumba fron Cre
MMX Mineracac
Mounrt Gibson
Northem Iron

Wexghting
40%

2030

g

NARNANANNASANANNSN

2012

-

NN SNASNANANASN

Global diversified miners
Anglo Amencan

BHP Biliton

Rio Tinto

Vale

Xstrata

50%

SN SN

NN SNANN

NN NN N

Single commodity/emerging market miners
African Rainbow Minerals
Alcoa

Alurnina

Aluminium Corp of China
Antofagasta

Bohden

ENRC

Eramet

First Quantum Minerals
Freeport McMoRan
Industnas Penclas
Katanga Mining
Kazakhmys

KGHM Polska Miedz
Lundin Mining

Nonlsk

OZ Minerals

Peabody Energy

Teck Cominco

Vedanta Resources

10%

NHNRNANARARNTEHNNNANNANANNNANNNS

AN ASNSAEASNANNASNANNNYNANSNSANANSNS

NENAANASNSASSRANSNANANANYNAYNANASNASNSNSSN

TSR s calculated on a common currency basis to ensure that comparisons with ntemational comparators isted overseas are far As descrbed in
previous reports, the TSR share-pnce averaging penod was extended from three to six months for LTIP awards granted in 2011 onwards to help
improve the compansen of the management long-term incentive in relation to potential short-term movements in Ferrexpo’s share price or the

share price of comparator companies

The Committee has discretion to review the comparator index f any of the constituent companies 1s affected by corporate events such as mergers

and acquistions

The Committee also reviews the constituents and therr weightings pror to the start of each LTIP cycle in order to ensure that they remain
appropriate In the event that the pending acquisition of Xstrata by Glencore completes, the Remuneration Committee intends to replace Xstrata

with the combned entity
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Ne performance shares will vest if Ferrexpo's TSR underperforms the comparator index 20% will vest f Ferrexpo's TSR 18 equal to Index TSR, full
vasting will accur only if Ferrexpo's TSR exceeds the Index by at least 8% p a, there will be straight-line pro-rata vesting in between those points
In additon, for any shares to vest, the Committee must be satisfied that the recorded TSR s a fawr reflaction of Ferrexpo's undertying business
performance The vesting parameters are illustrated below
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Dvidends will accrue on performance shares over the vesting penod, and be paid on shares that vest In the event of a change of control, awards
will be pro-rated for time and performance The Committee will retain discretion to vary this treatment f it deems it to be in shareholders’ interests
todo so

2010 LTP Award Vesting

The performance penod for the 210 LTIP awards ended on 31 December 2012 Fermexpo's TSR performance relative to the weighted index
was measured by Kepler Associates From 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012, Ferrexpo’s TSR performance was 25 4% and Index TSR was
2 1% This outperformance of 71% p a of Index TSR resulted in 91% of 2010 LTIP awards vesting for TSR The Remuneration Committee has
considered the Company's overall performance and determined that the recorded TSR outperformance was a far reflection of Ferrexpo's
undertying performance over the performance penod and has therefore determined, In accordance with the rules of the plan that 91% of the
2010 LTIP awards vested

2012 LTIP Awards Granted

In Apnl 2012 Chns Mawe was granted an award of shares under the LTIP over 120,000 LTIP shares The three ysar performance period over
which TSR performance will be measured began on 1 January 2012 and will end on 31 December 2014 The constituents and weightings
of the comparator Index are discussed on page 63

Pnce on

At1 Granted Total at 31 dateof  Date from

January 202 Dacember award which
2012 award) Exermised Lapsed 2012 (pence) exercisable Expiry date
C Mawe 100 Q00 100,000 0 ¢} 143 01012012 1408 2019
100,000' 100,000 275 0101 2013 17 06 2020
120,000 120,000 341 01 012014 (07 08 2021
120,000 120,000 275 101 2015 22 04 2022

Total 340,000

1 Ths award has vested 91% under the TSR pexfonnance condition descnbed above At tha date of vasing (31 December 2012} the market pnce of a share was 251.2 pance

Exit Payments Made in Year
No Executive Directors left dunng the year
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Neither the Chairman nor any of the Non-executive Directors has a service contract with the Company, however, each has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company The Non-executive Directors are each appointed for an inhal penod of three years, and therr appointments may
then be renswed on a three-yearly basis, subject to re-election when appropriate by the Company in general meeting, in 2011 the Company
adopted the practice of annual re-election of all Directors Unless otherwise determined, neither the Company nor the Director concemed may
give less than three months' notice of termination of the appointment

The Non-executve Directors’ fees are reviewed each year in light of the time commitrnent and level of involverment that Non-executive Directors
are required to devote to the actvities of the Board and its committees, market practice, and surveys by Kepler Associates The current fees are

Role

Chairman fee

Non-executive Director base fes
Committee chaiman fee

Fes
US$500,000
US$150,000

LJS$40,000

The Charrman's fee and the Non-executive Directors’ fees were last increased in 2011

The dates cf the Charman's and Non-executive Directors” appointments who served dunng the reporting penod are as follows

Non executive Director
M Abrahams
QOBarng

L Genovese

W Kuoni

| Mitiukoy

M Salamcn

Position

Chairman
Non-exacutiva Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Directar

Date of appointment Date of re-election
14 Juns 2007 Annual re-election

1 December 2007 Annual re-glection
14 June 2007 Annual re-election

14 June 2007 Annual re-elaction

14 June 2007 Annual re-election

27 March 2008 Annual re-election

Total Shareholdings of Directors

Executive Directors and members of the Executive Committee are encouraged to bulld ug a holding of shares of eguivalent value to a year's salary
(in the case of Exacutive Directors) or six menths’ salary (for other members of the Executive Committes)} Execlitives wilk be encouraged to retain
therr vested LTIP shares on an after tax basis untl the applicable guideline level 1s achieved

As at 12 March 2013, the Executive Directors’ shareholdings are as follows

Shareholding Shares hed Current
requirement Owned Supjectto  Supect to shareholdng?  Guidelne
(% salary) autnght performance' deferral (% satary} met?
K Zhevago 100% 300,198,313 - - - Yas
C Mawe 100% 142,202 340,000 - 83% No

1 Performance awards are ml cost ophons

2 Basad only on shares owned outnght at 31 December 2012 and share prce of 251 2 pance

Total Interests of the Directors in office as at 31 Decermipar 2012

At 31 December 2012 At 31 December 2011

K Zhevago' 300,198,313 300,198,313
C Mawe 142,202 67439
M Abrahams 170,992 168,690
O Baring 20,130 20130
L Genovese 169,568 169,180
W Kuoni 28,854 28,466
| Mrtiukov 31,952 31,522
M Salamon 100,000 100,000

1 Kostyantn Zhevage s interested n these sharas as a beneficiary of the Minco Trust, which is the ultimate shargholder of Fevamiotnico Sarl which owns 300 198 313 Ord nary Shares in the Company

There have been no changes in the interests of the Directors from the end of the pencd under review to 12 March 2013, being a date not more

than one month pnor to the date of notice of AGM
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Emoiuments Table of Directors

Cutrency of Saar, or 1843 Pens ¢ Poaenta Buonus Tatat 2032 Totat 2012 Toty 2011 Tote 2043
syl 000 o) o0 000 USS000 CHFODD USEC00 LA D

Charman
Michas! Abrahams USS 500 - - - 500 - 450 -
Executive Directors
hastgantin Zhevage US3 240 2 49 - 201 - 348 -
Chris Mawe ChF 632 48 168" 830 - 1,498 - 1608
Nop-executive Directors
Ofner Sarmg uss 160 - - - 190 - i85 -
Lucio Genowass!! LS% 230 - - - 230 ~ 205 -
Wolirain Kuoiil uss 2bB - ~ - 265 - 240 -
Inor Mrukoy LSS 150 - - - 150 - 133 -
Mike Salamon Uss 150 - ~ - 150 - 135 -
Total US$ 1,725 2 49 - 1,776 - 1678 -
Total CHF 632 28 168 B50 ~ 1,498 - 1 658

2
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Comparison of Company Performance and Executive Director Pay

The yraph oelow shows the value, at 31 Decenmoer 2012 of £ 100 investad n Ferrexpo s tharss ondi Deceinber 2007 romparsd sath thae current
value ot tha sarme armount investad in the FTSE 250 Incias or in the shares of the LTIP compaator group The FTSE 250 no2x)s chosen because
Ferrexpd 13 a consbituent mem dar of this group
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Cther transactions invoiving Directors arg set out in note [34)] (refated parties) to the Financial Statements

This Report was approved by the Board on 12 March 2013
Signed on bahalf of the Board

Lucio Genovese
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee ——
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present ther report to sharehalders for the financial year
ending 31 December 2012

The Company was incorporated under the name Ferrexpo plc as a
public company lmited by shares on 22 Apnl 2005 Ferrexpo plc listed
on the London Stock Exchange in June 2007 and 1s 2a member of the
FTSE 250 index

Business Review

Arevigw of the business, its pnnaipal actaties and likely future
developments can be founad in the sections listed below which are
incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference The pages
referred to incorporate all requirernents of section 417 Companies Act
2006 fthe ‘Act’), iIncluding details of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties
facing the Group and analysis using Key Performance Indicators (as
set out N the Business Review)

e The Charrman’s and Chief Executive Officer's Statement on pages
10to 19

The Operational Review on pages 24 to 33

The Financial Review on pages 34 to 37

The Risks section on pages 20 to 23

The Corporate Sccial Respansibilty Review on pages 38 to 47

. * 9+ »

Directors’ Duties

The duties of Directors are set out in sections 170 to 177 of the Act
The duties that are specifically referred to in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 50 1o 55 include the duties under section 172 (to
promote the success of the Company), secton 175 {to avoid conflicts
of interest), section 176 {not to accept benefits from third partes), and
section 177 (to declare any interests in existing or proposed
transactions or arrangements with the Company)

Results and Dividends
Results for the year are set out in the Consolidated Income Statermnent
on page 73

The Drectors recommend a final dvidend of 3 3 US cents per Crdinary
Share Subject to shareholders approving this recommendation at the
AGM, the dmdend wilt be paid in UK Pounds Sterling on 31 May 2013
to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 3 May 2013
Sharehoiders may receve UK Pounds Sterling dividends by direct bank
transfer, prowded that they hava notfied the Company's reqistrars in
advance Shareholders may also elect to receive dvidends n US
Dollars {the procedure for this is sat outin the Notice of the AGM)

In recagnition of the opening ¢of the Yenstovo mine the Directors

have also announced a special dvidend of 6 8 US cents per share,
amounting to USS40 million, for payment on 28 March 2013 to
sharsholders on the register at the close of business on 22 March 2013
The dmdend will smilarly be paid in UK Pounds Sterling with an election
to recerve US Dollars

Ferrexpo plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW
GOVERNANCE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors

The Drrectors of the Company who served during the year wera
Michael Abrahams

Cliver Banng

Lucio Genovese

Wolfrarm Kuoni

Chns Mawe

Ihor Mitiukov

Mike Salarmon

Kostyantin Zhevago

* & & * B

In compliance with the 2010 Code all of the Directors will retire
at the forthcoming AGM and, being elgible, wil offer themselves
for re-election

Further detalls about the Directors and tharr roles within the Group are
given in the Directors’ biographies on pages 48 and 49 Details of the
rermnuneration of the Directors, therr interests in shares of the Company
and therr service contracts are contained in the Remuneration Report
on pages 56 to 66

Appointment and Replacement of Directors

Directors may be elected by the shareholders {by ordinary resolution)
or appointed by the Board A Director appointed by the Board holds
office only until the next following AGM and 1s then eligible for election
by the sharsholders

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles, the Act and any directions given
by special resolution, the business of the Company will be managad
by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company

Directars' and Officers’ Insurance

The Company maintains Directors' and Officers’ Liability Insurance
in respect of legal action that may be brought aganst its Directors
and Cfficers

Directors’ Indemnity Provision

Dunng the penod under review, the Group had In force a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision in favour of one or more of the Cirectors
of Ferrexpo plc against hability In respect of proceedings brought by
third parties, subject to the condibons set out In the Act

Share Capital and Rights Attaching to the Company’s Shares
The Company has a single class of Ordinary Shares of 10 pence each

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders' nghts, shares
may be issued with such nights and restrictions as the Company may
by ordinary resolution decide, or {if therg 1s no such resclution or so far
as it does not make speciic provision} as the Board may decide At
each AGM, the Board proposes to put In place annual shareholder
authonty for the Company's Directors to allot new shares in accordance
with the Institutional Investor Guidelines

Details of the 1ssued share capital of the Company are shown in note 28
of the financial statements
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Vanation of Rights

Subyect to the prowisions of the Act, the nghts attached to a class of
shares may be vaned or abrogated either with the consent in wniting
of the holders of at least three-quarters of the nominal amount of the
issued shares of that class {excluding any shares of that class held

as treasury shares) or with the sanction of a special resolution passed
at a separata meeting of the holders of the 1ssued shares of that class
validly held in accordance with the Articles

Transfer of Shares

Any share in the Company may be held in uncertificated form and,
subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares may be transferred
by means of a relevant system Registration of a transfer of an
uncertficated share may be refused in the circumstances set out In
the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 and where, In the case
of a transfer to joint holders, the number of jont holders to whom the
uncertificated share is to be transferred exceeds four

Subject to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares lpy an instrument of transfer in any usual form or in
any other form which the Board may approve The Board may decline
fo register a transfer of a certificated share 1t 1s nct in the approved
form The Board may also decline to register any transfer of any share
which s not a fully paid share The Board may decline to register a
transfer of any of the Company's certificated shares by a person with a
0 25% or greater iInterest If such a person has been served with a notice
and has faled within 14 days to provide the Company with inforrmation
concerning interests in those shares required to be provided under the
Act, unless the transfer 1s shown to the Board to be pursuant to an
arm’s length sale

Repurchase of Shares

Subject to authonsation by shareholder resolution, the Company may
purchase its own shares in accordance with the Act Any shares which
have been bought back may be held as treasury shares or cancelled
immediately upon completion of the purchase

The Company was given authornty to make rmarket purchases of up to
approximately 10% of its existing Ordinary Share capital by a resolution
passed on 24 May 2012 This authonty will expira at the conclusion of
the Company's 2013 AGM A special resolution to renew the authonty
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM Details of the resolution
renewing the authonty to purchase Ordinary Shares are set out In

the notica of AGM enclosed with this report

The Company did not make use of the authonty mentoned above
dunng 2012

Dividends and Distnbutions

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the shareholders may by ordinary
resolution, from time to time, declare dvidends not exceeding the
amount recommended by the Board The Board may pay intenm
dwdends and also any fixed rate dvidends whenaver the financial
position of the Group, in the opinion of the Board, ustifies ther
payment

Under the Company's Articles, the Board may withhold payment of all
or any part of any dwdends or other monies payable in respect of the
Company's shares from a person with a 0 25% or greater interest {as
defined in the Articles) if such person has been served with a notice
under section 783 of the Comparees Act 2006 and has faled within
14 days to provide the Company with Inforrnaton concerning interests
In those shares required to be provided under the Act

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company, every member has one vote on
a show of hands and on a poll, one vote for each share held Under the
Act, members are enttled to appoint a proxy or proxies to exercise all
or any of their nghts to attend, speak and vote at a general meeting

A member that is a corporation may appoint one or more INdmvduals

fo act on its behalf at a general meeting as a corporate representative

Restricttons on Voting

No mamber 1s entitled to vote at any general meebng in respect of any
shares held by him  any call or ather sum outstanding in respect of
that share remains unpard Currently, all issued shares are fully pad In
addition, subject to the Articles no member shall be entitied to vote if he
has faled to prowde the Company with information concerning interests
In those shares required to be provided under the Act

Shares Held in the Employes Benefit Trust (EBT’)

The trustees of the Company’s EBT may vote or apstan from voting

on shares held in the EBT as they think fit and in doing so may take into
account both financial and non-financial interasts of the beneficianes

of the EBT or ther dependants

Deadline for Voting Rights !
The Articles provide a deadiine for submission of proxy forms of not '
less than 48 hours before the meeting The Directors will also speaify in
the notice of any general mesting a tme, being not more that 48 hours
befora the meeting, by which a person must be entered in the register
of members in order to have the nght to attend and vote at the meeting
The Oirectors may decide, at ther discretion, that no account should
be taken of any day that I1s not a2 workung day when calculating the

48 hour penod
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Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 Decernber 2012, the Company had been advsed in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the following notifiable
ntarests in its voting nghts There were no changes In these interests between 31 December 2012 and the date of this report

% of the

Company’s

totai voting

MNumber of voting nghts at date of

Name of shareholder Ordinary Shares nghts noufication
Fevamotinico S arl! 300,198,313 300,188,313 5100%
Wigmore Street Investments No 3 Lid? 147,156,035 147,156 (35 24 99%

1 Fevamolnco S.4.1.) 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Minct Trust of whech Kostyanbn Zhevago 18 a beneficiary
2 BXAGroup Lid s the wimate parent uncertakung and indinact controbier of Wigmona Straet Investimants No 3 Lid which holds 147,158 035 shares through its nomunes Lynchwoed Momnees Lid

Free Float

©n 14 December 2011 the FTSE Group announced that the FTSE Poficy Group had approved a change fo the Ground Rules of the FTSE UK
Index Series, Increasing to 25% the minmum free float (as calculated by FTSE) for a company to be eligibls for inclusion The FTSE Group also
ndicated that Ferrexpo does not currently satsfy this requiremant as it calculates that Ferrexpo's free float 1s approximately 24% Companies not
currently satisfying thrs requirement have been given a tme frame of 24 months from 1 January 2012 to reach this free float level if they are to
contnue to be Included in the UK Index Senes Ferraxpo 1s considenng with its advisers the options avalable to it

Significant Agreements — Change of Control
The Company does not have any agreements with Directors or employees that would prowde for compensation for loss of office or employment
resutting from a takeover

There are no crcumstances connected with any other significant agreements to which the Company 1s a party that would take effect, alter or
terrminate upon a change of control folowing a takeover bid, except those referred to below

Lmp

The rules of the Company's LTIP set out the consequences of a change of control of the Company on employee nghts under the plan Generally,
such nghts will vest on a change of control to the extent that the performance conditions have been satisfied and on a time pro-rated basis,
subject to the discretion of the Bemuneration Committes Participants will become entitled to acquire shares in the Company, or in some cases,
to the payment of a cash surn of equivalent basis

Bank Loan Facility

Under the US$420 millon revolving pre-export finance facility with ING Bank NV, Uni Credit Bank AG, Sociéte Générale and other banks entered
into In September 2011, if Kostyantin Zhevago ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 30% of the 1ssued and allotted share capital of the
Company, or any person {other than Kostyantin Zhevago) becomes the beneficial owner of the shares in the Cormpany carrying more than 50%
of the voting nghts normally exercisable at a general meeting, then the ienders are not obliged to fund a drawdown

Corporate Bond Due 2016

Under the conditions of the Notes issued in Apnl 2011, f Kostyantin Zhevago ceases to own directty or indirectly at least 30% of the 1ssued and
allotted share capital of the Company, or any person {other that Kostyantn Zhevago) becomes the beneficial owner of shares in the Company
camyng more than 50% of the voting nghts normally exercisable at a general meeting, then any Noteholder will have the nght o require the
repurchase of ts Notes at a purchase pnce in cash equal to 101% of the pnncipal amount plus accrued and unpaid Interest

Relationship Agreement

Details of the Relationship Agreement entered into betwesn Fevamotinico S a rl, Kostyantn Zhevago, The Minco Trust and the Comparny can
be found in the Corporate Govemance Report (page 51) The Relationship Agreement ceases to appty if the holding of Fevamotimco S art,
The Minco Trust or Mr Zhevago indmdually or collectively falls below 25% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company

Events Since the Batance Sheet Date
Information on events since the balance sheet date 15 provided n note 41 to the financial statements on page 129

Market Value of Land and Buildings

Land 1s camed in the balance sheet at deemed cost resutting from a valuation undertaken on 1 January 2003 as part of the Group's transition to
reporting under Internahonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’) It 1s not prachcable to estimats the market value of land and mineral reserves
and resources at each balance sheet date
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Policy on Derivatives and Financial Instruments

The Group does not hold any dervatve financial nstruments  Group
policy on financial Instruments (s set outin note 37 to the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 120 to 128

Credrtor Payment Policy and Practice

It i1s the Group's policy that payments to suppliers are made in
accordance with the terms and conditions agreed between the
Company and its suppliers, provided that all relevant trading terms

and conditions have been complied with The average creditor payment
penod for the pencd ended 31 December 2012 for the Company

was 25 days (2011 24 days)

Chantable and Political Donations

The Group made no political donations dunng the year Group
donations to chanties worldwida were nil 2011 nill, with UK chanties
recening nil (2011 nily (For community support donations, please see
note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements )

Risk Management Policies

Full detaits of the Group’s policy on nsk and uncertanty and an
overview of the Group's exposure to credtt, iquidity and market nsks
are set out in note 37 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Information on pages 120 to 128 Further references to nsk are made
in the Risks section on pages 20 to 23 and in the Internal Control
section of the Corporate Governance Report on pages 54 10 55
which prowides a summary of the internal control procaedures put in
placs by the Board to identify key nsks and review nsk management
and its effectivaness

Gotng Concern

The Group’s business activiies, together with the nsk factors Iikely to
affect its future development, performance and position are set out
on pages 20 to 23 and 34 to 37 The financial position of the
Company, its cash flows, iquidity position and borrowing facilibes are
descrbed in the Financial Review on pages 34 to 37 In additon,
nota 37 of the Notes to the Consoldated Financral Statements on
pages 120 to 128 sets out the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital, s financial nsk management
objectives and details of its financial instruments, and its exposures to
credit nsk, kquidity nsk as well as currency nsk and interest rate nsk
The Directors are of the opinion that the Company will continue to
operate and, as such, the accounts have been preparad using the
Going Concern panciple

Corporate Governance Statement

The Disclosure and Transparency Rules {DTR 7 2) require certain
information to be ncluded in a corporate governance statement set out
in a company’s Directors’ Report. In common with many companies,
Ferrexpo has an existing practice of issuing, within its Annual Report,

a Corporate Governance Report that 1s separate from its Directors’
Report The information that fulfils the requirements of DTR 7 21
located in Ferrexpo’s Gorporate Governance Report on pages 50 to 55
{and 1s Incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference), with the
exception of the information referred to In DTR 72 6, which 1s located

in this Directors’ Report

70

Statement on Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The Directors whao held office at the date of approval of this Directors’
Raport confirm that, so far as thay are each aware, there 1s no relavant
audit information of which the Group's auditors are unaware, and that
each Director has taken all reasonable steps to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors
are aware of that nformation

A Staterment of the Responsibilities of the Directors for prepanng the
Group and Company financial staterments 1s set out on page 71

Amendments to Articles of Association
The Articles may be amended by special resolution in accordance with
the Act

AGM

The AGM of the Company will be held at 11 00am on Thursday 23 May
2013 at The Dorchester, Park Lane, London W1K 1QA A separate
letter from the Charman summansing the business of the meeting and
the Notice convening the AGM will be sent to shareholders with this
Annual Report

Auditors

Having reviewed the independence and effectivenass of the auditors,
the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that the existing
auditors, Emst & Young LLP. be reappointed Emst & Young LLP have
inchicated therr willngness to continue In office, and an ordinary
resolution reappointing them as auditors and authonsing the Drectors
to set therr remuneration will be proposed at the 2013 AGM

Thus report was approved by the Board on 12 March 2013
David Leonard 6 L,MN—‘—j
Company Secretary 5

Ferrexpo plc

Registered office

2-4 King Street

London SW1Y 8QL
Registered number 5432915

Headguarters
Bahnhofstrasse 13
CH-8340 Baar
Switzerland
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

In refation to the Group financiat statements
The Drectors are responsible for prepanng the financial statements in
accordance with appicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Duectors to prepare financal staternents for
each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the
financial staternents n accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the BU Under company law the
Drrectors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of affars of the
Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penod In prepanng
those financial statements the Directors are required tor

¢ select sutable accounting policies and then apply them cansistently,

* make jJudgernents and estrnates that are reasonable,

* state whether applcable Intematonal Financial Reportng Standards
have been followed, subyect to any matenal departures disclosed
and explaned in the financiat statements, and

= prepare the financal staternents on the going concem basis untess
1t 15 nappropnate to presume that the Company will continue in
business

In relation to the parent company financiat statements
The Drectors are responsible for preparing the financial staternents n
accordance with applicable law and reguiations

Cormpany law requires the Dwectors to prepare financial staterments for
each fnancial year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare
the financal statements In accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law) Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial staternents unless they are satisflied that they gve
a true and tar view of the state of affars of the Company and of the
profit or loss for that penod In prepanng those financial staternents, the
Directors are reguired to

* select suitable accounting pol cies and then apply thermn consistantly,

* make Judgemenis and esyimates that are reasonable,

e state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disciosed and explaned
in the financial statements, and

* prepara the financial statameants on tne going concemn basts unless
1115 nagpropnate to presume thal the Company wil continus in
busmess

In relation to the Group and parent company

financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficent to show and explan the Group's and Company s
transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any tme the
financial position of the Group and Comparny and enable them to
ensure thal the Group and Company financial statements comply with
the Cornparres Act 2006 and, with respect to the Group financial
statermnents Article 4 of the 1AS Regulaton They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the preventon and detecton of fraud and
other sregulanties

Under applicable UK law and requirements of the Financial Services
Authority, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of a
Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate
Govemance Report that comply with these laws and reguiements in
addimon the Directors are responsibie for the maintenance and integnty
of the comporate and financial infarmaton included on the Company's
website Legistation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissammaton of financlal statements may differ fiom legisiation in other
junsdicbons

Under the requrements of Chapter 4 of the Drsclosure and
Transparency Rules the Drectors are responsible for including a falr
review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group taken as a whole together with a descnption of
the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties that they face

Responsibility statement of the Directors inrespect of the

Annual Report and Accounts

We confirm on behalf of the Board that to the best of our knowledge

(&) the financial statements give a true and farr wew of the assets
habilites, financial pesition and profit of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consobdation taken as a whcle, and

() the management report (entited Business Review’) includes a far
review of the development and performance of the business, and
the principal nsks and uncertaintias that they face

For and on behalf of the Board

Michael Abrahams .

Chairman h\.q VUOUALLLA A A -~
Chnstopher Mawe

Chuef Fuinancial Officer

%
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the

Members of Ferrexpo plc

We have aLdited the financial statements of Ferrexpe plc for the year
ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the Corgolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Camprehensive Income, the
Consoldated Statement of Financial Position, the Ceonscldated
Statement of Cash Flows, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Parent Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 1o
41 for the Group financial statements and noles 1 to 9 for the Parent
Compary financial statements  The financial reporting framework that
has been applied n the preparation of the Group financial statements 1s
apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs )
as adopted by the European Unon The financial reporting framework
that bas been appled In the preparation of the Parent Company
inanceal stalements 1s apphicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Stardards (Unied Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies Act 2008 Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required o state lo themin
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsixity to anyone
olher than the Cormpany and the Comparny s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this repert, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully In the Dreclors’ Responsbilites Statement set
out on page 71, the Drrectors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial staternenls and for being satisfied that they gnve a true and far
view Our responsiity ts 1o autht and expiess an opinkon on the
fmancial statements in accordance wih applicable law and Intermational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) These standards require us to
comply wih the Auditing Practces Board's Ethucal Standards for
Audiors

Scope of the audit of the hinancial statements

An audit nvalves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that 1he financal statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This inchudes an
assessment of whether tne accountng oolicles are appropriate 10 the
Group s and the Parent Company s orreumstances and have been
consistently appled and adequately disclosed, the reasonablenass of
sigrsficant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overalt
presentation of the financial staterments In addition, we read all the
financial and non-financial Information m the Annual Report and
Accounts to identity matenat ncorsistencies witn the audited financiat
staiements If we become aware of any apparent matenial
misstaternents or Inconsistencias, we consider the mplications for our
report
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Optrugn on financral statermments

In our opinon

+ The financal statements give a true and farr view of the slate of the
Group's and of the Parent Company s affars as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

+ The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union,

» The Parent Company financid staternents have been property
prepared In accordance with United Kingdem Generally Acceptea
Accountng Practice, and

» The financia statements have teen preparea n accordance with the
requrements of the Companies Act 2008 and, as regards the
Group finrancial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinton on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act

2006

In our opinkon

* The parl of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2008, and

» The informatien given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financwal statermenis are prepared 1s consisient with the
financal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing o report in respect of the following

Under the Compaznies Act 2006 we are required to report 1o you of in

our opinion

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Comparny, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
frorn branches not visited by us, or

¢ The Parent Company finanaal staterments and the part of the
Directors’ Remunerat:on Report to be audited are not in agreement
with tha accounting records and retums, or

+ Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made or

* We have not receved all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Lusting Rules we are required to rewiew

= The Directors’ Statement, set out on page 70, in relation to gomg
concern,

* The part of the Corporate Governance Stalement relating to the
Compary's complance with the nine provisions of the UK Comorate
Governarce Code specified for our review, and

¢ Certa:n elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
Directors' remungration

Com B

Ernst & Young LLP

Ken Willlamson (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Audior
London

12 March 2013
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Year snded Year ended
US3000 Notes 311212 Jizn
Revenue s 1,424,030 1,788012
Cost of sales 7 (694,576) (649,544)
Gross profit 729,454 1,138,468
Selling and distribution expenses B (311,964 (317,951)
General and administrative expenses 9 (56,329) (51,969)
Other Income 10 11,347 6,943
Other expenses 1 (30,161) (17,091)
Qperating foreign exchange gans/losses) 12 653 {1,360)
Operating profit from continuing operations before adjusted items 343,000 757,040
Wirite-offs and impaiment losses 13 (836) {478)
Share of profit from asscciates 14 2,772 2012
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment {4,067) (46)
Profit before tax and finance from continuing operations 340,869 758,528
Finance income 15 2,598 2511
Finance expense 15 {88,091) (68,2085)
Non-operating foreign exchange gansAlosses) 12 8,629 (1.834)
Profit before tax 262,005 690,90C
Income tax expense 18 (46,425) (115,964)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 215,580 574,936
Profit attnbutable to
Equrty shareholders of Ferrexpo plc 214,340 567,822
Non-controling interests 1,240 7114
Profit for the year from continuing operations 215,580 574,936
Earmings per share
Basic {US cents) 17 3663 97 09
Diluted (US cents) 17 36.57 96 97
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended
US8000 31212 312N
Profit for the year 215,580 574,936
£xchange diffsrences on translating foreign operations {573) 3.024)
Income tax effect - -
Exchange differences ansing on hedging of foreign cperations (201) {894)
Incoma tax effect 32 153
Net losses on avalable-for-sale nvestments (326) {1,868}
Income tax effect 62 437
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {1,006) (5.196)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 214,574 569,740
Total comprehensive Income attnbutable to
Equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc 213,272 562,883
Non-controiling interests 1,302 6,857
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 214,574 569,740
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As ut Ag pt
usicoo Nes nizaz 31 21t
Assets
Proparty, plant and equipment e 1,342,039 924600
Goothwill and other Intangible assets a0 112171 103,240
Irvestrnents in associates 14 16,995 19,186
Avaiabla-for-sale firancial aasets 20 534 1200
Invertones ] 12,362 -
Other non-current assets 2: 41,810 93 358
Other taxes recoverable and prepad 28 97,805 -
Daterred tax assets = 29,130 23,426
Total non-current assets 1,652,836 1 165,190
Inventones z 139,635 117,048
Trade and other recenvablas 24 116,553 128 905
Prepaymants and other current assels 25 36,468 22720
Income taxes recoverabie and prepaid 23 24,869 384
Other taxes recoverable and prepaxd 2] 187,246 172,951
Cash and cash eguvalents 27 596580 890154

1,101,331 1332160
Assats classfied as held for sale 101 1,845
Total current assets 1,101,432 1334005
Total assets 2,754,368 2 499,195
Equity and habilitres
Issuad capital b} 121,628 121,628
Share premum P 185,112 185,112
Other reserves x  {348,063) (348 603)
Retained earnings 1,590,192 14314512
Equity attnibutable to equity shareholders of Ferrexpo ple 1,548,889 1372849
Non-controlling mterests 21,130 20480
Tota! equity 1,569,999 13383,129
Intgrest-beanng loans and borrewings 2 993,139 951,430
Defined benefit pension bability 3 23,504 13,329
Pravision for site restoration 32 2,368 3015
Deferred tax iabidites E 2,581 2232
Total non-current habilitias 1,021,592 970 006
Interest-beanng foans and borowings = 26,846 18,948
Trads and other payables £ 62,608 42 648
Accrued tabilies and defzred income n 51,285 29713
income taxes payzable % 13,672 36,672
Other taxes payable 2 8,365 8077
Total current habilites 162,777 136 060
Tota! iabiities 1,184,369 1,106 065
Total equity and labilibies 2,754,368 2,499,195

Tha financal statements were appraved by tha Board of Directors on 12 March 2013

Kostyantin Zhevago @
Chief Executive Officer

Chnstopher Mawe
Chuef Financial Ofticer
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year andod Year anded
US$000 Notes N2z Jrzn
Profit befora tax 262,005 690,900
Adustments for
Depreciabon of property, plant and equipment and amortsation of intangible assets 54,169 41,003
Interest expense 15 81,21 62,321
Interest ncome 15 (2,598) {2.511)
Share of profit from associates 14 277 2012
Movernent in allowance for doubtful recenvables 1 1 {2,406)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,067 45
Write-coffs and impairment losses 13 836 478
Site restoration provision 32 {650) 269
Employee benefits a 16,381 1,089
Share-based payments 38 1,608 831
Operating foraign exchange gains/{losses) 12 (653) 1,360
Non-operating foreign exchange {gainsylosses 12 (6,629) 1,934
QOperating cash flow before working capital changes 407,756 793,342
Changes in workeng capital
Decrease/increase) In trada and other recenvables (3.226) (17.391)
Increase N inventones {33,638) {12,220)
Increase/{decrsase} In trade and other accounts payabie 40,603 9,788
Increase tn VAT racoverable and other taxes prepad s (131,903) (72,051)
Cash generated from operating actvities 279,592 681892
Interest paid {55,610 {43,266)
Income tax paid 28 99,771) {132,176
Post-employment benefits pad (5,641) (3,741}
Net cash flows from operating activities 118,570 502,709
Cash flows from investing activitios
Purchase of property, plant and equipment e (419,357) (378,302
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 569 -
Purchases of ntangible assats 19 9,911} {2.092)
Interest recenved 2,652 2,067
Proceeds from loans to associates 2 - 1,000
Dmdends from associates 6,710 2,207
Cash payment for acquisiton made in 2010 40 - (38,045
Acquisiion of subsidianes, net of cash acquered 40 - {390)
Net cash flows used in mvesting activities (419,337) (413,555)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings and finance 63,956  952.269
Repayment of borrowings and finance {13,186) (410,027)
Arrangement fees paid (4,672) (21,021)
Dmdends paid to equity shareholders of Ferrexpo pic {38,775) (38.663)
Dmvdends paid to non-controling shareholders (254) (880)
Net cash flows from financing activities 7,068 481,678
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equvalents {293,699) 570,832
Cash and cash squiwvalents at the baginning of the year 890,154 319,471
Currency translation differences 105 {149)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar 27 596,560  B8D0,154
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Altrttable to equty sharehoioers of Famixpo pic

Empicyea
Unitng ol banefa tust Net Non-
ssuad Sharg rderest Treasuwry rasene ureabsed Transtaton Total  controZng
camtal premagm reserve  share reserve (Notes 28 gans reserve asene Retawned capdal and nierasis Total

USS000 {Nole 28 (Note 28y (Mote 28) (Note 28) and 38) (Note 28} {Nole 25 eamngs reserves (Nate 1) aquity
At1January 2011 121628 185112 31,780 (772600 (10,172 2515 (291287 885353 B4TET3 13,801 861474
Profit for the penod - - - - - - - 567822 567822 7,114 574,936
Other comprehensive

income - - - - - (1,431)  (3,508) - {4,939 257) {5,196}
Total comprehensive

income for the penod - - - - - (1,431} (3,508) 567822 562,883 6857 569,740
Equity dmdends paid

to shareholders of

Fermexpo pic - - - - - - - {38683 (38683 322) (38,989)
Share-based payments

(note 38) - - - - 758 - - - 756 - 756
Effect from acquisition

of subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 144 144
At 31 Dacember 2011 121628 185112 31,780 ({77.260) {8,416) 1,084 (204,791) 1414512 1372640 20480 1,393,129
Profit for the penod - - - - - - - 214,340 214,340 1,240 215,580
Other comprehensive

INcoma - - - - - (264) (804) - (1.068) 62 (1,006
Total comprehensive

Incoma for the period - - - - - (264) (804) 214340 213,272 1,302 214,574
Equity gamdends paid

1o shareholders of

Ferrexpo pic - - - - - - - (3B660) {(38660) {331) {38991)
Share-based payments

{note 38) - - - - 1,608 - - - 1,608 - 1,608
Effect from acguisition

of subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 321) {321)
At 31 December 2012 121,628 185112 31,780 (77,260} {7.808) 8X) (205505 1,590,192 1548869 21,130 1569999
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate information

Organisation and operation

Ferrexpo plc {the ‘Company') 1s incorperated in the United Kingdom with registered office at 2-4 King Street, London, SW1Y 6QL, UK Ferrexpo
ple and 1its subsidianes (the ‘Group’) operate a mine and processing plant near Kremenchuk in Ukrane, an interest n a port n Odessa and sales
and marketing actvities In Switzerland, Duba and Kiev The Group alse owns a logistics group located in Austna which operates  flest of vessels
operating on the Rhine and Danube waterways The Group's operations are vertically integrated from iron ore mining through to iron ore
concentrate and pellet production and subsequent logistics The Group's mineral properties lie within the Kremenchuk Magnetic Anomaly and are
currently being explorted at the Gonshne-Plavninsky and Lavnkovsky (GPL} and Yenstovo deposits

The maonty shareholder of the Group 1s Fevamotrico S arl {'Fevamotinco’), a comparny ultmately owned by The Minco Trust, of which
Kostyantn Zhevago, the Group's Chief Executive Officer, 1s a beneficiary At the time this report was published, Fevarnctinico held 51 0%

(31 December 2011 51 0%} of Ferrexpo plc's 1ssued share capital The Group's operations are largety conducted through Ferrexpo plc's principal
subsidiary, QJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining and logistics for Western Europe are managed through the Helogistics subsidianes The Group
compnses of Ferrexpe plc and its consclidated subsidianes as set out below

11212 atizn
MName Couniry of NCOorOoraton Prncoal actmty % %
QJSC Femexpo Poltava Mining! Ukramne Iron ore mining 973 97 3
Ferrexpo AG? Switzerland Sale of Ion ore pelets 1000 1000
DP Ferrotrans® Ukraing Trade, transponation semces 97.3 g7 3
United Energy Company LLC? Ukraine Holding company 973 g7 3
Ferrexpo Finance pic’ England Finance 1000 1000
Ferrexpo Services Lirnitad! Ukraine Management services & procursment 1000 1000
Ferrexpe Hong Kong Limited? Chima Marketing semces 1000 1000
LLC Fermexpo Yenstovo GOK! Ukraine Iron ore mining 1000 1000
LLC Ferrexpo Belanovo GOK®* Ukrane [ron ore mining 1000 1000
Nova Logistics Limited® Ukraine Servica company (dormant) 510 510
Ferrexpo Middle East FZE® UAE Sala of ron ora pellets 1000 1000
Ferrexpo Singapore PTE Limitec® Singapone Markating servces 1000 1000
First-DDSG Logistics Holding GmbH? Austna Holdng company 1000 1000
EDDSG GmbH® Austria Barging company 1060 106G 0
DDSG Tankschiffahrt GrnbH?* Austna Barging compary 1000 1000
Helogistics Transport GenbH® Austna Barging comparvy 1000 1000
DBSG Mahart Kit {formerly Mahart Duna Cargo Kit )* Hungary Barging compary 1000 1000
Pancar Kft* Hungary Barging company 1000 1000
Ferrexpo Port Services GmbH’ Austna Port senvices 1000 1000
Helogistics Asset Leasing Kft 7 Hungary Asseat holding company 1000 1000
Ferrexpo Shipping Intemational Limitad?® Marshall Istands Holding company 1000 1000
lron Dastiny Limitexi® Marshalt [stands Shipping compary 1000 1000
Transcanal SRL® Romania Port sernces 776 776
Unversal Service Group Ltd'™ Ukrane Asset holding compary 1000 —

Tha Group s interast in these enbihes s hakd through Ferrexpo AG

QO AWK

Mucklie Last FZE

Fermexpo AG was tha holding comparny of the Group until as a result o the pre 1PO restructunng Ferrexpo plc became the holding company on 24 May 2007
Tha Group s nteres! in these entihies 15 held through OJSC Farrexpo Poltava Mirung

Tha Groups snterest in thes antdy 1s hald thmugh both Femexpo AG and Ferrexpo Service Limuted
Tha Group $ iisrest in thesa entitiss are bekd through Femexpo AG First DDSG Logisics Holding GmbH (iormerty Helogsics Holding GmbH) and ds subsdanes wars acquired n December 2010
Baoth subsdianas were ncorporated i March 2011 The Group s nigrest in Ferrexpo Mddle East FZE s held by Ferrexpo AG whaneas Farraxpo Singapare PTE Limded s a subschary o Fermrexpo

The subsdanes were ncorperated in Aprd 2011 and Decambyer 2017 Tha Group s nterest 13 held through Helog:stics Holding GmbH

7
8 Thesut Wera Ncerp d on 14 July 2011
]

The company was acquired on 1 Oclober 2011 and the Group § interest 1s held through Helogisbes Hokding GmbH
10 The company was incorporated in December 2012 and the Group s interast 1s hald through Farmexpo Services Limitad

The Group also holds an interast of 48 6% (2011 48 6%) In TIS Ruda, a Ukranian port located on the Black Sea As this 1s an associate,

it 1s accounted for using the equity method of accounsng and further disclosed in note 14
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consoiidated financial statements of Femexpo plc and its subsidianies have been prepared in accordance with Intematonal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS"} as adopted by the European Union (EUY} IFRS as adopted by the EU differs n certain respects from IFRS as 1ssued by the
International Accounting Standards Board [ASB') However, the consolidated financial staternents would be no different had the Group applied
IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB, as it applies to accounting pencds ended 31 December 2012

The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for post-employment benefits and avalable-for-sale
financial ;nstruments, the latter measured at farr value in accordance with the requirernents of 1AS 39 Ainancial instruments  Recogrition and
measurement, the former measured in accordance with IAS 18 Employee banefits The consoldated financial statements are presented In
thousands of US Dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise ndicated

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the censolidated financial staterents are consistent wath those followed in the preparation
of the Group's annual financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2011, except for those changes detailed in note 3

Basis of consolidation
The consolidaied financial statements compnse the financial statements for Ferrexpo pic and its subsidianes as at 31 December each year
The financial staterments of the subsidianes are prepared as at the same reporting date as Ferrexpo ple's, using consistent accounting policies

Subsidianes acquired are fully consolidated from the date of effective control, when the Group cbstains effective control Similarty, subsidianes
disposed of are deconsohdated from the date on which the Group ceases to hold effective control A change in the cwnership interest of a
subsidiary without a loss of control 1s accounted for as an equity transaction

All intercompany balances and transactions including unreaksed profits ansing from intra-group transactions hava been eiminated in full
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered

Business combination and goodwill

On the acquisition of a subsidiary, the business combination 1s accounted for using the acguisiton method The cost of an acquisition s measured
as the aggregated amount of the consideration transterred, measured at the date of acquisition The consideration paid 15 allocated to the assets
acquired and liabiities assumed on the basis of farr values at the date of acquisition Acquistion costs are expensed when incurred and included
in general and admistrative expenses

If the cost of acquisiion exceeds the dentifiable net assets attnbutable to the Group, the difference 1s considered as purchased goodwaill, which 1s
not amortised but annually reviewed for impairment or in case of an ndication of iImpairment In the case that the identifiable net assets attributable
to the Group excead tha cost of acquisiion, the diffsrence is recognised in profit and loss as & gain on bargain purchase For each business
combination, the Group measures the non-controlling interest in the acquirea esther at tarr value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
dentfiable net assets If the initial accounting for a business combination cannct be completed by the end of the reporting pened In which the
combination occurs, only provisional amounts are reported, which can be adjusted dunng the measurement penod of 12 months after

acquisstion date

After intial recognition, goodwill 15 measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Detals of the impairment testing are disclosed in
note 19

Investments in associates
The Group’s Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accountng An associate 15 an entity in which the Group has
significant influence and which s neither a subsidiary nor a jomnt venture

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate s camed in the statement of financral posiion at cost plus post-acquisiicn changes in
the Group’s share of net assets of the associate Goodwill relating to an associate ts iIncluded n the carrying amount of the investrment and s not
amortised nor Indwdually tested for Imparment  After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it I8 necessary to recognise
any additonal impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in the associate

The share of profit of an assoctate 1s shown on the face of the ncome statement  This 1s the profit attnbutable to the Group and therefore 1s profit
after tax and non-controling interests in the subsidianes of the associate The reporting dates of the assocates and Ferrexpo plc ars identical and
the associates’ accounting policies are generally in confermity with those apphed by the Group

Functional and presentational currencies

Based on the economic substance of the undertying business transactions and circumstances relevant to the parent, the functional currency

of the parent has been determined to be the US Dollar, with each subsidiary determining its own functional currency based on its own
crcumstances The Group has chosen the US Dollar as its presentational currency and OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining {the pnncipal subsidiary)
has determined that its functional currency 1s the Ukrainian Hryvnia
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currency translation

For indwvidual subsidiary Company accounts, transactions in foreign currencies (ie other than the functional currency) are recorded at the rate
ruling at the date of the fransaction Monetary assets and labiities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional cumency at
the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and non-monetary assets and labiities at the histone rate Foreign exchange dfferences ansing
on translation are recognised In the ncome staterment

For presentation of Group consolidated accounts, if the funchonal currency of a subsidiary 1s different to the presentational curmrency as at the
reporting date, the assets and habilities of this entity are translated into the presentatonal currency at the rate ruling at the reporting date and the
income statement is translated using the average exchange rate for the penod The foreign exchange differences ansing are taken directly to a
separate component of equity On disposal of a foreign entity the defarred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to the particular foreign
operation Is recognised in the Income statement

Revenue recognition
Revenus I1s recognised to the extent that it s probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can ba reliably measured
The following specific recognition cntena rust also be met before revenue 1s recognised

Sale of goods ncluding pellet sales
Revenue I1s recognised when the nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and can be reliably measured

Reverve 1s measured at the far value of the consideration receved or recavable and represents amounts recewvable for goods provided in the
normia course of busingss, net of discounts, customs duties and sales taxes Risks and rewards of the ownership of goods passes when title for
the goeds passes to the customer as determined by the terms of the sales agreement The sales are typically made under the following terms

¢ CIF {Cost Insurance and Freight),

* CFR (Cost and Freight),

* DAP (Delvery At Place), or

+ FOB (Free on Board)

Under the CFR and FOB terms the title passes on the bill of lading date whereas under the other terms revenue 18 recognised when goods arrve
at agreed destination or at border crossing

if the sales agreement allows for adjustment of the sales pnces based on survey of the goods by the customer (g g ore content) the revenue 1s
recognised based on the most recent deterrnined product specification

Other sales
Other sales include the processing and sale of ore and ore concentrate, the sale of spare parts, matenals and crushed rocks and the repar and
rentat of raltway wagens

Logistic services
Revenue from iogistic services rendered 1s recognised as the services are complsted Where services are invoiced in advance of discharge,
amounts attnbutable to the time between the end of the reporting penod and the discharge date are deferrad

Rendanng of services
Revenue from the rendenng of services Is recogrised when senvices are complete Sales of services pnmanly include repars, canteen revenue
and recharges to local custormners for electncity consumption and railway usage

Rental income
Rental ncome ansing from operating leases 1s accounted for on a straight-kne basis over the lease terms

Foreign exchange gains and losses

Foreign exchange gains and losses are reported on anet basis Operating foreign exchange gains and losses are those resuiting directly from
the Group's operating actvities Non-operating gains and losses are predominately those associated with the sale of assets (including monetary
assets), the translation of nterest beanng Ioans and borrowings denominated in currencies different to the respective functional currenctes and
transactonal gains and losses from the conversion of cash balances in currencies different to the local functional currencies at exchange rates
ditferent to those at the inbal recognition date

Finance income and expense

Finance income compnses interest ncoma on furks nvested Interest ncome 1s recognised as it accrues in the income statement using the
effective nterest method
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Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Finance expenses comprise the interest expense on borrowings and other financial habilties Finance expenses alsc comprise the effect of the
estimated discount of overdue VAT balances expected to be recaved after more than 12 months following the penod end

Taxes

Current income tax

Current tax assets and habiities for the current and pnor pencds are measured at the amount estimated to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authonties The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date

Deferred income tax
Deferred iIncome tax 1s provided using the lability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
labities and therr carrying amounits for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax abiities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, If it 1S probable that they become taxable, except

* whers the deferred tax hability anses from the inhal recognition of goodwill or of an asset or lability In a transaction that 1s not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, and

* inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidianes, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it 15 probabie that taxable profit will be avaiable aganst which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utised, except
» where the deferred Income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anses from the intial recognition of an asset or hability
In & transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss, and
* n raspect of deductible temporary differences asscciated with nvestmeants in subsidianes, associates and interests In jont ventures, deferred
tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be avalable against which the temporary differences can be utlised

The carrying amount of deferred Income tax assets IS reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be avalable to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utised Unrecognised deferred income tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recogrised to the extent that 1t has becorme probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset s realised or the
hakaity 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantvely enacted at the reporting date

Income tax on items recognised drrectly in equity 1s recognised n equity and not in the income staternent

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilties are offset, if a legally enforceable nght exists to set off current tax assets against current tax llabiities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxaton authority

Value added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax ('VAT"), except

+ where VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services 1s not recoverable from the taxation authonty, In which case VAT 18 recognised as part
of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of expense item as applicable, and

* recevables and payabtes are stated with the amount of VAT inciuded

The net amount of VAT recaverabls from, or payable to, the taxation authonity i1s disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements VAT recevablg
balances are not discounted unless the overdue balances are expected to be received after more than 12 months fallowing the penod end Where
Intentions have been communicated officially that VAT repayments, which are due, are to be converted into bonds ar other financial instruments,
these are valued at the estimated market value of such nstruments with any adpustment charged to the income staternent

Equity

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of Ordinary Shares and share options are recognised
as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects
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Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Employes benefit trust reserve

Ferrexpo plc shares held by the Group are classified in capital and reserves as the ‘employse benefit trust reserve’ and recognised at cost
Consideration recenved for the sale of such shares I1s also recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sale and the onginal
cost taken to revenue reserves No gain or 10ss 15 recognised on the purchase, issue or canceltation of equity shares

Treasury shares

Own equity Instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recogrised at cost and deducted from equity No gain or loss 1s recognised in
the income statement on the purchase, sale, Issue or canceliation of the Group's own equity instruments  Any difference between the camrying
amount and the consideration 1s recognised in other capital reserves

Financial assets
Dervative financial instruments
The Group dees not hold any dervative financial Instruments

Non-dervative financial instruments

Noen-denvative financial instruments compnsse investments In equity and debt secunties (promissory notes), trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, loans and borrowings and trade and other payables Non-dervative financial Instruments are recognised at farr value {being the
far value of the consideration given or receivad) plus any drrectly attnbutable transaction costs

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date (| e the dats that the Group commits 16 purchase or sell
the asset) Regular way purchases or sales are those that require delivery of assets within the penod generally established by reguiation or ‘
convention I the marketplace

The Group has not designated any financial assets as at far value through profit or loss (FVYTPL) ‘

Loans and recenvables

Loans and recevables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market Such assets
are camed at amortrsed cost using the effective Interest method Gains and lossas are recognised In Income when the (oans and recevables are
derecognised or iImpared along with the amortisation process

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

All investment, except for investrments in associates, are accounted for as avalable-for-sale Avalable-for-sale financial assets are those non-
dervative financial assets that are designated as avalable-for-sale or are not classified as loans or recevables, heid-to-matunty iInvestments
or financial assets at FVTPL.

After inhal measurernent, available-for-sale financial Investments are subsequently measured at far value with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprenensive incorme in the avalable-for-sale reserve untit the investrment 1s derecogrised At this time, the cumulative gain
orioss 1s recognised in other operating Income, or determined to be imparred, at which tme the cumulative loss s recognised in the income
staternent in finance costs and removed from the avallable-for-sale reserve

The farr value of nvestrments that are actively traded in organised financial markets 1s determined by reference to quoted market bvd prices at
the close of business on the reporting date For investments where there 1s no actve market, the far value 1s determined using discounted
cash flow analysis

Other
Other non-dervative financial Instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method less any imparment losses

Financial liabilities

Trade and gther payables

Trade and other payables are recognised and imtially measured at cost Subsequently, instruments with a fixed matunty are remeasured at
amortised cost using the effective Interest rate method Amortised cost 1s caleulated by taking into account ary transaction costs and any discount
or premiurm on settlement
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting polictes continued

Interest-beanng foans and borrowings

Allloans and borrowings are intially recogrused at the farr value of the consideration receved less directly attributable transaction costs After intial
recognition, interest-beanng icans and bomowings are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed Gains and
losses are recognised in the ncome staterment whan the llabiities are derecogrised as well as through the amortisahon process

impairment of financiat assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets 1s impaired

Assets carmed at amortised cost

If there 1s obyective evidence that an imparment [oss on loans and recevables carned at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
1 measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of astmated future cash flows (excluding future credit
tosses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s onginal effective Interest rate e the etfectve interest rate computed at imtial
recegnition) The carrying amount of the asset s reduced erther directly or through use of an allowance account The amount of the loss 1s
recognised 1n the income statement

The Group first assesses whether objective avidence of imparrment exists indwidually for financial assets that are Indnedually significant, and
indwidually or collectively for financial assets that are not indmdually significant If it 18 deterrmuned that no chjective ewdence of iImparment exists
for an ndmidually assessed financtal asset, whether significant or not, the asset 1s Included in a group of financial assets with similar credit nsk
charactenstics and that group of financial assets 1s collectively assessed for mparment Assets that are indwidually assessed for imparment
and for which an impairment loss 1s or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of imparment

if, In a subsequent penod, the amount of the iImparment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occumng after the
impaimment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed Any subsequent reversal of an imparment Ioss 1S recogrised
n the Income statement to the extent that the camying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
For avallable-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s objective emdence that an investment
or a group of Investments 1s impaired

In the case of equity investments classified as avallable-for-sale, objecive evidence would include a significant or prelonged decline in the fair value
of the iInvestment below its cost Where there 18 evidence of mparrment, the cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current farr value, less any Impairment loss on that Investment previcusly recognised in the income statement) 1s remaoved from other
comprehensive Income and recognised in the Income statement

Impairment losses on equity iInvestments are not reversed through the Income staternent, ncreases in therr far value after imparment are
recognised directly in other comprehensiva income

Leasas

The determination of whather an arrangement is, or contains, a lease 1s based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, 1@ whether
fulfilment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement corveys a nght to use the asset, even it that
nght s not specified In an arangement

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantally all the nisks and benefits Incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease at the farr value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments Lease
payments are apportioned betwesen finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achisve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability Finance charges are recognised in the iIncome statement

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful Iife of the asset However, If there 15 no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term, the asset 1s depreciated over the shorter of the estmated useful life of the asset and the lease term

Qperating lease payments are recogrised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantally all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases
Intal direct costs Incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over thelease
term on the same bases as rental ncome Contingent rents are recogrised as revenus in the penod in which they are eamed
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Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs drrectly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarly takes a substantial penod of tme
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets All other borrowing costs are expensed i the
pencd they occur Borrowang costs consist of interest and other costs that an entrity incurs in connection with the borrewing of funds In the case
of general borrowings used to fund the acquisition or construction costs of qualifying assets, the borrowing costs to be capitalised are calculated
based on a weighted average interest rate applicable to the relevant general borrowings of the Group dunng a specific penod

The Group capitalises borrowing costs for all qualifying assets where construction was commenced on or after 1 January 2009 Al other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borowing costs for long-term construchon projects if the recogrition critena are
met The cost of self-constructed assets ncludes the cost of matenals, direct labour and an appropnate proportion of production overheads

Major spare parts and stand-by equioment qualify as property, plant and equipment when they are expected to be used dunng more than one
penod Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into gperation, such as repars and mairtenance and overhaul costs, are nomally
charged to the income statement in the penod the costs ara Incurred In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expendrture
results In future ecanomic benefits, the expenditure 1s capitabsed as an additronal cost

Upon recognition, items cf property. plant and equipment are divided into components, which represent items with a significant value that have
different useful lves Property, plant and equipment ts depreciated over its estimated useful life which 1s calculated with due regard to both its
own physical ife kmitations and the present assessment of economically recoverable reserves of the mine property at which the term 13 located
Estimates of rermaining useful Ives are made on a regular basis for all mine buldings, machinery and equipment, with annual reassessments
for major tems Changes in estmates, which affect unit of production calculations, are accounted for prospectvely

Except for mining assets which are depreciated using the urst of production method, depreciation s calculated on a straight-line basis over
the estmated useful lfe of the asset, as follows

* Buldings 20-50 years
* Vessels 30-40 years
* Plant and equiprment 3-15 years
s \ehicles 7-15 years
s Fixtures and fithings 25-10 years

An tem of property, plant and equipment 1s derecogrised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to anss from the
continued use of the asset Any gain or loss ansing on derecogrition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) 18 included in the incomae staternent in the year the itérm 1s derecognised

Assets in the ceurse of construction are initsally recognised in a separate category of property, plant and equipment On completion, the cost of
construction IS transferred to the appropriate category Assets under construction are not depraciated

On acquisition, the cost of property, plant and equipment 1s capitalised on the statement of financial positon Depreciation commences when the
tern 1s avallable for use Freehold Jand 1s not depreciated

Stripping costs included in mining assets and assets under construction
Stnpping costs in relation to mine exploration, evaluation and development costs incured up to the commencement of the production are iIncluded
in assets under construction Stnpping work compnses overburden removed at the pre-production, mine extension and production stages

After the commencement of production, the respectve pre-production stripping costs ars transfarmed to mining assets and deprectated using the
unit of production method based on the estmated economically recoverable reserves to which they relate

The producton stnpping costs are generally charged to the iIncome statement as vanable production costs The production stinpping costs are
only capitalised if the stnpping actmties ars related to a betterment of the mimng property and the duration of the future benefits is ascertaned
without a hugh degree of jJudgement i capitalised, the preduction stnpping costs are included in mining assets and depreciated using the same
methodology as for the captalsed pre-production stnpping costs (see above)

The cost of removal of the waste matenal dunng a ming's production phase 15 expensed as ncurred
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Costs ncurred in relation to the exploraton and evaluation of potential iron ore deposits are capitalised and classified as tangible or ntangble asset
depending on the nature of the expenditures Costs associated with exploratory dnlling, researching and analysing of exploration data and costs of
pre-feasibilty studies are included in tangible assets whereas those associated with the acquistion of icences are included in Intangible assets

Capitaltsed exploration and evaluation expenditures are carned forward as an asset as long as these costs are expected to be recouped in full

through successful development and exploration in a future penod

Exploration and evaluation assets ncluded n intangble and tangible assets are measured at cost and nether amortised nor depreciated, but
monitered for Indications of mpairment  To the extent that the capitalised expenditures are not expected to be recouped the excess Is fully

provded for in the financial year in which this 1s determined

Upon reaching the development stage, exploration and evaluation assets are transferred 1o asset under construction

Intangible assets
Goodwill

The policies apphed for the inihal recognition and subsequent measurement of goodwil are descnbed under Goodwill and other intangible assets

and Business cormbination on page 97 and page 125 respectively

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost The cost of other Intangible assets acquired in a busness
combination 1s its fair value as at the date of acquision Following initial recognition, Intangible assets are camed at cost less accumulated
amorusation and accumulated impairment losses  The useful Iives of other intangible assets are assessed as exther finite or indefinite

Amortisation

Other intangible assets, other than goodwill, pnmarly compnse capitalsed software costs, which are amortised on a straight-ine basis over the

estimated useful Iife of the asset, ranging batween one and three years
Captalised mineral licences are amortised on a unit of preducton basis

Impairment of assets (excluding financial assets)

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there Is an sndication that an asset may be imparred f any such indication exists, or when
annual imparment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount If the carnyng amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset s considered imparred and 15 written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value-in-uss,
the estmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a market-deterrmined pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of mcney and the nsks specific to the asset Impawment losses of continuing eperations are racogmsed In the

income statement Refer to note 19 for detalls on the impairment testing of goodwall

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether thare 1s any indicahon that previously recogrised iImpairment losses may no longsr
axist or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount 1s estimated A previously recognised iImpairment l0ss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estmates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last imparrment loss was recognised
if that 1s the case, the camrying amount of the asset s Increased to its recoverable amount That Increased amount cannot excead the camying
amount that would have been determined, net of deprectation, had no Impaimment loss been recogrused for the asset n prior years Such reversal
18 recognised in the Income statement  After such a reversal the depreciation charge s adusted in future perods to allocate the asset's revised

carrying amount, less any residual valug, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful Iife
An impaiment loss recogrused for goodwall is not reversed in a subsequent penod

Inventonies
Irnventones areg stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Costs incurred in bnnging each product to its present location and condition 18 accounted for as follows
¢ Raw matenals - at cost on a first-n, firsst-out basis

+ Finished goods and work in progress - at cost of direct matenals and fabour and a proportion of manufactunng overheads based on nomal

operating capacity, but excluding borrawing costs

The net realisable value 1s the estimated seling price in the ordinary course of business, less estmated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equnalents include cash at bank and on hand as well as short-term deposits with onginal matunty of 90 days or less

Provisions

Prowisions are recogrised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, itis probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the chligation and a reliable estimata can be made of the amount
of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision I1s the bast estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking nto account the nsks and uncertainties surrounding the chligation Where a prowision 1s measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present oblgation, its camying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows Where discounting 1s used, the increase in the prowsion
dus to the passage of tme is recognised as a finance cost When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected
o be recovered from a third party, a receivable 15 recognised as an asset if it 1s virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the recevable can be measured reliably

Site restoration costs

Site restoration provisions are made in respect of the estimated future costs of closure and restoration and for ervironmental rehabiltation costs
(determined by an independent expert) n the accounting pencd when the related emironmental disturbance occurs The provision s discounted,
if matenal, and the unwinding of the discount 1s Included in finance costs At the trme of establishing the provision, a corresponding asset 1s
capitalised where it gives nse te a future benefit and depreciated over future production from the mine to which it relates

The provision 1s reviewed on an annual basts for changes in cost estimates, discount rates or the life of operations

Pension obligations and other employee benefits

Costs relaing to these plans are accrued i the consolidated financial statements using the projected unit credit method In respect of thosa

employees entitled to such payments Management defines the underlying assumptions required by actuanes to calculate the liabiity of the

retirement obligation at each reporting date |

Gains and losses resulting from the developrment of the defined benefit obligations and market values of plan assets are recogrised when the ‘
cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains or losses for the scheme exceed 10% of the defined benefit cbiigation for unfunded plans and the higher

of planned assats/oblgation for funded schermes These gans or losses are recogrised as ncome or expense over the expected average

remaining working lives of the employess participating n the plan

The past service cost Is recognised as an expense on a straight-ina basis over the average penod untl the benefits become vested If the benefits
are already vested mmediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, the past service cost 1s recognised immediately

The defined benefit pension liabiity 1S the aggregate of the net funded status (present value of the defined benefit obligaticn less plan assets) and
actuanal gans and losses and past serice costs not yet recegnised

Numerous amendments made to IAS 19 Employee benefits will become effective as of 1 January 2013 The most fundamental change of the
numerous amendments made to IAS 1915 the removal of the so-called ‘comdor-approach’ requinng to recognise all actuanal gains and losses
from the remeasurement of the defined benrefit cbligation and the market values of the plan assets in other comprehensive income n the current
period Ses note 3 for further detalls in relation to the amendments of the standard Details to the pension schemes within the Group are provided
In note 31

Earmings per share
The basic number of Ordinary Shares is calcutated based on the wesghted average number of shares in 1ssue, excluding shares held in treasury

|
For tha current and prior year penods, basic EPS 1s calculated by dmiding the net profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity shareholders |
of Ferrexpo plc by the number of Crdinary Shares as defined above The number of Ordinary Shares in issue excludes the shares held by the \
Employee Benefit Trust and the treasury shares held by the Group Diluted eamings per share are calculated by adjusting the number of Crdinary

Shares in 1ssue on the assumption of conversion of all potenbally dilutive Ordinary Shares All share awards are potertially diutive and are

considered in the calculation of diuted earnings per share

Share-based payments

Equity-settied transactons

The cost of equity-settied transactions with employees 1s measured by referenca to the farr value at the grant date and 1s recogrised as an
expense over the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the refevant employees become fully entitled to the award Far value 1s
determined by referance to the quoted closing share pnce on the grant date In valuing equity-settted transactions, no account is taken of
any vesting conditions, except for market conditons
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Na expense is recogrised for awards that do not uimately vest, except for awards where vesting 1s dependent upon a market condition In these
cases, the awards are treated as vesting urespective of whether or not the market condition 15 sausfied, provided that all other performance
conditions are satisfied

At each reparting date before vesting, the cumulative expense 1s calculated, representing the extent to wiich the vesting perod has expred and
management's best estimate of the achieverment or otherwise of non-market conditicns and of the number of equity instruments that will ulimately
vest The movement in cumulative expense since the previous reporting date 1s recognised in the income statement, with a cormesponding entry

In equity

Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs’}

Tha LTIPs are share-based schemes whereby certain senior management and executves receva rewards based on the relatve Total Shareholder
Return { TSR} outperformance of the Group compared with a group of companes, which operate within a similar ervironment The cost of
equity-settled awards 1s measured as descrbed above together with an estimate of future social secunty contnbutions payable in respect

of this value Whers the granting of an LTIP 1s subyect to the satisfaction of certain market conditions, a vesting charge is recognised imespective

of whether or not the market condition 15 satisfied, provided hat alk other perforrmance conditions are satisfied

Where awards terrminate before the performance pencd 1s complate, any unamertised expense 1S recognised immediately

Note 3 New accounting policies
The accounting policies and methods of computation adepted in the preparation of these consolidated financial staterments are consistent
with those of the previous year, except for the adoption of new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 January 2012

None of the new and amended standards or interpretations affected the reported results and financial positions  The adoption of the standards
or Interpretations 1s descnbed below

IFRS 1 First-tma adoption of IFRS - severe hypennflation and removal of fixed dates for first tme adopters

The amendments were issued In December 2010 and became effactive for annual pencds beginning on or after 1 July 2011 The amendments
to IFRS 1 provide guidance for entities emerging from severe hyperinflation and replace the date of prospective application of the derecognition
of financial assets and liabilbies of 1 January 2004 with the date of transition to IFRS  Both amendmeanis did not have an impact on the financial
postion or performance of the Group

IFRS 7 Financial nstruments  disclosures - transfer of financial assets

The amendment to IFRS became effective for financial years beginming on or after 1 July 2011 The amendment requires the disclosure of
information that enables the users of the financial staternents to understand the relationship betwesn transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in ther entirety and the associated labilties as well as, In the case of fully derecogrised financial assets in which the entity retains
continuing Invelvement, information to evaluate the nature of, and associated nsks with continuing involvement in the derecognised {inancial assets
The application of this amendment did not have impact on the financial statements of the Group

I1AS 12 Income taxes — recovery of undertying assets

The amendment to the standard was 1ssued in December 2010 and became effective for financial years beginrung on or afier 1 January 2012

The amendment provides an exception to the general pnnciple of measunng deferred taxes for investment properties measured at far value and
introduces a rebuttable presumption that the carrying amount of such assets will be recovered entirely through sate The adoption of this amended
standard did not have an Impact on the financial pesiton or perfermance of the Group

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has elected not to early adopt the following rewised and amendead standards

IFRS 1 First-tme adoption of IFRS — government loans

The amendment requires first-ime adopters to apply the requirements of lAS 20 Accounting for government grants and disclostre of government
assistance prospectvely to govemnment loans existing at the date of transition to IFRS This amendment 1s effective for annual penods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and will have no impact on the Group's financial pesiion and performance

IFRS 7 Financial instruments  disclosures ~ offsetting financial assets and financial kabilites

The amendment requires disclosure of informaton about nghts of offset and related arrangements (e g collateral posting requiremenis) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or similar agreement The amendmants are effective for annual penods beginning

on or atter 1 January 2013 with retrospective disclosure for all comparative panods and will have no iImpact on the Group's financial position

and parformance
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Note 3 New accounting policies contnued

IFRS 9 Financial nstruments  classification and measurermnent

The IASB hasssued the first phase of IFRS 9 that will replace IAS 39 The new standard applies 1o classification and measurement of financial
assets as defined in 1AS 39 The standard 1s effective for annual pencds beginning on or after 1 January 2015 The adoption of the first phase of
IFRS @ mught have an effect on the classificaton and measurement of the Group's financial assets The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction
with the other phases, when i1ssued, o present a comprehensive picture In subsequent phases, hedge accounting and imparrment of financial
assets will be addressed by the IASB

IFRS 10 Consoldated financial statements

The new standard promdes additional guidance to assist in the determination of which entities are controlled and are required to be consolidated
This standard replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consclidated and separate financial staternents that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements Thae IASB implementation date 1s for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 whareas the standard becomes
mandatory in the EU only for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 Tha Group does not intend to take advantage of the possibility
of an early adoption The impact on the accounting for the Group's associated company TIS Ruda will be assessed

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements

The new standard replaces |AS 31 Interests in joint ventures and SIC 13 Jontly-controlled entites - non-monetary contnbutions by venturers The
IASB implementation date 1s for penods beginring on or after 1 January 2013 whereas the standard becomes mandatory in the EU enly for annual
penods baginning on or after 1 January 2014 Tha standard defines contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement and the accounting
for joint operations and jont ventures The Group does not iIntend to take advantage of the possibility of an early adoption and will review its
arrangements in place in order to evaluate the potential impact

IFRS 12 Disclosure of involvement with other entities

The new standard covers the disclosures that wera previously required in consolidated financial staternents under IAS 27 Consolidated and
separate financial statements as well as those included in IAS 31 Interests in joint ventures and 1AS 28 Investments in asscciates The IASB
implementation date I1s for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 whereas the standard becomes mandatory in the EU only for annual
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 The Group does not intend to take advantage of the possibility of an earty adoption, but expects
that a number of additonal disclosures will be required under the new standard

IFRS 13 Far value measurement

The new standard becomes effective for annual panods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and provides guidance on how to measure farr value
under IFRS and when farr value 1s required or permitted The Group does not intend to take advantage of the possibility of an early adoption and 1s
cumrently assessing the impact of the new standard on its financial poswon and performance

IAS 1 Financial statement presentation — presentation of items of other comprehensive INncome

The amended standard was 1ssued in June 2011 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2012 The amendment
requires to group items in other comprehensive ncome based an whether they will be potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss at a future point of
time or whether they will never ba reclassified The amendment affects presentation only and will have no smpact on the Group's financial position
or performance

IAS 19 Employee benefits

The most fundarmental change of the nurmerous amendments made to IAS 1915 the removal of the so-¢alled ‘comdor-approach’ requinng to
recognise all actuanal gains and lesses from the remaasurement of the defined bensfit obligation and the farr values of the plan assets in other
comprehensive Income In the current penod  This amandment will affect the Group's financial position and performance as well as the
presentation of the defined benefit obligation The Group does not ntend to take advantags of the possibility of an earty adoption of the numerous
amendments made to IAS 19 that becomes effective for annual penods beainning onvor after 1 January 2013 The removal of the ‘comdor-
approach’ under the amendments to IAS 19 will result in the recegnition of unrecogrised actuanal losses and past senvice costs through other
comprehensive income If the Group woukd have applied the amended standard for the financial year 2012, the shareholders equity would have
been lower by US$51,815 thousand and US$26,885 thousand as of 1 January 2012 and as at 31 December 2012 respectively As a result, the
cumrent year banefit expanses for the financial year 2012 would have been lower by US$3,764 thousand The amendment of the IAS 19 standard
will be retrospectvely applied in the financial year 2013 Detalls of the pension schemes of the Group are provided in nota 31

IAS 32 Financial nstruments presentation — offsetting financial asssts and financial labiities

The amendments clanfy existing application issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial iabilties requrements The amendments
are not effective until annual pencds beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with retrospective application No matenal effects on the Group’s
financial position and performance are expectad from this amendmeant
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Note 3. New accounting policies continued

IFRIC 20 Stnpping costs In the production phase of a surface mine

The new nterpretation covers the accounting for the necessary removal of mine waste matenals in order to gain access to the mineral ore deposit
dunng the production phase of a mine The interpretation provides guidance on the accounting and separation of the costs of stnpping actvities
resutting in the producton of Inventory in the cument penod or Improved access to further mineral ore deposits that will be mined in future penods
The new interpretation applies to annual penods beginning on or atter 1 January 2013 The Group does not intend to take advantage of the
possibility of an early adoption and no matenal effects on the financial posiion or performance of the Group are expected

Improvemnents to |FRSs (iIssued May 2012)

The IASB has 1ssued amendments to its standards, pnmanly with a view to remowing inconsistencies and clanfying wording There are separate
transitonal provisions for each standard The adoption of the following amendment will result In changes to accounting policies, but will not have
any wnpact on the financial position or performance of the Group

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment

The improvement clanfies that magor spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the defirition of property, plant and equipment are not
nventory As a result of this mproverment, major spare parts and servicing equipment will have to be reclassified from inventory to property, plant
and equipmant in the first half of the financial year 2013 The impact of mplementing the amendment on the Group's Inventory 1s being assessed
The amendment affects presentation only and will have no impact on the Group's financial positon or performance

Other amendments resutting from improvements to the following standards and interpretations will not have an impact on the accounting policias,
financial position or performance of the Group

* IFRS 1 First-time adoption of IFRS

* 1AS 1 Presentation of financial staternents

* |AS 32 Fnancial nstruments  presentation

* |AS 34 Intenm financial reporting

Note 4 Use of estirnates

The preparaton of consolidated financial staternents in conformity with [FRS requires management to make estmates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reportad in the consalidated financial statermnents and accompanying notes These estimataes are based on information available as at
the date of authonsing the consolidated financial statements for Issue  Actual results, therefore, could differ from those estimates

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertanty and critical jJudgements made by management in preparng the
consolidated financial informaton are descnbed in the following notes

Property, plant and equipment

The determination of far value and value-in-use requires management to make estmates and assumptions about exgected production
and sales volumes, commodity prices (considenng current and histonical pnces, pnce trends and related factors), reserves, operating costs,
closure and rehabilitation costs and future capital expenditure These estimates and assumptions are subject to nsk and uncertanty, hence
there 13 a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter these projections, which may iImpact the recoverable amount of the assets

In such circumstances, some or all of the carrying value of the assets may be impared and the impairment would be charged aganst the
Income statement The total of property, plant and equipment ameunted to US%$1,342,039 thousand as of 31 December 2012 (2011
US$924,690 thousand) See also note 18 for further iInformation

Pre-production stnpping costs

Overburden and other mine waste matenals have to be removed pror to the production of the mine in order to gain access to the ron ore body
These actmbes are referred to as pre-production stnpping costs and are capitaised under assets under construction The pre-production stnpping
costs are capitalised based on calculabons which require the use of jJudgement and estimates in terms of estimated tonnage of overburden and
waste matenal to be removed dunng the life time of the mine and the expected recoverable reserves that can be extracted The change of the
mine plan fife and design} In the future may result n changes to the expected stnpping ratio {waste to mingral reserves ratic) and require

adustment of the capitalised pre-production stnpping costs At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of capitalised pre-production stnpping
costs Included In assets undar constructions amounted to US$36,794 thousand (2011 US$151,393 thousand) See atso note 18 for further
information

Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets

As outined in note 19 the Impairrment testing of goodwaill 1s based on significant judgements and assumptions made by the management when
performing the annual impaiment testing of these non-currant assets Changes to be made to these assumptions may alter the resuits of the
Imparment testing, the mpawrment charges recorded in profit or loss and the resulting camying values of the non-cunent assets tested The
carrying amount of the goodwill amounted to US$98,413 thousand as of 31 December 2012 (2011 US$98,453 thousand) Related disclosures
are also made In note 19
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Note 4 Use of estimates continued

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and labilites recorded In the statement of financial position cannot be denved from active markets, they are
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model The nputs to these models are taken from observable markets
whare possible, but where this 1s not feasible, a degree of judgement 1s required in estabhishing far values The judgements include considerations
of inputs such as iquidity nsk, crecit nsk and volatiity Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reparted far value of financial
nstruments Detaled information on the carrying amounts of financial assets and kabiliies ars given in note 37

Taxes recoverable

Within the Ukraine, the Group has imited domestic sales and exports the majonty of ts products so that VAT paid on purchases of goods and
capital equpment cannot be fully offset from VAT on domestic sales and the Group relies on refunds to be made by the Ukraintan government tax
authorty Since the financial year 2010, refunds have not been made on tme by the Ukrainian government tax authonty and the gross recoverable
balance increased to US$301,535 thousand as of 31 December 2012 (2011 US$171,654 thousand) Despite the fact that the vast majonty of this
balance 1s due for snrediate repayrent, there 1s a nsk that a large portion will be recovered only after more than 12 months from the penod end
An estmated discount of US$20,000 thousand has been recorded as of 31 Decernber 2012 (2011 nil) to reflect the tme value of money based
on management'’s best estimate of the anticipated timing of refunds The aexact timing 1s subject to uncertanties and outside of management's
control A change of estimate of timing may affect the balance of the recorded discount in future penods Additional disclosures are made

innote 26

Defined benefit pension habilty

The valuation for defined benefit superannuation schernes requires management fo make judgements as to the nature of benefits provided

by each scheme and thereby determine the classification of each scheme For defined benefit schemes, managerment is required to make
annual estirmates and assumptions about future retumns on classes of scheme assets, future remuneration changes, employee attnbion rates,
administrabion costs, changes in benefits, inflaton rates, exchange rates, Iife expectancy and expected remaning penods of service of employaes
In making these estimates and assumphions, management considers advice provided by external adwisers, such as actuanes At 31 December
2012, the carrying amount of defined benefit pension lability was US$23,504 thousand (2011 US$13,329 thousand) Detaled disclosure 1s made
innote 31

Provision for site restoration

The Group's accounting policy for the recogniion of site restoration provisions requires significant estimates and assumphions such as
requirements of the relevant legal and regulatory framework, the magnitude of possible contamination and the timing, extent and estimated future
costs of required closure and rehabilitation actvity These uncertanties may result in future actual expenditure diffenng from the amounts currentty
provided At 31 December 2012, the camrying amount of the provision for site restoration amounted to US$2,368 thousand (2011 US$3,015
thousand) See also note 32 {or further information

Deferred income tax

The Group's accounting policy for taxation requires management's judgement in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certan deferred tax
liabilibes are recogrised on the statement of financial positon Deferred tax assets, Including those ansing from unrecouped tax losses, capital
losses and temporary differencas, are recognised only where 1t 1s considered more tkely than not that they will be recovered, which 1s dependent
on the expected generation of suffictent future taxable profits A deviation between expected and seffective future taxable profits in the diiferent
local junsdictions may have an adverse impact on the recognised defarred tax balances in the consoldated financial statements of the Group

Assumptions about the generabon of expected future laxable profits depend on management's estimates of future cash flows These depend on
estimates of future production and sales volumes, commodity prices, reserves, operating costs, closure and rehabilitation costs, capital expenditure,
dmdends and other capital management transactions Judgements are also required about the application of ncome tax legistation These
judgements and assumptions are subject to nsk and uncertanty, hence there 1s a pessibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations,
which may impact the amount of recognised deferred tax balances in the consolidated financial statement of the Group and the amounts of other
tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognised In such arrcumstances, some, or all, of the carmying amount of recognised deferred tax
assets and habidties may require adjustment, resulting in a corresponding credit or charge to the mcome statement At 31 December 2012, the
Group’s consolidated financiat staternents showed deferred tax assets of US$29,130 thousand (2011 US$23,426 thousand) and deferred tax
liakkties of US$2,581 thousand (2011 US$2,232 thousand} See also note 22 for further information
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Note 5 Segment information

The Group is managed as a single enbity which produces, develops and markets its pnncipal product, iron ore pellets, for sale to the metallurgical
Industry While the revenue generated by the Group 1s analysed, there are no separate measures of profit reported to the Group's Chief Operating
Decision-Maker (CODM?) [n accordance with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments', the Group presents its results in a single segment which are

disclosed in the Income staterment for the Group

The management monitors the operating result of the Group based on a number of measures including EBITDA, ‘C1' costs and the net
financial indebtedness

EBITDA

The Group presents EBITDA because it believes that EBITDA is a usefut measure for evaluating its ability to generate cash and its operating

performance The Group's full defirihon of EBITDA 15 disclosed in the Glossary on page 138

Yaar endad Year ended
USE00 Notes a2z sz
Profit before tax and finance 340,869 758,528
Write-offs and mparment losses 13 836 478
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,067 46
Share-based payments 38 1,608 831
Depreciation and amortisation 54,169 41,003
EBITDA 401,549 800,946

‘C1’ costs

'C1’ costs represents the cash costs of production of ron pellets from own ore drvded by production volums of own ars, and excludes non-cash
costs such as depreciation, penston costs and iInventory movements, costs of purchased ore, concentrate and production cost of gravel

Year ended Year ended
US$000 31232 31121
Cost of sales - peliet production 642,654 600,790
Depreciation and amortisation {39,290) (28,639)
Purchased concentrate and other tems for resale (29,254) (102,908
Processing costs for purchased concentrata (3,293 (7.873)
Production cost of gravel {612) (572)
inventory movements 9,029 481
Pansion servica costs {7,560} 5,334
Qther {10,526) {7,099
C1 cost 561,148 459,514
Own ore produced {tonnes) 9,408,662 9,063,398
C1 cash cost per tonne {US$) 596 507

Net financial indebtedness

Net financiat ndebtedness as defined by the Group compnses cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, Interest-beanng loans and borrowings

and amounts payabte for equipment

Yaar ended Year ended
US$000 Notes 1212 3nzn
Cash and cash equivalents 27 596,560 890,154
Current borrowings 29 (26,846) (18.948)
Non-current berrowings 3 (993,129 (951,430
Net financial indebtedness (423,425)  (80.224)

Disclosure of revenue and non-current assets

The Group does not generate significant revenues from external customers attnbutable 10 the country of dormicile The information on the revenues

from external customars attributed to the indndual foreign countnes 1s given In note 6

The Group does nat have any signuficant non-current assets that are located in the country of dormicile of the Group  The vast majonty of the

non-current assets are located In Ukraine
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Note 6 Revenue
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 consisted of the following

Yoar ended Year enclad
US$000 31212 azn
Revenue from sales of ron ore pellets and concentrate
Export 1,329,728 1,699,154
Ukrane 331 742
Total revenue from sale of iron ore pellets and concentrate 1,330,059 1,699,856
Revenue from logistics and bunker business 81,845 73,276
Revenue from servces provided 3,202 4,092
Revenue from other sales 8,924 10,748
Total revenue 1,424,030 1,788,012
Export sales of iron ore pellets and concentrate by gecgraphical destination were as follows

Year ended Year andad
US$000 121z aezn
China 529664 569,924
Austna 339,725 453,586
Slavakia 141,765 121,041
Czech Republic 112,623 119,793
Turkay 73,180 83,722
Germany 40,486 28,898
Japan 33,389 88,875
India 23,068 47,119
Serbua 19,723 158,687
Russia 8,875 -
Romama 5,167 -
Hungary 2,063 27,509
Total exports 1,329,728 1,699,154

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2012 sales made to three customers accounted for approximately 44 7% of the revenues from export sales

of ore pellets (2011 50 2%}

Sales made to two customers indvidually amounted to more than 10% of total sales These are disclosed below

US$000
Customer A
Customer B

Year endad
1212

339,725
141,766

Year anded
azn

453,586
279,728
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Yesr snded Year anded
US$000 31212 3zn
Matenals 89,206 75,246
Purchased concentrate and other tems for resale 20254 102,908
Electncity 141,939 121,364
Personnel costs 72,939 51,677
Spare parts and consumables 26,563 20,968
Depraciation and amortisation 39,290 28,639
Gas 79,082 63,485
Fuel 56,038 47,343
Repairs and mamntanance 78,022 63,801
Royalties and levies 12,375 10,437
Cost of sales from logistics business 22,342 23,363
Bunker fusl 29,580 2531
Irventory maovements (9,028) {81
Other 26,884 15,403
Total cost of sales 694,576 649,544

Year anded Year anded
UIS$000 Iti1z12 a2
Cost of sales — psllet production 642,654 600,790
Cost of sales — logistics and bunker business 51,922 48,754
Total cost of sales 694,576 549,544
Note 8: Selling and distnbution expenses
Selling and distnbution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2012 consisted of the following

Yaar ended Yaar ended
US$000 31212 nzn
International freight for peflets 113,538 119,572
Raiway transportation 93,442 89,185
Port charges 31,891 37,724
Other pellet transportation costs 18,611 13,453
Costs of logistics business 27,495 36,671
Graval delivery costs 516 1,783
Advertising 9,643 6,911
Depreciation 9,805 8,231
Other 7,023 4,421
Total selling and distribution expenses 311,964 317,951
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Note 9° General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2012 consisted of the following

Year anded Yaar andad

us$oo0 311212 311241
Personnel costs 30,569 26,912
Bulldings and mantenance 2,597 2182
Taxes other than ncome tax and other charges 1,465 1.480
Professional feas 4,699 7.799
Depreciation and amortisation 4,636 3.968
Communication 1,144 1,149
Vehicles maintenance and fusl 2,033 1,853
Repars 1,542 1,365
Auda fees 1,589 1,445
Non-audtt fees 473 510
Securtty 2,296 1,858
Other 3,286 1747
Total general and administrative expenses 56,329 51 969

Auditor remuneration
Auditor remuneration paid 1 respect of the audit of the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary companies and for the provision
of other services not in connection with the audit is disclosed below:

Yoor anded Year ended

US$000 22 3112
Audit services

Ferrexpo pic Annual Report 823 74
Subsidiary entites 766 704
Total audit services 1,589 1445
Non-audit services

Tax adwisory 23 139
Assurance related services 203 17
Other services 247 254
Total non-audit services 473 510
Total auditor remuneration 2,062 1,955

Note 10 Other income
Other income for the year ended 31 December 2012 consisted of the following

Year endod Year ended

US$000 311212 311211
Sale of surplus maintenance sparas 1,276 2,334
Lease incoma 3,050 1597
Cther income 7.021 32
Total other iIncome 11,347 5,943
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Year snded Year endad
USE000 M1212 Hzn
Community support donations 20,810 12,393
Maovements in allowance for doubtful recenvables and prapayments made 721 (2 406}
Rasearch 680 362
Other personnel costs 2,339 1962
Other 5,611 4,780
Total other expenses 30,161 17,091
Note 12- Foreign exchange gains and losses
Foreign exchange gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2012 consisted of the following

Year ended Year ended
US$000 311212 J1zn
Operating foreign exchange gains/{losses)
Revaluation of trade recevables 7 252
Revaluation of trade payables 23 {1.612)
Revaluation of cash and cash equivalents 339 -
Other 284 -
Total operating foreign exchange gains/{losses) 653 (1,360)
Naon-operating foreign exchange gains/{losses)
Revaluation of Interest-beanng loans 1,986 (102)
Revaluation and convarsion of cash and cash equialents 5,046 605
Other {403) 2,437)
Total non-operating foreign exchange gains/{losses) 6,629 {1,934

The non-operating foreign exchange gains n 2012 relates to income receved from the conversion of US Dollars for the settlement of habilities

denorminated in Ukrainian Hyrvnia at an exchange rate higher than the one applicable upon intial recognition

Note 13 Wnite-offs and impairment losses

Impairment losses relate to adjustments made agamnst the carrying value of assets where this 1s higher than the recoverable amount Writs-offs

and impaiment losses for the year ended 31 December 2012 consisted of the following

US$E000

Wte-off of mventones

Wite-off of property, plant and equipment
Imparment of avallable-for-sale financial assets
Total write-offs and Impairment losses

Year ended
Notas M2z

215
191
0 430
836

Year ended
atizh

105
175
198
478
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Note 14 Investments in associates
As at 31 December 2012 nvestments in associates comprised

As at Agat

Countryof Ownershp 31212 a12n

Prncipal actwty incorporation % Ussooo US$000

TIS Ruda Port development Ukraine 486 16,995 19,188
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2012 the summansed financial information for the associate was as follows

Tota! assats Total kabe' bes Revanua Met profit

Asat Asat Asat Asat Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

US$000 31212 3rizn 212 aen 311212 n 311212 31zn

TIS Ruda 20,500 25,993 2,498 4,936 22,401 22,206 5,555 4,032

The infermation above 1s for 1009 of the associate named and not as a percentage based on Group's ownership The movernentin the
investment in the year represents the Group's shara of profit of US$2,772 thousand in TIS Ruda {2011 US$2,012 thousand) TIS Ruda paid
a dwvidend amounting to US$4,963 thousand for the financial year 2012 (2011 US$2,207 thousand) to the Group

TIS Ruda operates a port on the Black Sea which the Group uses as part of its distribution channel

Note 15: Finance income and expense
Finance income and expenses for the year endad 31 December 2012 consisted of ths following

Year grded Year anced
Us$000 3212 321
Finance income
Interest Income 2,454 2,505
Other finance revenue 144 5]
Total finance income 2,598 2511
Finance expense
Interest expense on financial lakxiities measured at amortised cost (53,241) (46,379
Interast on defined benefit plans {6,821) (5,765}
Bank charges (6,880) {14,885)
Other finance costs (21,149) (1,179)
Total finance expenses (88,091) (68205
Net finance expense (85,483) (85 694)

Bank charges include amangement fees charged in relation to the Group’s major bank debt facility
Cther financa costs Includes the recorded discount of US$20,000 thousand (2011 nil} to reflect the tme value of money on the outstanding VAT

recevable balances in Ukraine that are expected to be recovered after more than one year of the penod end Further information 1s provided in
note 26
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Note 16' Income tax expense
The income tax expense for the year ended 31 Decemmber 2012 consisted of the following

Year snded Year ended
USS000 311212 311zn
Current income tax
Current income tax charge 48,797 125,689
Amounts related to previous years 2,929 150
Total current income tax 51,726 125,839
Deferred income tax
Qngination and reversal of temporary differences (12,763) (10,788)
Eftect from changes in tax laws and rates 7,462 813
Total deferred income tax (5,301) 9,875)
Total income tax expense 46,425 115,964
Other comprehensive Income contained taxes on the following items charged or credited to it for the year ended 31 December 2012

Yeor ended Yeaor ended

USS00C 31212 iz
Exchange differances ansing on hedging of foreign operations (32) (153}
Net losses on avalable-for-sals investments {62) (437)
Total mcome taxes charged to other comprehensive income {94) (5900

A breakdown of the deferred tax balances s contauined in note 22

The effectrve Income tax rate differs from the corporate income tax rates The weighted average statutory rate was 9 3% for 2012 (2011 15 3%)
This 1s calculated as the average of the statutory tax rates applicable in the countnes in which the Group operates, weighted by the profits/losses)
before tax of the subsidianes in the respective countries, as Included in the consolidated financial information The effective tax rate 1s 17 8% (2011

16 8%}

A reconciliaton between the income tax charged in the accompanying financial iInformation and income before taxes multipked by the weighted

average statutory tax rate for the year ended 31 December 201215 as follows

Yaar anded Year anded!
USS000 311212 31121
Profit before tax 262,005 630,900
Notional tax computed at the weighted average statutory tax rate of 9 3% (2011 15 3%) 24,422 105 531
Deracognition of deferred tax asset (98) B0
Effsct from changes in local tax rates 7,462 722
Effact from utilisaton of non-recognised deferred tax assets {318} (781}
Effect from capitalised tax loss carry forwards - 63)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposas 8,818 9,186
Tax exempted income {422) 912
Noen-recognition of deferred taxes on cumrent year losses 3,684 2,284
Tax related 1o prior years 2,929 150
Other {52) {123)
Total iIncoma tax expense 46,425 115,964
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Note 17: Earnings per share and dvidends paid and proposed
Basic earnings per share (EPS') 1s calculated by dmding the net profit for the year atinbutable to ordinary equity shareholders of Ferrexpo plc by
the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares

Year anded Year gnded

211212 a2
Profitfor the year attrbutable to equity shareholders
Basic earnings per share (US cents) 36 63 g7 08
Oiluted earmings per share (US cents) 36.57 96 97
Underlying earmings for the year
Basic eamings per share (US cents) 36.49 97 47
Diluted earmings per share {US cents) 3543 97 35

The calculation of the basic and diuted earmings per share 1s based on the following data

Year ended Yoar ended

Thousand 311212 31121
Weighted average number of shares

Basic number of Ordinary Shares outstanding 585,060 584811
Eftect of diutive potential Ordinary Shares 973 730
Diluted number of Ordinary Shares outstanding 586,033 585541

The basic number of Ordinary Shares 1s caleulated by reducing the total number of Ordinary Shares inissue by the shares held in treasury (refer to
note 28)

Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average nurnber of Crdinary Shares in 1ssue on the assumption of corwersion of
all potentially dilutve Ordinary Shares Al share awards are potentially dilutve and are considered in the calcutztion of diluted earnings per share

'Undertying earnings’ 1s an afternative earnings measure, wihich the Directors believe prowvides a clearer picture of the undertying financial
performance of the Group's operations Underying earnings I1s prasented after non-controling interests and excludes adjusted tems
The calculation of underfying earmnings per share 1s based on the following eamings data

Year ended Yoar anded

Us$000 Notes 311212 31121
Profit attnbutable to equity holders 214,340 567,822
Write-offs and impamment losses 13 836 478
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,067 46
Non-operating foreign exchange {gans)iosses 12 (6,629) 1,934
Tax on adjusted tems 8re (282
Underiying earhings 213,493 569998

Adjusted tarns ars those items of financial performance that the Group believes should be separately disclosed on the face of the income
statement to assist in the understanding of the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group Adjusted tems that relate to the operating
parformance of the Group include mpaiment charges and reversals and other exceptional tems Non-operating adjusted tems include gans and
losses on disposal of nvestments and businesses and non-operating foreign exchange gains and losses
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Dwvidends paid and proposed

Year onded
US$000 311212
Dmwidends proposed
Final dmdend for 2012 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,309
Special dvidend for 2012 66 US cents per Crdinary Share 38,618
Total dividends proposed 57,927
Divtdends paid during the period
Intenm dnidand for 2012 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,312
Final dwvdend for 2011 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,340
Total dwidends paid 38,652

Year ended

USE000 Jzn
Dividends proposed
Final dvidend for 2011 3 3 US cents per Crdinary Share 19,301
Total dwvidends proposed 19,301
Dividends paid during the penod
intenm dvidend for 2011 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,301
Final dvidend for 2010 3 3 US cents per Ordinary Share 19,362
Total dwidends pad 38,663
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Note 18 Property, plant and equipment
As at 31 December 2012 property, plant and equipment compnsed

Exploration and Mring Pant & Fixtures Assats under
Us$00a evalaton Land assets Bu2dngs Vessels aqupmant Vehi'es ond it ngs constructon Tota!
Cost:
At 1 January 2011 - 3,134 19,668 151,444 61,863 221,684 170,487 3,746 176,983 809,009
Additons - 3328 65 18 227 64 584 164 330,215 334,666
Acquistion of subsklianes - - - 10 164 4 58 3 - 239
Transters - 1,408 882 27,215 9,579 57,000 69,494 1,468 (166,846) -
Disposals - - - {611} (686) (1,911) (1.813) {44} 731) (5,796)
Translaton differences - (11) (69) {538) (1,535) (783) (B600) (12) (530) 4.078)
At 31 December 2011 - 7.860 20,346 177,538 69,612 276,058 238,210 5,325 339,091 1,134,040
Additions 3078 - 21,696 39 979 175 470,761 496,728
Transfers - 1,764 326015 54,256 19,008 74,200 140,231 1,500 {617,084) -
Disposals - 914) (3,329) {1,291) (3.334) {4,698} 78) (1.259) (14,903
Translation differences - 73 @ 67) 1587 (108) (85) 2 (84) 1,301
At 31 December 2012 3,078 9,687 345438 228,398 110,613 346,947 374,627 6,933 191,445 1,617,166 1
Depreciation !
At 1 January 2011 - - 1,137 29,937 - 94,653 34,260 1,844 41 161,872 :
Depreciabon charge - 3 373 8575 4240 21,442 16,035 a75 - 51,643
Disposals - 3 - (344) - (1,729} (1,650 39) - {3.765)
Transfers - - - 293 - {168} (21) (104) - -
Impairment - - - 186 - - - (1) 175
Translatior: differences - - (] (112) - (334) (120 ) - {575)
At 31 December 2011 - - 1,506 38,535 4,240 113,864 48,504 2,671 30 209,350
Deprecation charge - - 5479 10008 4,666 28,367 24 052 1430 - 73,902
Disposals - - - {1,310} - {2,868) (3.981) {73} - 8,232)
Transfers - - - 4 - 2 @) 3) - -
Imparment - - - 16 - - - - 76 92
Translation differences - - 1) (18) a7 44) 20 1 - 15 |
At 31 December 2012 - - 6,984 47,235 8,903 139,321 68,552 4,026 106 275,127 I
Net book value at-
31 December 2011 - 7 860 18 840 139,003 65,372 162,194 189 706 2,654 339,061 924,690
31 December 2012 3,078 9,687 338,454 181,163 101,710 207,626 306,075 2,907 191,339 1,342,039

Assets under construction consist of ongoing capiial projects amounting to US$154,545 thousand (2011 US$187,668 thousand) and capitalised
prs-produchon stnpping costs of US$36,794 thousand (2011 US$151,393 thousand) Cnce production commences, sinpping costs are
transferred to mining assets The accounting policy for mine stnpping costs is outlined in note 2

Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised borrowing costs on qualifying assets of US$1,508 thousand (2011 ni) The capitalised

borrowing costs on general borrowings were detenmined based on the capitalisation rate of 5 8% (2011 ni), whichis the average effectve interest
rate on general horrowings durng the penod The Group has no specific borrowings in relation to gualifying assets dunng erther reporting penod

The carrying value of equipment held under financa leases and hire purchase contracts at 31 December 2012 was US$18,549 thousand {2013
US$7,792 thousand} Dunng the financial years 2012 and 2011, the Group entered into sale and lease-back transactions for rall cars and mining
equipment, which were considered to be finance leases No gain or loss was realised on the sale of the assets subject to these finance leases
Leased assets and assets under hire purchase contracts are pledged as secunty for the relatad finance leases and hire purchase habiites
US$220,053 thousand of proparty, plant and equipment have been pledged as secunty for liabilities (2011 US$128,624 thousand)

The gross value of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment thatis stil in use 1s US$45,994 thousand (2011 US$39,781 thousand)
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Note 19 Goodwill and other intangible assets
As at 31 December 212 goodwill and cther intangible assets compnsed

Exploratonand  Other ntangiblg

US$000 Goodwil evaluation assats Total
Cost

At 1 January 2011 98,747 - 4,527 103,274
Additions ~ - 2,205 2,205
Acquisiion of subsidiares 56 - - 56
Disposals - - 37 {37)
Translation differences 350) - {41) (391)
At 31 December 2011 98,453 - 6,654 105,107
Additions - 3,607 6,304 9,911

Disposals - - (53) (53)
Translation differences (40) - 51 1"

At 31 December 2012 98,413 3,607 12,956 114,976
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:

At 1 January 2011 - - 957 957
Amortisation chargs - - 831 931

Disposals - - {19) {19)
Translation differences - - {2) @
At 31 December 2011 - - 1,867 1,867
Amortisation charge - - 980 980
Disposals - - 53) 53)
Translation differences - - 11 1

At 31 December 2012 - - 2,805 2,805
Net book value at

31 December 201 98,453 - 4,787 103,240
31 December 2012 98,413 3,607 10,151 112,171

The goodwill acqurred through business combinations N previous penods has been allocated for Imparment purposes o one cash-generating
unit, as the Group only has one operating segment, being the production and sale of ron ore This represents the lowest level within the Group
&t which goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purposes

Goodwill from business combinations are not amortised, but reviewed for impairment at every balance shest date and whanever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying ameunt may not be recoverable

Imparrment testing was performed at 31 December 2012 based on a value-In-use calculation using cash flow projections over the remaning
estimated Ife of the Gonshne-Plavriskoye and Lavnkovskoye mine (‘GPL), which 1s expected to expire In 2038 according to the current approved
mine plan The estmated producton volumes are based on this mine plan and do not take Into account the sffects of expected future mine fife
extension programmes The cash flow projection is based on the financial budget covenng the next faur years and approved by senior
management The producton capacity remains at a fixed level untd full capacity 1s reached and therefore no perpetual growth rate 15 appled

for the cash flow projections beyond the budgeted four years

The major component of other Intangible assets compnses mining licences and purchased software
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Note 19 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued
Key assumptions
The pnncipal key assumptions are

Estmates/assumnptans Bass |
Future production Proved and probable reserves and resource estimates !
Commodity pnces Contract pnces and longer-term price estmates ‘
Cost of raw matenals and other production/distnbution costs Expected future costs I
Exchange rates Current market exchange rates

Discount rates Cost of capital nsk adusted for the msourca concemead ‘

Cash flows are projected based on management expectations regarding the development of the 1on ore and steel market and the cost of
produeing and distnbuting the pellets

The Company takes into account two pnncipal key assumptions, seling pnce and total production costs Within this, both macro and local factors
which influence these are considered

In determining the future long-term saling pnce, the Company takes inte account external and ntemal anatysis of the longer-term and shorter-term
supply and demand dynarmics in the lecal region and throughout the world along with costs of production of competitors and the marginal cost of
incremental production in a particular market The Company considers local supply demand balances affecting its major customers and the
effects this could have on the longer-term pnce  The assumptions for iron ore prices ranged frorn US$85 per tonne to US$128 per tonne of Fe 62%
fines CFR North Crina (2011 US$84 per tonne to US$153 per torne)

Cost of production and shipping 18 considered taking into account local inflationary pressures, maer exchange rate developments between local
currency and the US Dollar, and the longer-term and shorter-tenm trends in energy supply and demand and the effect on costs along with the
expected moverments in steel related commodity pnces which affect the cost of certain precduction inpuis

Fer the purpose of the goodwill iImpairment test, the future cash flows wera discounted using the real pre-tax discount rate of 10% {2011 10%)
per annum These rates reflect the tme value of money and nsk associated with the asset, and 13 In ine with the rates used by competitors with
a similar background

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
Management believes that due to the high value of the projects and resulting reserve base ne eascnable change in the above key assumptions
would cause the carrying value of the unit to matenally exceed its valug-n-use

Note 20 Avalable-for-sale financial assets
As at 31 December 2012 avalable-for-sale financial assets compnsed

Ownarship Comyang vahse

Am ut Asat As ot Asal
USS000 3ti212 arn2n 1212 33121
Non-current
Investments avallable-for-sale — equity instruments
{QJSC Stahanov 110% 110% 534 860
Vostok Ruda LLC 110% 110% - 430
LLC Atol 995% 995% - -
CJSC AMA 900% 900% - -
CJSC Amitek 900% 900% - -
Total non-current 534 1,290

Allinvestments relate to companies incorporated in Ukrane
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Note 20: Available-for-sale financial assets continued

Impairment testing

Ferraxpo Petroleum

The unquoted equity investments in LLC Atol, CJSC AMA and CUSC Amtek, companies engaged in the exploration and development of il and
gas fields in the Poltava Region of Ukraine, were fully impatred dunng previous financial years based on a discounted cash flow prajecton The key
assumptons used In this calculation were gas/condensate pnces, gas/cil/condensate conversion rates, production volumes, producton costs, tax
rates, projected capital expenditure, the Ukratnian Hryvnia to US Dollar exchange rate and the discount rate

There are no indicatons at 31 December 2012 that require a reversal of any imparment losses bocked in previous penods

0OJSC Stahanov

The value of OJSC Stahanov decreased due to a lower quoted market price for its shares on the Ukrainian stock exchange ('PFTS’) as of
31 Dacember 2012 The decrease of tha far value in the amount of US$326 thousand (2011 decrease of US$1,868 thousand) has been
recorded aganst the net unrealised gans reserve

Vostok Ruda LLC
The investmant In Vostok Ruda LLC was fully impaired dunng the current financial year and there are no inchcations at 31 December 2012 that
could require a reversal of the previously booked impairment losses

Further detaills regarding availabte-for-sale investments can be found In note 13 {write-offs and imparment losses) as well as note 34 (related
party transactons)

Note 21: Other non-current assets
As at 31 December 2012 other non-current assets compnsed

As at Asal
ussoco 311212 Jezn
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment 35,711 86 331
Other non-current assets 6,099 7,027
Total other non-current assets 41,810 93,358
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Note 22 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and habiities at 31 December 2012 relate to the following

Consolidatec starement
of inancial postion Caonsofidated ncome statement
Asat Asal Year andad ‘Year andeq
US3000 311212 31211 at1z1z atizn
Trade and cther recevables 496 73 423 4,019
Inventories 229 306 N 306
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 12 - 12 {293)
Property, plant and equipment 23,091 17,194 5,880 7,443
Intangible assets 53 - 59 -
IPC costs netted against share premium 33 227 {194) (499)
Tax losses recognised 1,060 2,022 {962) (208)
Qther financial assets 56 19 (20) 18
Trade and other payables 1 1 1 (29)
Accrued expenses 1,585 1,485 100 B11)
Defined benefit pensicn habiity 3,767 2,256 1,512 {400)
Provision for site restoration 353 458 (104) 49
Cther financial liabliies 9 10 (1) 7o
Qther iems 1 1 - @
Total deferred tax assets 30,746 24,052 6,629 1782
Thereof netted against deferred tax iabitties {1,616) (626)
Total deferred tax assets as per the statement of financial posthon 29,130 23,426
Trade and other recenvable {758} (1.127) 370 43
Inventones 267} - (267) 3,962
Accrued incoma and prepaid expanses (159) 218) 59 2,896
Property, plant and equipment {1,678) 944) {726) 1,524
Intangible assets - - - 111
Other non-current assets (615) - {615) 438
Other financial assets (185) (256) kil (256}
Employeo benefit trust - (305) 305 (259)
Tradse and other payables (521) - {520) 27
Lease obligations (1) 8) 7 3
Defined benefit pansion lizbility {12) - (12) -
Total deferrad tax habilities {4,197 (2,858} (1,328) 8,093
Thereof netted aganst deferred tax assets 1,616 B26
Total deferred tax habilities as per the statement of financial position {2,581) (2.232)
Net deferred tax assets/net change 26,549 21,194 5,301 9,875
The movemnent In the deferred income tax balance s as follows
Year onded Year ended
US$000 311212 at1zn
Opening balance 21,194 11,063
Income statement credit 5,301 9,875
Charges booked outsids of profit or koss 56 590
Foreign currency exchange rate adjustmeant 2 (334)
Closing balance 26,549 21,194

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had deductible temporary differences on avallable tax loss carry forwards in the amount of US$80,582
thousand (2011 US$82,453 thousand) for which no deferred tax assets were recognised The vast majorty of the avalable tax loss carry forwards
relates to the acquired logisties business In Ausina and Hungary during the financial year 2010 Tax loss carry forwards in both tax junsdictions do
not exprre Temporary differences associated with iInvestrments in subsidianes for which deferred tax liabidities have not been recognised amount to

1US$660,683 thousand (2011 US$582,370 thousand)
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Note 23 Inventornies
As at 31 December 2012 inventories compnsed

Asat Asat
L5000 N2z arizn
Raw matenals and consumables 98,439 78,111
Finished ore pellats 28,142 24,022
Work in progress 5178 11,280
Othar 7,876 4,063
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventory items - (430}
Total Inventories - current 139,635 117046
Raw matenals and consumables 12,362 -
Total iInventories — non-current 12,362 -

Inventory is held at the lower of cost or net recoverable amount tnventones classified as non-current compnses ore stockpiles that are not planned
to be processed within ¢ne year

Note 24 Trade and other receivables
At 31 December 2012 trade and other recevables compnsed

As ot &3 at
Ls$000 a1212 311214
Trade recenvables 116,135 126,715
Other recenvables 1,967 3,674
Allowance tor doubtful recenables (1,549) (1,484)
Total trade and other recaivables 116,553 128,905

Trade recevables at 31 December 2012 includes US$826 thousand (2011 US$3,249 thousand) owed by related parties The detalled related party
disclosures are made in note 34

The movement In the promsion for doubtfut recervables dunng the penod under review was

Youar ended Year ended
US$000 M2 311211
Cpening balance 1,484 3,881
Recognition 1,080 329
Reversal {1,015) {@,735)
Foraign currency transtation - 9
Closing balance 1,549 1,484

The following table shows the Group's recavailes at the reporting date that are subject to cradit nsk and the ageng and imparment profile
thereon

Asstnizi2 Recaeivabl R bles past dua but not impared
Racelvoblas nerthar past
past due and dus nor Lesa than 45to 90 Cver 90
USS000 Gross Impaired imp: 45 days days days
Trade recevables 116,135 1,465 88,792 21,978 1,008 2,892
Other recevables 1,967 84 891 20 531 441
Agat 311211 Recevablas Racervabies past due but not mpared
Agcevables nather past
Gross pas! cue andd dua nor Less than 45 to 90 Over 90
LSS000 amount npzred impared A5 days days days
Trade recenvables 126,715 1,218 111,285 11,268 1,337 1,807
Other recevables 3,674 266 2,250 36 27 1,095

The Group's exposures to credit and currency nsks are disclosed in note 37
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Note 25 Prepayments and other current assets
As at 31 December 2012 prepayments and other current assets compnsed

As at As gt
US$000 1212 ORI
Prepayments to suppliers
Electncty and gas 4,004 5972
Matenals and spare parts 3,289 4,833
Sarvices 4,588 2,594
QOther prepayments 67 59
Accrued income 22176 7,660
Other 2,254 1,602
Total prepayments and other current assets 36,468 22720

Prepayments at 31 December 2012 include US$1,482 thousand (2011 US$693 thousand) made to related parties The detalled related party
disclosures are made in note 34

Note 26: Taxes payable, recoverable and prepaid
The income tax recevable/{payable) balance as of 31 December 2012 15 shown below

Asat Ag at
US$000 311212 anzn
Opening balance {36,200) 41,776)
Income staiement charge {51,727 {125,839)
Tax pad 99,771 132,176
Foreign exchange adjustment (557 851}
Closing balance 11,197 (36,290
Split by

Asat Asal
USS000 J11212 3rizn
Income tax recenable balance 24,869 384
Income tax payabie balance 13,672) (36,674
Incoime tax receivable/{payable) at the year end 11,197 (36,290
As at 31 December 2012 taxes recoverable and prepaid compnsed

An Asa
US$000 Nz2 a2t
VAT recarvable 186,900 172,434
QOther taxss prepaxt 36 517
Total taxes recoverable and prepaid - current 187,246 172,951
VAT receivable 97,895 -
Total taxes recoverable and prepaid - non-current 97,895 -

VAT recevable 1s as a result of VAT paid on demestic Ukraimian purchases of goods, capital equipment and services and on the import of goods,
caprtal equipment and serices into Ukraine to the extent that this cannot be offset on VAT paid on domestic sales Ferrexpo currently has imted
domestic sales and exports the majonty of its products As a result, VAT has to be recovered from the Government tax authonty and Femrexpo 1s
relant on the normal functioning of this system Dunng the financial year 2012, FPM received VAT refunds in respect of 2011 and 2012 amounting
1o US$70,644 thousand and paid Ukrainian VAT amounting to US$221,973 thousand, including US$81,043 thousand in respect of capital
expenditure As a resutt, the gross recoverable balance increased by US$129,881 thousand to US$301,535 thousand (UAH2,410 mulkon)

Management expects this amount to be fully recovered inlocal curency However, the exact tming of recovery and method of setttement I1s
subject to uncertanties, along with the prevaling exchange rate to the US Dollar at the time of repayment In the past, VAT has been recovered in
cash and by the 1ssuance of domestic local currency bonds An atternative methed of settlement could be to offset amounts recoverable aganst
current and future corporate profit tax A financial loss could resutt, for exampla from the 1ssuance of bonds which trade at a discount at the tme
of issue, continued late repaymant as a result of Gevernment fiscal constraints diminishung the present value of the recevable, or the conversion
to US Dallar of local currency receved at a different exchange rate to that recorded at the tme of payment.
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Note 26 Taxes payable, recoverable and prepaid continued

Management has considered these uncertanties Including potential continued International Monetary Fund support for the Ukrainian national
budget, domestic economic and budgstary consiraints, and current discussions with fiscal authonties In making an estimate of the timing of
recovery of the VAT due Management ¢oncluded that a large portion of the VAT s Iikely to be repaid considerably beyond the settlement terms
which will resuit in additonal funding costs for the Group As a result, an estimated discount of US$20,000 thousand has been recorded to reflect
this uncertainty and its effect is included in finance expanse The discount was calculated on the basis that VAT refunds will continue to be imitad
to an amount which 1s double monthly corporation tax payments, which has been our recent expenence Based on current management
astmates, US$186,900 thousand of VAT 1s expected to be recoverad within one year of the period end, with the remainder, amounting to
US$97,895 thousand, net of the associated discount to reflect the tme value of money, recoverable after more than one year of the penod end

Further information an the Ukrainian VAT situation 1s prowded in the nsk section on page 23

As at 31 December 2012 other taxes payable compnsed

Asat As al
USS000 J1z12 311zn
withholding tax 540 530
Environmental tax 496 2,373
Sourca tax 10 42
VAT payable 1,697 -
Other taxes 5,622 5,132
Total taxes payahle 8,365 8,077

Note 27 Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December 2012 cash and cash equivalents compnsed

Year ended Year ended

Us$000 3212 arzn
Cash at bank and on hand 304,994 799,361
Short-term deposits 291,566 90,787
Marketable securities - 6
Total cash and cash equivalents 596,560 890,154

The Group's exposure o interest rate nsk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and lizbilities are disclosed in note 37

Note 28: Share capital and reserves

Number of
US$000 shares
Balance at 31 December 2012 and 2011 121,628 513,967,956

Share capital represents the nominal vatue onissue of the Company's equity share capital, compnsing £0 10 Ordinary Shares

The fully paid share capital of Ferrexpo plc at 31 December 2012 was 613,967,956 Ordinary Shares (2011 613,967,956) at a par value of £010 paid
far In cash, resulting in share capital of US$121,628 thousand (2011 US$121,628 thousand) per the statement of financial position

The closing balance as of 31 December 2012 and 2011 includes 25,343,814 shares which are held in treasury and 3,504,523 shares held in the
employes benefit tust reserve (2011 3,744,658 shares)
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Note 28: Share capital and reserves continued

As at 31 December 2012 other reserves attnbutable to equsty shareholders of Ferrexpo plc comprised

Treasury Employes ll'BdﬁN:; Total

Unaing of share bonaf 1 trust gans Transtaton olher

Us$000 wtenast resorva roseng roserve esend reservg raserves
At 1 January 2011 N, 780 (77,260) (10,172} 2515 (291,283) (344,420)
Forgign currency translaton differences - - - - (3.661) {3,661)
Loss on avallable-for-sale investments - - - {1,868) - (1,868)
Tax effect - - - 437 153 590
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - - (1,431} {3.508) {4,939}
Share-based payments - - 756 - - 756
At 31 December 2011 31,780 {77,260) (9,416) 1,084 (264,791) (348,603}
Foreign currency translation differences - - - - {836) 836}
Loss on avalable-for-sale investments - - - {326} - {326}

Tax effect - - - 62 32 94
Total comprehensive iIncome for the period - - - (264) {804) (1.068)

Share-hased payments - - 1.608 - - 1.608
At 31 December 2012 31,780 {77,260) {7,808) 820 (205,505) (348,063)

Uniting of interest reserve

The uniting of interest reserve represents the diference between the inhal iInvestment by Ferrexpo AG In OJSC Ferrexpo Poitava Mining to gain
control of the subsidiary in 2005 and the net assets acquired, which under the pooling of iInterests method of accounting are consolidated at ther

histonc cost, less non-controlling interests

Treasury share reserve

Dunng September 2008, Ferrexpo plc completed a buyback of 25,343,814 shares for a total cost of US$77,260 thousand These shares are
currently heid as treasury shares by the Group The Companies Act 2006 forbids the exercise of any nghts (ncluding voting nghts) and the

payment of dwidends in respect of treasury shares

Employee benefit trust reserve

This reserve represents the treasury shares held by Ferraxpo AG setting up an employee benefit trust reserve The reserve 1s used to satisfy future

grants for senior management incentve schemes

Net unrealised gatns reserve
This reserve records far value changes on avalable-for-sale investments

Translation reserve

The translation reserve represents exchange differences ansing on the transfation of non-US Dollar {8 g Ukrainian Hryvnia} functional currency

operations within the Group into US Dollars

Share premium

Share premium represents the premium paid by subscnbers for the share capital issutes, net of costs directly attnbutable to the share issue

Subsequent increases in the stake have been accounted for using the parent extension concept method of accounting as descnbed in the

accounting policy section of the financial statements (note 2)
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Note 29: Interest-beanng loans and borrowings

This note provides nformation about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-beanng loans and borrowings, which are measured at

amortised cost Allloans are in US Dollars For miore information about the Group's exposure to interest rate, foreign cumrency and llquidity nsk,

see note 37

Asat As at
US$000 Netes 31212 arzn
Current
Other bank loans — secured ar 13321 8,231
Oblgations under finance leases ar 3729 1,384
Interest accrued a7 9,796 9,333
Total current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 26,846 18,948
Non-current
Eurobond 1ssued 57 491,438 480,257
Syndicated bank loans - secured 37 420,000 420,000
Other bank loans — secured fcrd 62,232 37,955
Obhgations under finance leases a7 19,469 4,218
Total non-current nterest-bearing loans and borrowings 993,139 951,430
Totel interest-beaning loans and borrowings 1,019,985 970,378

As at 31 December 2012 the Group has a syndicated US$$420 million revolvung pre-export finance facility in place and a U$$500 million Eurobend

The revohang pre-export finance faciity was drawn in full on 7 October 2011 This finance facility 1s avallable for 0 months including a commitment

amortisation over the final 24 months The matunty 1s 31 August 2016

As at 31 December 2012 the major bank debt facilty was guaranteed and secured as follows
» Ferrexpo AG and Ferrexpo Middle East FZE assigned the nghts to revenue from certain sales contracts,

» (OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining assigned all of its nghts of certain export contracts for the pellets sales to Ferrexpo AG and Ferrexpo Middle

East FZE, and

* the Group pledged bank accounts of Ferrexpo AG and Ferrexpo Middle East FZE into which all proceeds from the sale of certain iron cre pellet

contracts are receved

The unsecured US$500 millon Eurobond was 1ssued on 7 Apnl 2011 and 1s due for repayment on 7 Apnl 2016 The bond has a 7 8§75% coupon

andinterest 1s payable on a semi-annual basis
As at 31 Decamber 2012, the Group has no other commiited credit lines (2011 US$50,000 thousand)

Note 30 Trade and other payables
As at 31 December 2012 trade and cther payables compnsed

As at Asgal
USE000 311212 Jnizn
Materals and services 50,736 31,083
Payables for equipment 9,889 4,401
Dnadends payable 87 56
Qther 1,897 7.158
Total current trade and other payables 62,609 42,648

Trade and other payables at 31 December 2012 includes US$1,816 thousand (2011 US$3,215 thousand) due to related parties (see note 34)

The Group's exposure to currency and ligudity nsk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 37
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Note 31: Defined benefit pension hability

Ukramian defined benefit plan

The Group makes defined contnbutions to the Ukrainian State Pension scheme at statutory rates based on gross salary paymenis for the
employees of QJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining and LLC Ferrexpo Yenstovo GOK Such expenses are charged to the Incoma statement in the panod
the related salanes are earned The Group has also a legal obligation to compensate the Ukrainian State Pension Fund for additional pensions paid
to certain categones of the current and former employees of the Group Costs relabtng to this plan are accrued using the projected unit credit
method In respect of those employees entitled to such payments

Additionally, the Group has a legal obligation to its employees {in the form of a collective agreement) to make a one off payment on retrement to
employees with a long-term of service, this has also been included in the provision

All pension schemes in Ukraine are unfunded The defined benefit pension labilites are calculated by an ndependent actuary applying accepted
actuanal techniques

At 31 Dacember 2012, this defined banefit plan covered 5,030 current employaes (2011 4,850 people) There are 1,135 former employess
currently In receipt of pensions (2011 1,165 people) Durning the financial year 2011, the local pension legislation changed and the pension schemes
maintained by the Group In Ukraine were amended accordingly The eligibiity conditions for the penston bensfits {retirement age) are more
restrictive than before and the calculation of the insured salary changed The latter resulted in a reduction of benefits for the employees and
conseguently the defined benefit pension cbiigation at the end of the prior financral year ended on 31 December 2011

Swiss defined benefit plan

The employeas of the Group's Swiss operation are covered under a collective pension plan, which 1s govermed In accordance with the
requirements of Swiss law The assets of the pansion schema are held separately from those of the Group and are invasted with an insurance
company The annual pension costs and the defined bensfit obligation as well as the far value of the plan assets are assessed annually by an
independent professionally qualified actuary

The accumulated capital of the employees 1s subject to Interests determined by the local legislation and defined in the regulation of the pension
scheme

On ratrement employees ars entitled to recena ether a lump sum or an annual proportion of ther accumulated capital as a pension underpinned
by certain guarantees The Group, and in certain cases the smployees, make contnbutions to the pension scheme as a percentage of the insured
salanes and depending on the age of the smployees

At 31 December 2012, this defined benefit plan covered 20 people (2011 28 people)

Austnan defined benefit plan

The Group has an unfunded retirement benefit obligation covering the Austnan employees of Helogistics  All payments under the scheme are
made by the employer as a lump sum in cases of retirement, occupational disability and death in serica or redundancy The amount payable
15 dependent on the years of service up to a maximum of a full annual salary

The annual Gosts relating to this plan are accrued using the projected unit credit method The annual costs and the defined benefit obkgation are
assessed annually by an independent professicnalty qualiied actuary

At 31 December 2012, three current employees (2011 four employees) are covered Dy this plan Dunng the financial year 2011, a considerable
number of employees covered by this plan were ather made redundant or fransferred to ancther subsidiary of the Group, so that the ehgible
amounts were paid out to these parbicipants of the plan and the defined benefit pension cbligation consequently decreased as of the end of the
prior financial year ended on 31 December 2011 These events qualified as a curtalment under IAS 12, and the resutting effects were calculated
and included n the benefit expense of the pror year

The pnncipal assumptions used in determining the defined benefit obligation are shown below

Year ended 311212 Yaar ended 312 1

Swiss Austrizn Ukraindan Swiss Austnan Usranan

- schame schame schame

Discount rate 1.90% 3.50% 11.90% 240% 5 00% 11 00%
Retal pnce inflation 1.25% 2.50% 470% 100% 250% 7 00%
Expected future salary ncrease 3.00% 2.50% 5.28% 300% 2 50% 1050%
Expected future benefit Increase 0.00% 000% 000% 000% 0 00% 000%
Female Iife expactancy (yaars) 86.0 n/a 745 86O na 745
Male Iife expectancy (years) 829 n/a 63.5 829 na B3 5
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Changes in the net present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows
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Year ended 311212 Year ended 311211
Swiag Austrian Ukramian Swnss Austran Ukranean
US$0G0o ascheme scheme schame Total scheme schame schema Total
Operning defined benefit cbiigation 3,693 172 63,452 67,317 2,634 819 53,302 56,755
Current service cost 499 9 4,353 4,861 376 51 3.381 3.808
Employee contnbution 135 - - 135 144 - - 144
Interest cost a3 7 6,731 6,821 63 40 5687 5,765
Coninbution by plan participants - - - - 288 - - 288
Benefits paid {529) (1,115 {4,526) {6,170) {203} {1 347) (3 746) {5,206)
Actuanal losses/Agans) 230 14 (21,480) {21,236) 467 3 28,796 29,294
Losses/gans) on curtadment - - - - - 277 (3,760 (3,483)
Past service cost - - - - - - (19,.962) {19,962}
Terminghion benefits - 1,022 - 1,022 - 271 - 271
Foreign exchange translation adjustment 133 - (21) 112 {81) 30 Y @216} (267}
Closing defined benefit obligation 4,244 109 48,509 52,862 3,693 172 63,452 67,317
Opening plan assats 2173 - - 2173 1579 - - 1,579
Expected return on plan assets 66 - - €66 69 - - 69
Employsr contnbution 564 - - 564 450 - - 450
Empioyes contnbution 135 - - 135 144 - - 144
Contnbution by plan participants - - - - 288 - - 288
Banefits paid (529) - - (529) (203} - - (203)
Actuanal loss {13) - - {13) (109} - - (109)
Foreign exchange translation adjustment T7 - - 77 (45} - - 45}
Closing plan assets 2473 - - 2,473 2,173 - - 2173
Net funded status 1,771 109 48,509 50,389 1,620 172 63,452 65,144
Unrecognised actuarial losses {1,343) (83) (30,473) {31,899) {1,140) {3) (56.525) (57.668)
Unrecognisad past service cost - - 5,014 5014 - - 5,853 5853
Closmg balance defined benefit
pension liability 428 26 23,050 23,504 380 169 12,780 13,329
Benefit expense
Cument service cost 499 9 4,353 4,861 376 51 3,381 3,808
Interest cost 83 7 6,731 6821 68 40 5,657 5,765
Amortisation of actuanal loss 81 {60) 4,558 4,579 46 A} 3.587 3.632
Expected retumn on plan assets {66} - - {66) 69) - - 69
Racognised past service cost - - {836) (836) - - (11,528) (11,528)
Termination benefits - 1,022 - 1,022 - 271 - 271
Losses/gans) on curtalment - - - - - 306 {1,116} B10)
Current year benefit expense 597 978 14,806 16,381 421 667 (19) 1,069
Net movement on defined benefit
penston hability
Opening balanca 380 169 12,780 13,329 408 819 16,592 17,819
Benefits expense 597 a78 14,806 16,381 421 867 (19) 1,089
Benefits paid - {1,115) (4,526) {5,641) - {1,347) (3,748) (5,093
Employer contnbution (564) - - {564) {450) - - {450}
Foreign exchange translation adjustment 15 {6) {10) 1) 1 30 47 (16}
Closing balance 428 26 23,050 23,504 380 169 12,780 13,328

Contnbutions to the defined benefit plans In 2013 are expectad to be US$4,700 thousand for the schemes in Ukraine and US$550 thousand and
1US$45 thousand for those In Switzerland and Austna respectively
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Note 31 Defined benefit pension hability continued
The asset allocation of the plan assets of the Swiss scheme is as follows

Asat Asat

EIRFAY] Asnt 31z2n Asg at
US$000 L 311212 % 311211
Scheme assets at far value
Equities 244 603 220 478
Bonds 426 1,053 434 943
Properties 105 260 104 226
Other 225 557 242 526
Fair value of scheme assets 100.0 2,473 1000 2173

The overall expected rate of return on assets 1s determined based on the market value weighted expected return applicable to the undertying

asset category
Year anded ‘Year anded
31212 aen
Swisa Swiss
scheme schema
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Equities B.AT% 431%
Bonds 2.55% 2 50%
Proparties 4.86% 2 35%
Other 4.26% 492%
Total 4.44% 306%
Actual rate of return on plan assets
Equittes 14 79% (7 90%)
Bonds 562% 324%
Properties 1315% 1 60%
Cther 3.90% {2 24%)
Total 8.09% {0 74%)
The actual retum on the plan assets for the Swiss scheme was US$53 thousand (2011 loss of US$40 thousand)
A change in the assumed discount rates would have the following effects
Year endad 31 12 12
Increase Decressa
Swisa Austnan Ukranian Swiass Austrzan Ukrainizan
scheme schems acheme schame scheme schems
US$000 {0 25%) (+0 25%) {+100%) { 0.25%) {-0 25%) {100%)
Effect on the aggregated current senice costs and interest costs (25) - (258) 28 - 284
Effect on tha definad benefit obligation {204) {3) (3,668) 220 3 4,216
Yoar enged 311211
Increase Docreass
Swrss Austrian Ukrainan Swiss Austran Ukrainian
scheme scherme scheme schame scheme scheme
US3000 (+0 25%) {+0 25%) (+100%) (0 25%) (025%) {1 00%)
Effect on the aggregated current service costs and nterest costs 27 - (504) 27 - 566
Effect on the dafined benefit obligahon (171) (B} (6,250) 182 4 {7,415
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The history of unrecognised actuanal losses 1s as follows for the current and previous four penods
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Year anded Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
1212 a2n 311210 31209 311208
Opening balance {57,668) {34,630) (7.140) (6,294) (3.292)
Change of assumptons on ptan labiites 21,653 (11,11g) (13 600) a18 10,551
Expenence adjustments on plan labilties (421) {18,178) (14,299) (2,248} {18,770}
Expenance adjustments on plan assets {13) (109) (194) (230) (B84)
Recognised losses 4,579 3,632 584 476 62
Impact on curtalment - 2,576 - - -
Foreign exchange translation adjustment {29) 157 39 239 3,239
Closing balance (31,899) (57.668) (34,630) {7.140) (6,294)

Note 32 Prowision for site restoration

The costs of restoration of the different deposits In the Group's open pit mmes are based on amounts determined by an independent and credited
institute taking nto account the codes of practice and laws applicable in Ukraing The uselul Iives of the different pits and mines are determined by
the same institute based on expected annual stnpping and production volumes having taken into account the expected timing and affect of future
rmine-ife extension programmes It is expected that the restoration works of the GPL mine will start after the years 2020, 2038 and 2055
depending on the different areas within the mine  The first restoration work of the Yanstovo mine 1s expected to start after 2036

The provision represents the discounted value of the estimated costs of decommissioning and restonng the mines at the dates when the deposits
are expacted to be depleted 1n the relevant areas within the mine  The present value of the provision has been calculated using a nominal pre-tax
discount rate of 11 7% (2011 8 47%) and the costs are expected to be incurred once the restoration works begin in the different areas of the mines

Uncertainties in estmating the prowsion include potential changes in regulatory requirements, decommissioning and reclamation alternatives and

tha discount and inflaton rates to be used In the calculations

USS000
QOpening balance
Unwand of the discount
Ansing dunng the year
Translation adustments
Closing halance

Asat Asat
a1z12 a1zt
3,015 2,746
289 216
{935) 65

m 12)
2,368 3,015

Note 33. Accrued llabilittes and deferred income
As at 31 December 2012 accrued liabilities and deferred income compnsed

US$000

Accrued expenses

Accrued employes costs

Advances from customers

Deferred Income

Total accrued habirties and deferred income

As at Asat
311212 nizn

6,249 8,830
19,726 20,836
23,938 47

1,372 -
51,285 28713

Note 34: Related party disclosure

Dunng the penods presented the Group entered into arm's length transactions with entites under the commaon control of the majority owner of the
Group, Kostyaniin Zhevago, with associated companies and wath other related parties Management considers that the Group has appropnate
procedures in place to identify and propery disclose transactions wath the related parties

Entiies under common control are those under the control of Kostyantin Zhevage Asscciated companies refers to TIS Ruda LLC, in which the
Group holds an interest of 48 6% This 1s the only associated company of the Group Other related parties ars pnncipally those entities controlled
by Anatoly Trefilov and Ofexander Moroz. Anatoly Trefilov is 2 member of the supervisory board of OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining from which
Olexander Moroz resigned as of 14 May 2010 Alltransactions taking place up 1o 31 May 2011, being within one year of his resignation from the
supervisory board, are considered to be transactions with a related party and thus inciuded in the disclosures made for the comparatve penod
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Note 34, Related party disclosure continued
Related party transactions entered into by the Group dunng the penods presented are summansed in the following tables

Revenue, expenses, finance mcome and expenses

Year ended 31 1212 ‘Year anded 311211
Entities Enttes

under Cther under Oiher

eommon Asyociated related Comman Assocaled ralated

US$000 control companws parties eontrol COMPAnes partes
Other sales? 1,198 - 83 6,718 - 1,783
Total related party transactions within revenue 1,198 - 88 6,718 - 1,783
Matanals® 5,084 - 24 4,638 - 8,475
Purchased concentrate and other items for resale® 21,948 - - 24,891 - -
Spare parts and consumables® 7,859 - - 4,726 - 256
Fusl® 1,373 - - 7,980 - -
Gas® 9,646 - - 15,455 - -
Total related party transactions within cost of sales 46,810 - 24 57,680 - 8,731
Selling and distnbution expenses' 9,377 20,493 8,367 6,536 16674 13,470
General and adrministration expenses? 1,644 - 72 1.231 - 15
Total related party transactions within expenses 57,831 20,493 8,463 65,457 16,674 22,216
Finance income® 917 - - 899 a -
Finance expenses™ 733) - - 411) - -
Net related party finance income/{expenses) 184 - - 488 2] -

Entities under common control

The Group entsred nto vanous related party transactions with entibes under common controt A descnplion of the most matenat trangactions all of which were camed out on an arm s length basis n the
normal course of business for the mambars of tha Group [See nota 1) 15 gven below

a Sales of powsr sleam and water and cther materals 1o Kislorad PGC for US$480 thousand (2011 US$2 128 thousand} Revenua of US$507 thousand was recened from Vorskla Steel Lid for the sale
of sand (2011 US$548 thausand) Other sales as of 31 Dacembar 2011 comprsad 1oling fees of US$2 622 thousand pad by Vosiok Ruda Lid to OJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining for the produchon of
pelets No pellats wers produced undar tha toling schemae during the financal year 2012

b Purchases ol comprassed ay and oxygan from Kslorod PCC for US$4 933 thousand (201! US$4 033 thousankd)

¢ Purchases of concentrata and other )tems for resale from Vostok Ruda Ltd amounting te US$21 848 thousand (2011 LS$12 728 thousand)

¢ Np purchases of merchant congcantrata from Vostok Ruda Ltd were madte 85 of 31 Dacember 2012 (2011 US$7 458 thousand) Dunng the financial year 2011 Vesick Ruda Lid eamed
US$10 thousand on the purchase and rasale of concentrate The fee coverad costs ncumed n procuring and daivenng thurd party merchant concentrate suppbed No fee was samed dunng
tha financial year 2012

¢ Handfing commssions 1o Sk Weltmark Lataa amounting to US$35 thousand dunng the financial year 2011 for the purchase of goods No handiing commiss.ons wera pad dunng tha financlal
year 2012

o

Purchases of spare parts frorn AutoKraZ Holding Co 10 the amount of US$5 255 thousand {2011 US$1 456 thousana)

Purchases ol gpare parts from CJSC Kiev Shypbudding and Ship Repar Plant {KSRSSZ') in the amount of US$805 thousand (2011 US$228 thousandy

a o

Purchases of spara paris from OJSC Bardchev Machine Budding Plant Progress of US$595 thousand 2011 US$1 017 thousand)
d  Purchasas of spare paris from Valsa GTV of US$736 thousand {2011 US$541 thousand) and

d  Purchase of spare paris from Komsomolsk Coganaration Company LLC n the amount of US$736 thousand as of 31 Dacember 2011 No procurement fram Komsomoisk Cogeneration
Comparny {LC were made during the financial year 2012

o Purchases of fuel for US$1 373 thousand (2011 US$7 980 thousand) from QUSC Ukrzakerdongeoicga Procurament of gas US$9 648 thousand (2011 US$15 455 thousand) from
OJUSC Ukrzakordongeologa

f  Purchases from FC Vorskia for advertsement markatng and genaral pubkc relations servicas during the financial year 2012 of US$9 301 thousand (2011 LUS$6 536 thousand)
g Insurance prermiums of US$886 thousand (2011 US$644 thousand} paid to ASK Omega for workmen 8 nsurance and other meurances
g Fees of US$448 thousand (2011 US$355 thousand) naud lo Bank Finance & Credit (Bank F&C) for bank servicas

h Transachonal banking senices are provided 10 certain subsilianes of the Group by Bank F&C Fnanca ncome and expenses relate 16 these transactional banking senwces Funther information
15 provided under trar | Banking arrang: on page 116
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Note 34: Related party disclosure continued

Assoclated companies

The Group entered into selated party transactions with its Assocated Company T1S Ruda LLG which were camed out o an arm s fength basis in the normal course of business for tha membera of tha
Group {see nota 1) Thesa are described below

f

Purchasas of logshes sarvices n the amount &f US$21 438 thousand (2011 US$16 674 thousand) relating to port operations including pon chargas handling costs agent commussions and
storage cosis

Other related parties

The Group antered into vanous transactons with related partes other than thosae under tha control of the maanty ownar of the Group Descnptions of the matanal transachons are below

a

e}

Salos ot scrap matal to Ferrolit amounting to US$1 201 thousand and ather sales of US$508 thousand dunng the financial year 2011 Ferrobt 1S no longer & related party to tha Group aus to the
rgsignabion of Olexander Moroz as a supervisory board member of OJSC Ferrexpa Paltava Mining in May 2010

Purchases of castvon grndng booies rom Ferrokt for USS8 475 thousand dunng tha financial year 2011 As noted above Fervolit 8 no longer a related party 1o the Group

Purchases of logsics management senvcas from Slavutich Ruda Lid relating to cusioms clearance services and the coordination of ral transit Total bilings amountad to US$8 367 thousand
(2011 US$13 470 thousand) Slavutich Ruda Lid sarnac commussion icome of USE906 thousand on these sarvices (2011 USSACH thousand)

Purchases of legal services from Kuom Attomays at Law Ltd amounting 1o US$72 thousand as of 31 Cecernber 2012 (2011 US$12 thousand) Al services wera promced on an amm s length bases

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Year ended 31 12 12 Yearended 311211
Entities Entlos

under Other undar Othar

cemmon Associated related commen Assocated ralatad

UsS$000 control companias parties control companies paries
Purchasas with independant farr and reasonable confirmation 2,659 - - 14,655 - -
Purchasas with shareholder approval 55,026 - - 13,167 _ _
Other purchases 1,044 - - - - -
Total purchase of property, plant and equipment' 58,729 - - 27,822 - -

Dunng the financial year 2012 the Group antered nto the Tolowang transactons vath related parties that weara not of a ravenue nature but ware in the normal course of busness As such these
transacbons were i so far as they exceeded the relavant 2ggregatec thrashold tasts on a roling annual bass subject to an independent tak and reasonabla confrmation that the terms are far and
reasonable v accordance with the recquerements of the UK Listing Rules Effective 1 October 2012 the UK Listing Rulas have baen amendad e raquira only ndependent far and reasonable
confirmaton for transactions that are not in the crdinary coursa of busingss rrespectve of the nature of the transacuon

+  Dunng the penad from October to December 2012 The Group enterad i vanous ansactons with ratated parhes taling 10 US$653 thousand  These transactons weng n the ordnary course
of business and on an arm s langth basis and did not requira Independent far and réasonabla confirmaticn

+ InSeplember 2012 the Group procured metal works from OJSC Berdchey Machine Builkding Plani Progress n the amount of US$1 019 theusand n ¢onnecton with lhe constructon of the
fiotaton squipment.

*  Induly and August 2012 the Group enterad .n various smaller transactons wath relatad parties iotafing US$3%4 thousand No ndependent fair and reascnable confimmation was requrad as these
transactions did not excead the relevant aggregated thresheld al the pont of time of the transactions

*  InJuly 2012 the Group procured design documentation sanvices 1 the amount of US$194 thousand from QUSC DIOS n ralaton to replacement of mixers at the pellet plant complax and the
construction of a dust aspwation system Deslmer equipment in the amount of US$668 thousand was procured from CJSC Kiev Shipbuikiing and Stip Repar Plant ( KSRSS2') and OJSC
Berdichev Maching-Build ng Plant Prograss for a beneficiation plant.

* InMarch 2012, project management services in the amount of US5140 thousand were procured from Vorskia Steel Lid In connection with the construction of serica faciies and techrical
dasign documentation amounting to US$618 thousand from OJSC DIOS related 1o the updata of the benefic:ation plant

* InFebruary 2012 the Group procured design documentalion from QUSC DIOS i the amount of US$21 thousand n relation (o 1he constructon of roads and loading facdties

The Group cbtained on 24 May 2012 shareholder approval for an option te purchase up 10 500 rad cars from PJSC Stakhanov Raicar Company between tha data of the appraval and 31 December
2014 In February 2013 the Group exercised the nght under this option to order 267 ralicars

Dunng the financial year 2011 the Group entered inta the following transactions with refated partes ihat requered independent 1ar and reasonabie confimmation in accordancs with tha requrements
of tha UK Listing Rules

InDecamber 2011 the Group purchased twoe dust filters from OJSC Berdichev Machine-Buiding Plant Progress for the pellet production plant amouniing o US$438 thousand

In Novernber 2011 the Group antared mta ancther agreamant with OUSC DIOS for the procurement of engineenng desxgn serices 0 the amount of USS738 thousand

In September 2011 the Group purchased 12 dumper rail cars from PISC Stakhanov Ratcar Company n the amount of LIS$1 756 thousand

In August 2011 design services in relation 10 the conversien of & vessel wers provided by Zalv Ship Dasign LLG in the amount of US$483 thousand

In June 2011 prosect management services N the ameunt of LIS$105 thousand wera procured [rom Vorskla Steel Lid n connection wath the construction of senace faciihies

InMay 2011 the Group amterad nto an agreamaent for the purchasa of squipment for the crushng and baensficiation plants from CUSC Keev Snpbulding and Ship Repar Plant {KSRSSZ)
in thg ameunt ¢of US$493 thousand Crders wera also placed for three press-filters for USS8 991 thousand from QJSC Berdichev Maching-Bulding Ptart Progress

*  InApnl 2011 the Group gntered eilo an agresmaeni for engineenng servicas to be prowided by OJSC DIOS n the amount of US$$ 650 thousand for tha upgrade of the crushing and
concantrating squ prment.

Tha purchase of 400 rail cars from PUSC Stakhanov Rallcar Company with an option to purchase an additional 600 ral cars was approved by the general meeting of tha sharaholders on 15 March
2011 712 ral cars were ordered under the authonty of this sharaholder approval during the financial year 2011 and 288 rall cars in 2012 bringing the total orderad to 1 000 units As of 31 December
2012 al¥rad cars ordered under ths authonty had been defvered whuch brought tha total flaet of rad cars to 1 933 units not mcluding 200 dumper rai cars previously used n the mine and retatad area
and recently brought mto serice Purchased rad cars under thes authonty amountng to US$55 028 thousand were put nto oparabon durnng the fnancal year 2012 2011 USS$13 167 thousand)
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Note 34 Related party disclosure continued
Balances with related parties
The outstanding balances, as a result of transactions with related parties, for the penods presented are shown in the table below

Year ended 311212 Year ended 31121
Entities Entilies

under Other undar Cither

common Azsociatad related oommon Assocated related

US$000 contral companies parties control cOmpanes peartes
Investrments avalable-for-salel 530 - - 1,286 - -
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment* 625 - - 29,080 - -
Total non-current assets 1,155 - - 30,366 - -
Trade and other recevables’ 823 - 3 1,262 1,981 6
Prepayments and other current assats™ 162 1,302 18 414 - 279
Cash and cash equwvalents® 141,424 - - 84,933 - -
Total current assets 142,409 1,302 21 96,609 1,981 285
Trade and other payables® 1,694 - 122 2,151 549 515
Current hahilities 1,694 - 122 2,151 549 515

Entitias under common control

]

The balanca of iha mesunants avadable ‘or sale compnsed sharehaldings N PISC Stakhanov Radcar Compary {1 10%) and Vestok Buda Lid (1 19%). The utmate beneficial owner of these
compan:as s Kastyaniin Zhevago PJSC Staknancv Raicar Company i furiher isted on tha Ukraenian stock axchange The changas of the vahies n 1ha table above are related to rar value
adjustments recorded during the respactive reporting pertods  The shareholdings for afl Investments remained unchanged dunng the penods disclosed above Dunng the financial year 2012
the nvestmant n Vostok Ruda Lid was subject to an mparment of US$430 thousand (2011 US$198 thousand)

As 0f 31 December 2012 prepayments of US$153 thousand were made 1o DIOS {2011 US$302 thousand) for anginesnng desgn senaces and US$289 theusand o OUSC Berdichey Machine
Building Plant Progress (2011 nify and US$142 thousand to CJSC Kiev Sripbuilding and Snip Repar Plant (KSRSSZ } (2011 ni) for squipment for tha crushing and beneficaton plants Prepayments
cutstanding of US$28 705 thousand i respect of key components for rail cars purchased from OJSC Stahanov Rax Gars Plani as of 31 December 2011 No prepayments were mada to QJSC
Stahanev Ral Cars Plant as of 31 December 2012

As of 31 December 2012 1rade and cther recanablas included cutstanding ameunts due from Verskla Stesl Lid of US$277 thousand (2011 US$828 thousand) in relation 1o other sales and
US$461 thousand (2011 LUS$340 thousand) from Kislorod POC for the sala of power steam and water

Prepaymants and other currant assets relate manly 10 prepayments of US$81 thousand (2011 USS75 thousand) 1o ASK Omega for msurancs premums and LUS$38 thousand to CISC Kev
Shipbuilding end Ship Repay Plant ( KSRSSZ}i{2011 nilj and US$!1 thousand to OJSC Berdichev Machine Building Plant Prograss (2011 US$184 thousand) for spara parts Prepayments are
n the normal coursa of business as requested by any third party suppher in Ukraina

As of 31 December 2012 cash and cash equivalents with Bank FAC were US$141 424 thousand {2071 US$94 §33 thousand) Further information s prowded under iransachonal banking
arrangements balow

Trade and other payables amounting o US$593 ihousand far compressed ar and oxygen purchasad from Kislorod PCC {2011 US$535 thousand) and US$126 thousand in redation to the purchasa
of concentrate from Viostok Ruda Ltd (2011 US$1 276 thousand) and US$842 thousand for the procurement of fuel and gas from OJSC Ukrzakordongeologa (2011 ni).

Associated companles

The pror year balanca of other recevables consist a declared dadend due from TIS Ruda LLC n the amount of US$1 740 thousand and US3232 thousand i relation o the prossion of rad cars
10 TIS Ruda LLC for the storage of cargo at the port) No such recenvable balances exist as of 31 Decemnbar 2012

Prepayments and clher current assets ralate 0 prepayments of USS1 302 thousand (2011 nil) made to T1S Ruda LLC for transhipment sanaces Prepayments are in the nomal course of business
as raquested by any third party supplier n Ukrane

Gther related parties

m  Prepayments anc other current assets relate to advance paymants of US$18 thousand to Stawtich Ruda Lid for distnbustion senices {2011 US$279 thousand) Prepayments are 0 the normal course

of business and ara common for the provision of supplies IN Ukraing

o Trade and olher payables amounting to US$9% thousand as of 31 December 2032 ara » respect of distnbution senates prowdad by Slawwtich Ruda Ltd 2011 USS515 thousand)

Transactional banking arrangements
The Group has transactonal banking arrangemants with Bank Finance & Credit (Bank F&C) n Ukrane which 1s under common control of the
mayenty shareholder of Ferrexpo plc Finance Income and expenses are disclosed in the table on page 114

Tha Group has an uncommutted multicurency revolvng loan faciity agreement with Bank FEC which will expire on the 16 Apnl 2013 The
maximurn hmit of this facility, the terms of wiich was the subject of a fair value opinion at its renewal and extension in Aprl 2010, amounts to
UAH 80 millon 2012 US$ 10,008 thousand, 2011 US$10,013 thousand) The loan faciity has remained undrawn for the entire penod of tme
since renewal m Apnl 2010
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As s required under Ukrainian legislation, assets are pledged or become the subject of a mortgage under the terms of the facility agreements

Tha secunty for short-term agreements with Bank F&C to issua letters of credit and bank guarantess for the supply of goods and services shares
the same pledge of assets given in respect of the loan facility The average cost of issuing letters of credit and guarantees in 2012 amounts to

0 83% of the value of the financial Instruments issued The total value of pledges and mortgages under the terms of the loan agreement and letters

of credit and guarantee agreements I1s US$26,180 thousand (2011 US$10,595 thousand)

US$000

Loan faciities

Amount drawn

Letter of credit faciity outstanding
Bank guarantee faciity outstanding

Year ended Yaar ended
JIT1212 312

10,008 10,013
7179 322
1,081 2240

Bank F&C provides mortgages and loans to employees of the Group for the acquisiticn, construction and renovation of apartments in Ukraine

This 15 part of a social loyalty programme started by the Group in December 2011 allowing certan employees of the Group to borrow at preferential
interest rates OJSC Femexpo Poltava Mining and LLC Ferrexpo Yenstovo GOK act as guarantors for the bank’s loans to the employees of the Group
and have deposited US$2,085 thousand at Bark F&C as secunty {2011 US$1,500 thousand) The interest rate margin eamed by Bank F&C covers
the costs of administrating the mortgages and lcans Detailled information on the social loyalty programme is provided in the Corporate Social

Respaonsibilty Review section of this Annual Report and Accounts

Note 35: Employee benefits expenses
Employse benefits expenses for the year ended 31 December 2012 consisted of the following

US$000

Wages and salaries

Social secunty costs
Post-employment benefits

Other employee costs

Share-based paymants

Total employee benefits expenses

Yoar ended Yaar anded
311212 atizn

76,057 63 302
25,449 21,832

8,276 5319
2,927 2,810
1,608 81

114,317 83,516

Average number of employees was as follows

Production

Marketing and distnbution
Administration

Cther

Total average number of employees

Yesrended  Yearended
31212 anzn
7.189 6829

171 170
1,244 1,156
954 966
9,558 9,121

Compensation for key managerment was as follows

USSD00

Wages and salanes

Social secunty costs

Other emplayes costs

Total compensation for key management

Year endad Year ended

311212 ariz
6,299 6,229
604 611
260 352
7,163 7,192

Share-based payments amounting to US$984 thousand (2011 US$1,379 thousand) are included in wages and salarnes

17




Farrexpo ple
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 35 Employee benefits expenses continued
The balances above include compensation for Non-executive and Executive Directors as welt as for other key management personnel The details
of compensation relating to Non-executive and Executive Directors are disclosed in the table below-

Year-ended Yaer sndad

USE000 M2z 31121t
Salary and fees 2,399 2.276
Bonus 694 925
Benefits 228 289
Pension 53 57
Gains made on exercise of nil cost share options under the LTIP 362 422
Total compensation to Non-executive and Executive Directors 3,736 3,969

Note 36 Commitments, contingencies and legal disputes
Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2012 are as follows

Asat Asat
USE0C0 31212 N
Less than one year 3,078 2,582
Batwesn one and five years 8,249 6,135
More than five years 71,475 52,644
Total mintmum rentals payable 82,802 61,361

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2012, US$3,063 thousand was recognised as an expense in the iIncome statement in respect of operating
leases {2011 US$2,037 thousand)

The Group leases land and buldings under operating leases The leasas on land typically run for 48 years and with a lease penod of 5to 10 years
on buldings

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor
The Group does not have any commitments from lease agreaments acting as lessor

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net mimimum lease payments are as follows

Asat311212

Minimum  Present value

USHC00 payments  of paymenta

Less than one yaar 5421 3,729

Between one and five years 17,616 13,865

More than five years 5,940 5,604

Total minimum lease payments 28,977 23,198

Less amounts representing finance charges {5,779 -

Present valuge of minimum lease payments 23,198 23,188

Asatan i1zl

Miwmum Prasent vaug

Us$000 payments o payments

Less than one year 1,924 1,384

Between one and five ysars 4,906 4218

More than five years - -

Total minimum lease payments 6,830 5,602

Less amounts representing finance charges {1,228) -

Present value of minimum lease payments 5,602 5,602
Other

As at Asat

US$000 311292 arizn

Caprtal commitmants on purchase of proparty, plant and egupment 162,665  137.029
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Note 36. Commitments, contingencies and legal disputes continued

Legal

In the ordinary course of business, the Group 1S subject to legal actions and complants Management believes that the ulbmate liabilty, If any,
ansing from sich actions or complaints will not have a matenal adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations of
the Group

The Group is currently invohved in a share dispute which commenced in 2005 and whuch was disclosed and as relevant updated in the Group's
2007 Annual Report and Accounts and subsequent IPO and Eurchond prospectuses, intenm as well as annual reports as appropnate since then

A former shareholder in GJSC Ferrexpo Poltava Mining (FPM') brought proceedings in the Ukrainian courts against certain nominee companies
that were previcusly ultmately controlled by Kostyantin Zhevago, among other parties, seeking to invalidate the shares sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which a 40% stake in FPM (which was subsequently diluted to less than 14% foltowing further share 1ssues by FPM) was
seld to those nominee companies On 11 January 2010, a judgement rgjecting the claims of the former shareholder that had previcusly been
made by the Commercial Court of Poltava Region was upheld on appeal by the Kyw Inter Regicn Appetiate Commercial Court Following the
appeal proceedings, the former sharsholder filed a cassation complaint with the High Commercial Court of Ukraine requesting that it reverss the
Judgements of the lower courts The High Commercial Court of Ukraine granted the cassation complant of the former shareholder on 21 Apnl
2010 and invalidated the respective shares sale and purchase agreement without ruling on any consequences of such invalidity

On 6 Octaber 2011, the claimants fled a new claim in Ukraine alleging that as a result of nvalidity of the shares sale and purchase agreement with
raspect to a 40% stake in FPM therr nghts ware infringed by the decisions on the capital increases taken at the general shareholders meeting of
FPM which took place on 20 November 2002 and ali further decisions of the general shareholders meetings of FPM relating 1o subsequent
changes to FPM's charter capital Accordingly, the clamants asked the court to invalidate the decisions taken at the general shareholders mesting
of FPM which took place on 20 November 2002, restore therr status as shareholders of FPM as of 20 November 2002 having a 40% stake In FPM,
cancel all share 1ssues of FPM that took place after 20 Novermber 2002 and register shares in therr names

On 22 November 2011, Ferrexpa AG filed a clam aganst the clamanis at the High Court of Justice In London seeking a confirmation of ownership
n FPM shares The clarn was launched in order to take an active step outside Ukraine to resolve this long-running dispute By a judgement dated
3 Apnl 2012, the proceedings In the UK were stayad while the case continued in Ukrane

On 20 August 2012, the Commercial Court of Poltava Region, which was considenng the case as a court in the first Instance, upon motion of the
claimants ruled that the case be transferred to the Kyw City Commercial Court, which has exclusive Junsdiction over the case, given that one of the
defendants In the case, the National Commission on Secunties and Stock Market of Ukraine, has the status of a central executive authanty FPM
challenged the transfer of the case to the Ky City Commercial Court, however, both the Kharlav Appeflate Commercial Court and the High
Commercial Court of Ukraine upheld the ruling of the Commercial Court of Poltava Region dated 20 August 2012

The case s currently being heard before the Ky City Commercial Court by a panel of three judges and at the latest heanng on 28 February 2013
the decision was made to postpone the consideration of the case til 21 March 2013 in order to prepare for further consideration of the case and
for the decision on the vanous motens subrmitted by the defendants

After having taken Ukranian legal advice, the management of the Group believes the clam has httle legal ment pnmanly since neither the final
decision by the High Commercial Court of Ukrains nor any subsequent clams entiles claimants to direct enforcement nghts to the shares of FPM
In addition, the restitution of the status quo ante of the sharehclding position as sought by clamants does not have a basis under Ukrairvan law
for vanous legal, technical and practical reasons It follows that no provision was recorded for this dispute as of 31 December 2012 At the sama
time, in hght of the nsks surrounding the aperation and independence of Ukranian courts, including the nsks associated with the Ukraiman

legal system in general, the clamants may ultimatsly prevall in this dispute and the Group's ownership of the refevant interest n FPM may be
successfully challenged in the future, which could have a matenal adverse effect on Ferrexpo’s business, results of operations, financial

condition and prospects

Tax and other regulatory comphance

Ukrainian legristation and regulations regarding taxation and custom regulations contnue to evolve Legistation and regulations are not always
cleary written and are subject to vansang Interpretations and inconsistent enforcement by local, regional and national authorties, and other
Governmental bodies Instances of nconsistent interpretations are not unusual The uncertainty of application and the evolution of Ukrainian tax
laws, including those affecting cross-border transactions, create a nsk of additional tax payments having to be made by the Group, which could
have a matenal effect on the Group's financial pesiton and results of operatons The Group does not believe that these nsks are any more
signdicant than those of similar enterpnses in Ukrane

We are disputing several tax claims by domestc tax authonties following inspections for the fiscal years 2011 and 2012 and continue to dispute In
the court systern amounts resutting from audits In relation to 2009 and 2010 Corporate profit tax clams are, among other things, clams related to
the deductbility of expenses for tax purposes, adjustments in respect of prices chargsd on the export of products and payments of additional
ermaronmental and other taxes and duties The aggregate amount clarmed by the Ukrairuan tax authonties relating to thess matters, together with
applicable fines and penaltes, 1s appraximately US$16,800 thousand As we believe the tax authonties clams are unlikely to be enforced no
provision has been made for thesa clams, although there 1s no guarantee the tax authorties’ challenges will not succeed
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Note 36 Commitments, contingencies and legal disputes contnued

Recoverabls VAT amounting to US$103,208 thousand outstanding at 31 December 2012 15 in the process of being considered by the Ukrainian
court systemn in several different cases As the VAT is fully recoverable under the relevant Ukranian legislation, the Group expects to uttimataly
receive positive court decisions for these ongoing court proceedings Consequently, the VAT I1s recorded at its full amount in the financial
statements, net of an estmated discount to reflect the time value of money as disclosed in note 26

Note 37: Financial instruments
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and thesr camying amounts, are set out below

Asat311212
Financiat
At fair value lizhilities
Avaitable-tor- through  measured at
Loanzand  sale financal profitor amortised
US3000 Notes rocelvables assots loss cost Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27 596,560 - - - 596,560
Avallable-for-sale investments 20 - 534 - - 534
Trade and other receivables 24 116,553 - - - 116,553
Other financial assets 860 - - - 860
Total inancial assets 713,973 534 - - 714,507
Financial labiities
Trade and other payables )] - - - 62,609 62,609
Accrued liabiities <) - - - 25,976 25,976
Intarest-beanng loans and borrowings 29 - - - 1,019,985 1,019,985
Total financial habiities - - - 1,108,570 1,108,570
Asat311211
Financal
Al lzrvalue Eabutes
Avalable for through measurad at
Leans and Sl (inaneaad pronitor amortiged
USS000 Notas recanables assats loss cost Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equwalents 7 B90,154 - - - 890154
Avallabie-for-sale Investments 20 - 1,290 - - 1290
Trade and cther recevables 24 128,905 - - - 128,905
Other financial assets 1,656 - - - 1,656
Total financial assets 1,020,715 1290 - - 1,022,005
Financial liabiities
Trade and other payables 0 - - - 42 648 42,648
Accrued labiities a3 - - - 29,666 29,666
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 20 - - - 970378 970,378
Total financial habilthes - - - 1,042,692 1,042,602
Financial nsk management
Overview
The Group has exposure o the following nsks from its use of financial Instruments
s credit nsk
+ [guidity nsk

« market nsk — including currancy and commodtty nsk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nsks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
measunng and managing nsk, and the Group's management of capital Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these
consolidated financial statements The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk
management framework
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Note 37 Financial instruments continued

The Group’s nsk management policies are established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to set appropnate nsk limts and
controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence to imits  Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
condrtions and the Group's actvties The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, ams to develop a disciplned
and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors comphance with the Group's nsk management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of the nsk management framework in relation to the nsks faced by the Group The Audit Commuttee 1s assisted in its oversight role
by Internal Augit Intemal Audit undertakes both regutar and ad hoc reviews of nsk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee and the CFO

Tha Group cperates a centralised financial risk management structure under the management of the Executive Committee, accountable to the
Board The Executive Committee delegates certain responsibilties to the CFO The CFO's responsibiites include authonty for approving alt new
physical, cormmerctal or financial transactions that create a financial nisk for the Group Additonally, the CFO controls the managemaent of treasury
nsks within each of the business units in accordance with a Board approved Treasury Polcy

Financial instrument nsk exposure and management

Natural hedges that can be identified and therr efiectiveness quantified are used n prefarence to financial nsk management instruments  Denvative
transactons may be executed for nsk mitigation purposes only ~ speculation 1s not permitted under the approved Treasury Policy —and are
designed to hava the effect of reducing nsk on underlying market or credit exposures Appropnate operational controls ensure operational nsks
are not increased disproportionately o the reduction In market or credtt nsk

The Group has not used any financial nsk managernent nstruments that are denvatve in nature, or other hedging instruments, In this or prior penods

Credit nsk

Trade and other recenvables

The Group through its trading operations enters nto binding contracts which contain cbligaticns that create exposure to credit, counterparty and
country nsks [ts the primary objective of the Group to manage such nsks to recuce uncertainty of collection from buyers A secondary objective
15 fo mimise the cost of reducing nsks wathun acceptable parameters

Trade finance 15 used to balance nsk and payment. These nsks Include the creditworthiness of the buyer, and the poliical and economic stability
of the buyer's country Trade finance generally refers to the financing of indmvidual ransactions or a series of revolng transactions and are often
self-liquidating, wheraby the lending bank stipulates that all sales proceeds to be collected are applied to settle the loan, the remainder retumed
to the Group Trade finance transactons are approved by the Group Treasurer The primary cbjective 1s to ensure that the margins paid and
cendtions appicable should be the same as, or better than, those which other organisations with similar credit worthiness weuld achieve,

and compared with other financing avalable to the Group

Credtt nsk s the nsk associated with the possibility that a buyer will default, by faling to make required payments in a timely manner or to comply
with other conditions of an obligation or agreement Where appropnate, the Group uses letters of credit to assist in rtigating such risks

Counterparty nsk crystallses when a party to an agreement defautts Where letters of credit are used to minimise this nsk, the Group uses
a confirming bank with a similar or huigher credit rating to mitigate country and/or credit nsk of the issuing bank.

Country nsk 15 the potential volatility of foreign assets, whether recevablas or investments, that 1s due to politeal and/or financial events in
a given country

Group treasury monitors the concentration of all outstanding nsks associated with any enlity or country, and reports to the Group CFO on
a timely basis

Irvestment secunties

The Group lmits s cash exposure to credit, counterparty and country risk by only investing in lquid securities and with counterparties that are
incorporated in an A+ or better (S&P) rated OECD country A ratings approach is used to determine maximum exposure to sach counterparty
Cash not required wathin thres months for production, distnbution and capital expenditures s Invested with counterparties rated by S&P or
Moody's at a level of long-term BBB (S&F) or short-term A3 {S&P) or better

Recogrising that the principal actvities of the Group are predominantly in Ukraine, special consideration Is given to investiments with Ukrainian

counterparties Exceptions may be made under the following conditions

» the counterparty 1s resident in Ukraine, and

« the counterparty 1s included In the Top 15 financial nsttutions In Ukrane based on the Group's assessment of the creditworthiness of the
financial insitution
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Note 37 Financial instruments contnued

Cash and deposits are held with the Group's transactional bank in Ukraing, which 1s a related party financial institution This bank 1s registered with
the Natonal Bank of Ukraine for receving and disbursing payments under Group intercompany leans, and 1s an approved Ukrainian counterparty
The Group Is therefore exposed to Ukrane country nsk in this respect as well as in relation to certain of its other actvties

Guarantees

The Group's policy 15 te provide financial guarantees under imited circumstances onty for the benefit of wholly-owned or substantially wholty-
owned subsidianes At 31 December 2012 Ferrexpo AG and Ferrexpo Finance plc were jontly and severally lable under a US$420 million loan
agresment having an outstanding balance of US$420 milion (2011 US$420 milion)

Ferrexpo pic, Ferrexpo AG and Ferrexpo Middle East FZE are guarantors to the US$500 mdlion Eurcbond (Notes') issued by Femexpo Finance plc,
which i1s dus for repayment on 7 Apnl 2016 Addivonally the Notes benefit from a surety agreement provided by OJSC Fermexpo Poltava Mining

Ferraxpo AG acts as a guarantor for several finance facilities provided to Ukrainan subsidiaries amounting to US$150,8C0 thousand
{2011 US$47.900 thousand)

Exposure to credit nsk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting
date was

As at As at
US$000 a2z 3z
Cash and cash squivalents 596,560 890,154
Trade and cther recenvables 116,553 128,905
Other financial assats 860 1,656
Total maximum exposure to credit nsk 713,973 1,020,715

The total recervables bafance relating to the Group's top three customers was US$37,383 thousand (2011 US$53,244 thousand) making up
32 2% of the total amounts receivable (2011 571%)

Impairment profile
The Group's exposure to credit nsk relating to trade and other recenvables 1s disclosed in note 24

Liqueidity risk

Liguidity nsk 15 the nsk that the Group will nct be able to meet its financial obligations as they falldue The Group's approach s to ensure that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its labiites when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurming unacceptable losses
or nsking damage to the Group's reputation by helding surplus cash or undrawn crecht faciites

The Group prepares detaled roling cash flow forecasts, which assist it in monitonng cash flow requirements and optimising its cash retum on
mvestments Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand and/or ines of credit to meet expected operational expenses
for a period of 30 days, iIncluding the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potental impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural dsasters

The following are the contractual matunties of financrat habilites by interest type

As at 319212
Laas than Batwean Between More than

US$000 1 yaar 1to 2 years 2to G yoars 5years Total
Interest-bearing

Eurobond tssued - - 491438 - 491,438
Syndicated loans - securad - 70,000 350,000 - 420,000
Other banks — secured 13,221 13,300 37,864 11,068 75,553
Obligation under finance lease 3,729 3,870 15,600 - 23,199
Interest accrued 9,796 - - - 9,796
Futura interast payable 53,223 52,560 71,559 607 178,049
Non-interest-bearing

Trade and other payables 62,609 - - - 62,609
Azcrued labimes 25,926 50 - - 25,976
Total financial liabilites 168,704 139,780 966,461 11,675 1,286,620
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Note 37 Financial instruments continued

Asatd) 211

Less than Batwesn Betwesan Maora than
US$000 1 ysar 1102 yoars 2icS5years 5 yaars Total
Interest-bearing
Eurcbond ssued - -~ 489,257 - 489257
Syndicated loans — secured - - 420,000 ~- 420,000
Other banks - secured 8,231 8,240 29.718 - 46,186
Chligaton under finance lease 1,384 1,412 2,806 - 5,602
Interast accrued 9,333 - - - 9,333
Future nterest payable 51,768 51,511 118818 - 222,097
Non-interest-beanng
Trade and other payables 42,648 - - - 42 648
Accrued labilihes 28,663 1,003 - 29,666
Total financial iabidities 142,027 62,166 1,060,597 - 1,264,790
Currency nsk

The Group 1s expesed to currency nsk on sales, purchasas and borrowings that are denominated in a cumency cther than the respective
funchonal curencies of the Group Functional currencies for the Group are pamanly the Ukrainian Hryvnia, but atso US Dollars, Swiss Francs,
Euro and Sterling

The Group's major Iines of borrowings and the majonty of its sales are denominated in US Dollars, with costs of local Ukrainian production mainty
In Hryvria The value of the Hryvnia 1s managed by the Nationat Bank of Ukraine (NBU')

The Group has gross recoverable VAT balances of US$301,535 thousand (UAH2,410 miullion) to be recovered from the Ukraine Government tax
authonty and is reliant on the nermal functioning of this system The exact timing of recovery Is subject fo uncertainties, along with the prevailing
exchange rate to the US Ddllar at the tme of repayment A devaluation of the Ukrainian Hryvnia will negatively effect the expected cash flows from
the refunds in US Dollars

A devaluation of the Ukrainian Hryvria will reduce the operating costs of the preduction unit in US Dollars terms and the value of Hryvnia payables
recerded (n the statement of financial position at the year end in US Dollars As the majonty of sales and recevables are denominated in US
Dollars, a devaluation in the local currency will result In eperating exchange gains recorded In the income statement

With a devaluation of the local currency, US Dollar denominated loans held by the Ukrainian subsickary will result in non-operating exchange losses
to the extent these are not matched by US Dollar denominated assets Fixed assets are smilarly held in local currency amounts and a devaluation
In the currency wilt result In reduced net asset values which are recorded In reserves

The NBU manages and determines the official exchange rates An inter-bank market for exchange of currencies exists In Ukraine and s monitored
by the NBU The Group, through financial nstitutions, exchanges currencies at bank offered market rates

Trade receivables are predominately n US Dollars and are not hedged Trade payables denominated in US Dollars are also not hedged on the
market, but are matched aganst US Dollar cumency receipts This includes the interest expense which 1s pnncipally payable in US Dollars Trade
recenvables and trade payables in Ukrainian Hryvnia are not hedged as a forward market for the currency 1s generally not available

Other Group monetary assets and liabiities denominated in foreign currencies are considered iImmatenal as the exposure to currency nsk mainly
relates 1o corporate costs within Switzerland and the United Kingdom

123




Farrexpo plc
Annuaf Report & Accounts 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Note 37. Financial instruments continued
The Group's exposure to foreign currency nsk was as follows based on notional amounts

Asst} 1212
Ukrainian us Swiss Otihver

US$000 Hrywnia Dollar Euro Franc currencles Total
Financial assets 4 112,515 612 835 1,036 115,002
Financial liabilities

Other banks — sacured - {39,066) (467) - - {39,533)
Chbbgation under finance lease - (2,364) - - - (2,364)
Interest accrued - {425) (2 - - 420
Total borrowings - {41,855) {469) - - {42,324)
Trade and other payables - (4,219) {1,754) {384) {489) (6,846)
Accrued labihes - - - {14} {348) {362)
Total fmancial hlabihties - (46,074) (2,223) {398) {837) {48,532)
Net financial assets/{liabiihes) 4 66,441 (1,611) 437 199 65,470

Asg1dtizn
Ukrarwan us Swiss Other

US3000 Hryvnea Dolar Euro Franc CUNTENGIS Totat
Financial assets 7 73830 19,392 487 1027 94,743
Financial liabilties

Other banks - secured - {16,930 - - 2) (16,932)
Obligation under finance lease - 5,577 - - - (5,577
Interest accrued - {43) 0] - - {47)
Total borrowings - (22.550) {4) - 2) {22,556)
Trade and other payables - (2,298) 618) 346) (1,445) {4,707)
Accrued liabiites - - - - (42) (42)
Total financial habilities - {24 848) 622) (346) (1.489) (27.305)
Net financial assets/{liabilities) 7 48 982 18,770 141 (462) 67,438
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The Group predorminantly borrows bank funds that are at floating interest rates and 1s exposed to interest rate movements The interest rate
exposure to US Dollars remained relatively low dunng the penod, and no interest rate swaps have been entered into In this or pnor penods

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-beanng financial Instruments was

Asat311212

Other
Floating Fixed non-intersst
ussooo mterest Interest bearing Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash egunalents 305,475 280,097 10,988 596,560
Avallable-for-sale Investments - - 534 534
Trade recevables - - 116,553 116,553
Orher financial assets - 860 - 860
Total financial assets 305,475 280,957 128,075 714,507
Woeighted average interest rate (%) 0.0% 0.8%
Financtal liabilties
Trade and cther payables - - 62,609 62,609
Accrued labilties - - 25,976 25,976
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 462,464 557,521 - 1,019,985
Total financial habilities 462,464 557,521 88,585 1,108,570
Weighted average interest rate (%) 30% T 6%
Asat]1121
Ciher
Poatng Foed Apn nterast
LIS$000 nterest interest beanng Tatal
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 835,785 193,099 61,270 890,154
Avallable-for-sale investments - - 1,290 1,290
Trade racevables - - 128,905 128,905
Other fnancial assets - 1,656 - 1.656
Total financial assets 635,785 194,755 191,465 1,022 005
Weighted average interest rate (%) 04% 07%
Financial liabilities
Trade and ether payables - - 42,648 42,648
Accrued habilities - - 29,666 29,666
Interast-beanng loans and borrowings 471,475 498,903 - 970,378
Total financial iabilities 471,475 498,903 72,314 1,042,692
Weighted average interast rate (%)} 2 6% 7 9%

The interest rate matunty profile for financial labilites 1s shown under the lquidity nsk sectiocn The intarest rate matunty profile for finangial assets

15 all current for both years

Commodity nsk

The Group 1s exposed tolonger-term movements in the pnce of ron ore, but does not have a commodity nsk exposure to its financial assets and
llabiltes once the sale has been made Trade recervables are based on a fixed contract pace, and so do not fluctuate with won ore market prces
Similarty firished goods are held at cost, with revaluaton to a spot pnce not applicable for iron ore pellets, there being no fradable exchange in the

product to ascertain its market value
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Note 37 Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

A 20% strengthening of the US Dollar against the following cumrencies at 31 Decernber would have increased/{decreased) income statement
and equity by the amounts shown below This assumes that all other vanables, in particular interest rates, remain constant

Yoar ended Year ended

31212 31121

Income incoma

statement/ statemant/

US$000 Equity Equty
Ukrainian Hryvnia 11,074 B,164
Euro (269) 3,128
Swiss Franc 73 23
Total 10,878 11,315

A 20% weakening of the US Dollar against the above currencies would have an equal but oppesite effect to the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all the other vanables remain constant

Farir value sensrtivity anatysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and llabiites at far value through prafit or loss, and the Group does not hold any
dervatives e g interest rate swaps} Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss

Cash flow sensitivity for fixed and variable rate instruments
Anincrease of 100 basis ponts (‘bp') n interest rates would have increased/{decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below
This analysis assumes that all cther vanables, in particutar foreign currency rates, remain constant

Year ended Year anded
USS000 311212 311211

Net finance charge 1,619 974

A decrease of 100 bp would increase equity and profit by US$2,215 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2012 {2011 US$1,682 thousand)
This 1s on the basis that all the other vanablas remain constant

Set out below are the carrying amounts and farr values of the Group's financal instrurments that are camed In the consolidated staterment
of financial position

Camryng amount Far value

Agat As at As st As at
LSS000 AR FAY] Jizn a1z ez
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 508,560 890,154 596,560 890,154
Trade and other recenvables 116,553 128,905 116,553 128,905
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 534 1,290 534 1,290
QOther financial assets 860 1,656 860 1,656
Total financial assets 714507 1,022005 714,507 1022005
Financial kabilities
Trade and other payables 62,609 42,648 62,609 42,648
Accrued liabilites 25976 29,666 25976 20,666
Interest-beanng loans and bormowings 1,019,985 970378 1,026,084 986913
Total financial habilities 1,108,570 1,042,692 1,114,669 1,059,227

The farr values of interest-beanng loans and borrowings are based on the cash flows discounted using market interest rates

The tair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and payables are approximately equal to therr carrying amounts due
to tharr short matunty
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Tha following table provides an analysis of financial nstruments that are measured subsequent to inital recognition at far value, grouped into

Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the farr value 18 observable

Level 1 far value measurements are those derved from quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or labilties

Level 2 far value measurements are those dernved from inputs other than quoted prices included wathin Level 1 that are observable for the

asset or kability, either directly (1 & as pnces) or indirectly (| @ denved from prices)

Level 3 far value measurements are those derved from valuation techruques that Include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Asatd 1212
US$000 Level 1 Lavel 2 Lavel 3 Total
Financial assets
Avalatle-for-sale financial assets 534 - - 534
Total available-for-sale financial assets 534 - - 534
Asat3t 1211
uUs$oco Lavel 1 Levei 2 Leves 3 Tow!'
Financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 860 - 430 1,290
Total available-for-sale financial assets 860 - 430 1,280
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the penod
Reconcihation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets
Asat3iti212 Asatdtizn
Avallable- Avalabla

tor sale for sale

financul Tewncl
US3000 s3sets assets
Opening balance 430 528
Total gains or losses
—in profit or loss {430) 198
—In gther comprahensve iIncome - -
Transfer out of level 3 - -
Closing balance - 430

Caprtal management

The Board's policy 1s 10 maintain a strong capital base The Board of Directors monitors both the demographic spread of shareholders, as well
as the retum cn capital, which the Group defines as total shareholders’ equity, excluding non-controling interests, and the level of dwvidends to
Ordinary Shareholders Please refer to the Staterent of Changes in Equity for details of the capital posttion of the Group

The Board seeks to mantain a balance betwsen the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and advantages
and secunty afforded by a sound capital position The Board continues to support mantairing a sound capital base balanced aganst these

market constrants
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Note 37. Financial instruments continued
The Board maintans a dmdend policy consistent with the Group's profile, reflecting the investment activities the Group 1s making on major projects
for future production growth and the cash generated by existing operations, whilst mantaining a prudent level of dvidend cover

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidianes 1s subject to externally imposed capital requirements other than a bank covenant requirement
1o mantain consolidated equity of the Group of US$500,000 thousand including non-controling nterests and excluding the translation reserve
Compliance ts ensured by balancing dvdend payments against the earmings of the Group

For more information about the Group's interest-beanng loans and borrowings, see note 29
Note 38: Share-based payments

Long-term incentive plan {'LTIP’)
The following share awards were granted under the LTIP in the prevous financial years, the LTIF vesting penod s three years

No. [000) 012Lmp 2011 LTP 2010LTIP Totat
Year ended 3112 12 485 - - 485
Year ended 311211 - 415 - 415
Year ended 311210 - - 330 330

The LTIP 1s subject to a performance condition based on the Total Shareholder Return { TSR’ compared o a comparator group, measured over
the vesting penod, as descnbed In the Director’s Remuneration Report

The following expenses have been recogrnised i 2012 and 2011 1n respect of the LTIP

US$000 2012LMP 2011 LTIP 2010LTP 2009 LNP 2008 LTIP Total
Year ended 3112 12 693 592 323 - - 1,608
Year ended 311211 - 592 319 198 {353) 756

The far value of these awards was assessed at therr grant date using a simulation or ‘Monte Carlo” model consistent with the mathematics
underiying the stangdard Black-Scholes optons pricing model, extended to allow for the performance condtions Each simulation of the moded
projects the Company’s and comparator's share pnces {with reinvested dvidends) over the vesting penod, allowing for the volatilites and
carrelations between the shares as estmated from histoncal data From this projection the proportion of awards vesting, and the value teo
employess, 15 calculated 100,000 smulations were run to calculate the farr values The far value 1s set as the average value over all the smulations

Yoor ended Year ended Year snded Year enchedt

311212 311211 31212 <IRF A
WAFV (5) WAFY (8 No (000) No (000)

Lne

Beginning of the year 338 392 905 905
Awards granted dunng the year 2.32 428 485 415
Forfeited dunng the year - 552 - B4)
Lapsed dunng the ysar - 261 - {10
Vested dunng the year 194 552 {240) (341)
QOutstanding at 31 December 3.23 338 1,150 05
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Betore Betore
adjusting Adjusted Yaur endsd edustng Adusted Year gnded
uUs$000 Notes toma tems 311212 tems items aren
Revenue s 1,424,030 - 1,424,030 1,783,012 - 1788012
Cost of sales 7 (694,576) - {694,576) (649,544) - {649,544
Gross profit 729,454 - 729,454 1,138,468 - 1,138,468
Seling and distnbution expenses g (311,964) - {311,964} (317951) - [317.95%)
General and administrative axpenses [ (56,329) - (56,329) (51.969) - (51,969}
Qther Income 10 11,347 11,347 6,943 - 5,943
Other expensas 11 {30,161) (4,903) {35,064) {17.091) (523) {17.614)
Operating foragn exchange gan 12 653 - 653 {1,360 - (1,360)
Operating profit 343,000 (4,903) 338,097 757,040 (523) 756517
Shara of profit of associates 13 2,772 - 2,772 2012 - 2012
Total profit from operations and associates 345,772 {4,903} 340,869 750,062 (523) 758,529
Summary of adjusted rtems
Year ended Year ended
USEC00 Naotes Mi212 anen
Operating adjusting tems

Write-offs and impairment losses
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Total operating adjusting items

13 (836) (478}
{4,067) (45}
{4,903) {523)

Note 40 Business combination
Pnor year business combination

On 1 October 2011, the Group acquired 77 6% of Transcanal S R L. (‘Transcanal’) The consideration of US$557 thousand has been transterred n
cash to the previous shareholder of the 77 6% stake The farr value of assets acquired amounted to US$803 thousand and hiabitties assumed to
US$158 thousand Based on the dafinitely determined nital accounting for the acquisition of Transcanal, the acquisition resulted in a goodwill of

US$56 thousand

Had this business combination been effected at 1 January 2011, the revenue of the Group would have been US$588 thousand higher, and the

profit for the year would have been US$75 thousand highar

Nots 41 Events after tha reporting period

No matenal adjusting or non-adjusting events have occurred subsequent to tha year end other than the proposed dmdend disclosed in note 17
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Asat Asnt
US$000 Nyuteg 31212 a2
Fixed assets
Non-current investments
Subsichary undertakings 2 147,496 147 496
Total fixed assets 147 496 147 496
Current assets
Debtors - amounts faling due withun one year
Amecunts due from subsidianes 792,180 59G,520
Deferred tax assets 3 - 227
Prepayments and other cuent assets 2,055 1651
Other taxes recoverable and prepad 2 -
Cash at bank and n hand T00 459
Total current assets 794,937 592 857
Craditors - amounts fafing due within one year
Trade and other creditors 5 332 442
Accruals and deferred mcome & 1,013 503
Income taxss payabte . 1,112 1308
Total creditors 2,457 2253
Net assets 039,976 738,100
Reprasented by
Caprtal and reserves
Share capital 4 121,628 121628
Share premium 4 185,112 185,112
Treasury share reserve 4 [77,260) (77 260
Employee benefit trust reserva 4 {7,808) {9 4i6)
Retaned earnings 4+ 718,204 518038
Total capstal and reserves 1 939,976 738,100

All habitties held by the Company are current in nature

The financial staterments were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2013

/L

Christopher Mawe
Chief Financial Officer

Kostyantin Zhevago
Chuef Executive Officer
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

Note 1. Parent company accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Parent Cormpany financial statements of Ferrexpo ple are presented as required by the Compantes Act 2006 and were approved for Issue on
12 March 2013 The financial statements are prepared under the historical cast convention and are prepared in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards No profit and loss account 1s presented by the Company as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The
Company has taken advantage of the exemption granted by FRS 1 Cash flow staternents {rensed), whereby it 1s not required to publish s own
cash flow statement

The Company 1s exempt from the disclosure requirements of FRS 29 Ainancral nstruments, under its section 2D {a) as the entity 1S included in
publicly avallable consolidated financial statements, which include disclosures that comply with FRS 29/IFRS 7 Disclosures and narratives have
not included information required by that standard, as the Group's consolidated financial statements, in which the Company s included, prowide
equnvalent disclosures for the Group under IFRS 7 ‘Financial nstruments Disclosures’

Investments
Equity Investments in subsidianes are carried at cost less any provision for impairments

Deferred income tax

Deferrad income tax is recognised in respect of all iming differences that have ongnated but not reversed at the reporting date where transactions

or events have occurred at that date that will result inan obiigation to pay more, or a nght to pay less or to receve more, tax, with the following

excephions

¢ provision Is made for deferred tax that would anse on remittance of the retaned earnings of overseas subsidianes, associates and jont ventures
only to the extent that, at the reporting date, dwvidends have been accrued as recewvable, and

+ daferred tax assets are recagnised only to the extent that the Directors consider that it 1s more kely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying tming differences ¢an be deducted Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pencds in which tming differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date

Foreign currencies

The Company's functional currency and presentation currency 1s US Dollars Transactions in foreign curencies are initially racorded in the
functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate nuling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilites dencrminated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date Non-monetary iterns that are measured In terms
of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the inihal transactions Non-monetary items
measured at far value In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the far value was determined

Financial instruments
Denvative financial instruments
The Company does not hold any denvative financial Instrurments

Non-denvative financial instruments

Non-dervative financial Instruments compnse invastmants in squity and debt secunties (promissory notes), frade and other recavables, cash and
cash equivalents, loans and borrowings and trade and other payables Non-denvative financial instruments are recognised at far value (being the
fair value of the constderation given or received) plus any directly attnbutable transaction costs

Al regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date 1@ the date that the Group commits to purchase

or sell the asset Regular way purchases or sales are those that require delvery of assets within the penod generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace

The Company has not designated any financial asset as financial assets at far value through profit or loss

Cther
Other non-denvative financial Instruments are measured at amortsed cost using the effective interest method less any mpairment losses
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Note 1 Parent company accounting policies continued

Loans and recevables

Loans and recervables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market, do not
qualfy as frading assets and have not been designated as either far value through profit or loss or avallable-for-sale Such assets are camed
at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the tme value of money 1s significant Gains and losses are recognised in iIncome when
the loans and recevablas are derecognised or mpaired, as well as through the amortisation process

Impairmant of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whather a financial assst or a group of financial assets is impared Investments in subsidianes
undertakings are held at cost The Company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in crcumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an nvestrent may not be recoverable K any such indication of mparment exists, the Company makes an estimate of
its recoverable amount (valuation) Whare the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its recoverable amount, the investment is considered
impatred and 1s written down to its recoverable amount

Assets camed at amortised cost

If there 1s objective evidence that an iImpairment loss on loans and recevables carmed at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
IS measured as the difference between the asset's carying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future crecit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s onginal effective nterest rate (e the effective iInterest rate computed at imtial
recognition) The carying amount of the asset 1s reduced, with the amount of the loss recognised in administration costs #f, in a subsequent
penod, the amount of the impaimment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurmng after the mparment was
racognised, the previously recognised imparment loss 1s reversed Any subsequent reversal of an impairmeant loss 1s recogrised in the profit and
loss account, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amorbised cost at the reversal date

Derecognition of financial assets and labilties

Afinancial asset or labiity is generally derecognised when the contract that gives nse {0 1t 1s settled, sold, cancelled or expires Where an existng
financial kability 1 replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing hability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification 1s treated as a derecognition of the onginal latulity and the recogniion of a new hability, such that the
difference in the respective carnying amounts together with any casts or fees incurred are recognised in profit or loss

Share-based payments

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the far value at the grant date and 1s recogrised as an
expense over the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitied to the award Farr value is
determined by reference to the quoted closing share pnce on the grant date

In valuing equity-settied transactons, no account 1S taken of any vesting condrions, except for market conditions No expense 1s recogrised for
awards that do not ultmately vest

At each reporting date before vesting, the cumulatve expense 1s calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting penced has expired and
management’s best astimate of the actievement or ctherwise of non-market conditions and of the number of equity iInstrurnents that will ulimately
vest The movement in cumulative expense since the previous reporting date 18 recogrused i the income staterment, with a corresponding entry

n equity

All costs related to the share-based payments of the Group are recorded in Ferrexpo plc Note 39 provides further information on the valuation
related to the share-based payments and the costs recorded

Employae benefit trust resarve

Ferrexpo plc shares held by the Company are classified in capital and reserves, as ‘employes benefit trust reserves’ and recognised at cost
Consideration received for the sale of such shares Is also recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sale and the
onginal cost taken to revenue reserves No gain or 10ss 1S recognised on the purchase, sale 1ssue or cancellation of equity shares
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As at Asal
USS000 311212 arezn
Non-current investments 147,496 147 496
The balance above relates to the Company's investrment in Ferrexpoe AG which 1s a 100% owned subsidary based on Switzerland
Note 3 Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets at 31 December 2012 relate to the following
Asnt Asal
US$000 1z12 31en
Deferred tax assets
Timing difference on IPO costs - 227
Total deferred tax assets - 227
Note 4 Capital and reserves
Emplcyes
Issued Treasury beneht rust Retained Total
USSo00 capilal  Shaiy premm sham resenve rasang aarmings Aty
At 1 January 2011 121,628 185,112 (77,260} {10,172 63,545 282,853
Profit for the pencd - - - - 493154 493,154
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 493,154 493,154
Equity dmdends pard to shareholders - - - - (38,663 {38,663
Shara-based payments - - - 756 - 756
At 31 December 2011 121,628 185,112 {77,260) 9,416) 518,036 738,100
Profit for the penod - - - - 238928 238928
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 238.928 238,928
Equity dvidends paid to sharehoiders - - - - (38,660) (38 660)
Share-based payments - - - 1,608 - 1608
At 31 December 2012 121,628 185,112  (77,260) (7,808) 718,304 939,976
Note 5 Trade and other creditors
Trade and other creditors at 31 December 2012 relate to the following
Agnt As at
UsS3000 1212 311211
Trade and other creditors
Falling due within cne year 332 442
Total trade and other creditors 332 442
Note 6 Accrued liabilities and deferred income
Accrued labiites and deferred income at 31 Dacember 2012 relate to the following
Asat As at
UsSt000 31212 J11zan
Agccrued labiities and deferred iIncome
Falling due within one year 1,013 503
Total accrued habilities and deferred income 1,013 503
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Note 7 Related party disclosures
There are no related party transactions and balances to be disclosed All transactions and balances are with subsidianes, which are wholly-owned

Note 8 Auditor remuneration
The audtt fee in respect of the parent company was US$16 thousand (2011 US$16 thousand)

Note 9 Events after the reporting period

No matenal adjusting or non-adjusting events have occurred subsequent to the year end cther than the proposed dividend disclosed in note 17
fo the consolidated financial staternents
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Act

AGM
Articles

Audit Committee

Belanovo or Belanovskoye

Benchmark Price

Beneficiation Process

BIP

Board
bt

Capesize

Capital Employed
CFR

C1Costs

CIF

Cis
Company
CPI

CRU

CSR
CSR Committee
DAP
DFS

Directors
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The UK Comorate Governance Code published in 2010

The Companies Act 2006

The Annual General Meeting of the Company

Articles of Association of the Company

The Audit Committee: of the Company's Board

Aniron ore deposit located mmediately to the north of Yanstovo

Intemational seaborme traded won one pncing mechantsm understood to be offered to the market by major iron
ore producers under long-term contracts

A number of processes whereby the mineral 1s extracted from the crude ore (see page 3)

Business Improvement Programme, a programme of projects to increase producton output and efficiency
at FPM

The Board of Directors of the Company

Bilhon tonnes

Capesize vessels are typically above 150,000 tonnes deadweight Ships in this class include ol tankers,
supertankers and bulk carriers transporting coal, ore, and other commodity raw matenals Standard capesize
vessals are abls to transit through Suez Canal

The aggregate of equity atinbutable to sharehclders, non-controling interests and borrowings

Delivery including cost and freight

Represent the cash costs of production of iron pellets from own cre, dvided by production volume from own ore,
and excludes non-cash costs such as depreciation, pension costs and inventory movements, costs of purchased

ore, concentrate and production cost of gravel

Delvery including cost, insurance and freight

The Commonwealth of Independent States

Ferrexpo plc, a public company incorporated in Engtand and Wales with imited liabilty
Consumer Prca Index

The CRU Group prowides market analysis and consulting adwvice in the global mining industry
(see www crugroup com)

Comorate Safety and Social Responsibility

The Corperate Safety and Social Responsibility Commitiee of the Board of the Company
Celvery at place

Detalled feasility study

The Directors of the Company
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Dragline Excavators

EBITDA

EBT

EPS

Executive Commmuttee
Executive Directors
FBM

Fe

Ferrexpo

Ferrexpo AG Group
Fevamotinco S.arl.

First-DDSG

FOB

FPM

FRMC

FTSE 250

FYM

Group

Growth Markets

HSE

IFRS
IPO
Iron ore concentrate

Iron ore sinter fines

136

Heavy machinery used to excavate matenal A dragine consists of a large bucket which (s suspended from
a boom

The Group calculates EBITDA as profit from continuing operations before tax and finance plus depreciation and
amortisation and non-recurnng exceptonal tems included n other ncome and other expenses, share-based
payment expenses and the net of gains and losses from disposal of Investments and property, plant and
equpment

Employes Benefit Trust

Eamings per share

The Executve Committes of management appointed by the Company's Board

The Executve Directers of the Company

Ferrexpo Belanovo Mining, also known as BGOK, a company ncorporated under the laws of Ukraine

Iron

Ferrexpo plc and its subsicianes

Ferrexpo AG and s subsidianes including FPM

A company incorporated with imited lliability in Luxernbourg

First-DDSG Logistics Holding GmbH (formerty Helogistics Holding GrbH) and its subsidianes, an inland waterway
transport group operating on the Danube/Rhine corndor

Delivered free on board, which means that the seller’s obligation to deliver has been fulfiled when the goods have
passed over the ship's rail at the named port of shipment, and all future ebligations n terms of costs and nsks of
loss or damage transfer to the buyer from that point onwards

Ferrexpo Poltava Mining, also known as Ferrexpo Poltava GOK Corporation or PGOK, a company incorporated
under the laws of Ukraine

Financial Risk Management Committee, a sub-committee of the Executive Committee

Financial Tmes Stock Exchange top 250 companies

Ferrexpo Yenstovo Mining, also known as YGOK, a company incorporated under the laws of Ukraine
The Company and its subsidiangs

These are predominantly n Asia and have the potential 1o deliver new and significant sales volumes to the Group
Health, safety and environment

Intemnational Accounting Standards

Intemational Ascounting Standards Board

Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU

Irnhial publc offenng

Product of the beneficiation process with ennchad won content

Fine iron ore screened to -6 3mm




Iron ore pellats

JORC
K22

KPI

LIBOR

LLC

LTIFR

Lmp

m3

Majonty Shareholder
mm

mt

mtpa

Natural Markets

Nominattons Committee
Non-executive Directors
NOPAT

OHSAS 18001

Ordinary Shares

Ore

Panamax

PPI

Probable Reserves

Proved Reserves
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Balled and fired agglormerate of rron ore concentrate, whose physical properties are wel surted for transportation

1o and reduchon within a blast furnace

Australasian Joint Ore Reserves Committee -~ the internationally accepted code for ore classification
GPL ore has been classifisd as aither K22 or K23 quakty, of which K22 ora 1 of righer quality (nicher)
Key Parformance Indicator

Thousand tonnes

The Londen Inter Bank Offered Rate

Limited Liability Compary

Lost-Time Injury Frequency Rate

LLong-Term Incentive Plan

Cubic metre

Fevamotinico Sarl, The Minco Trust and Kostyantin Zhevago (togethen

Millimetre

Milion tonnes

Millon tonnes per annum

These include Turkey, the Middle East and Western Europe and are those markets where Ferrexpo has
a competitive advantage over mare distant producers, but where market share remains relatvely low

The Nominations Committes of the Company's Board

Non-executive Directors of the Company

Net operating profit after tax

International safsty standard '‘Occupational Health & Safety Management Systern Specification’

Qrdinary Shares of 10 pence each in the Company

A mineral or mineral aggregate containing precious or usefu! minerals in such quantities, grade and chemtcal

combination as to make extraction economic

Modarn panamax ships typically carry a weight of between 65,000 to 90,000 tonnes of cargo and can transit

both Panama and Suez canals

Ukrawruan producer pnce index

Those measured and/or indicated mineral resources which are not yet ‘proved’, but of which detaded technical
and economic studies have dernonstrated that extracton can be justified at the trme of determination and under

spectfic economic conditions

Measurad mineral resources of which detalled technical and economic studies have demoenstrated that extraction

can be justified at the time of determination and under specific economic condibons
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Glossary continued

Rail car

Relationship Agreement

Remuneration Committee

Researves

Ussi

Sinter

Spot price
Sterling/t
STIP

Talings

Tolling

Ton

tonneort
Treasury Shares
TSF

Tradrhonal Markets

TSR

Underlying Earnings

UAH

Ukr SEPRO

138

Railway wagon used for the transport of ron ore concentrate or pellets

The relationship agreement entered into among Fevamotinico S a rl, Kostyantin Zhevago, The Minco Trust and
the Company

The Remuneration Committee of the Company’s Board

Those parts of mineral resources for which sufficient information 1s avalable to enable detaled or conceptual mine
planning and for which such planning has been undertaken Reserves are classified as either proved or probable

US Dollars per tonne

A porous aggregate charged directly to the blast furnace which 1s normallty produced by finng fine won ore and/or
Iron ore concentrate, other binding matenals, and coke breeze as the heat source

The current price of a product for immediate delivery

Pound Stering, the currency of the United Kingdom

Short-Term Incentrve Plan

The waste matenal produced from core after economically recoverable metals or minerals have been extractad
Changes in metal prices and improvements in technology can sometimes make the talings economic to process

at alater date

The process by which a customer supplies concentrate to a smelter and the smetter invoices the custormer
the smelting charge, and possibly a refining charge, and then returns the metal to the customer

AUS short ton, equal to 09072 metnc tonnes

Metnc tonng

A company's own Isslied shares that it has purchased but not cancelted
Talings storage facility

These lie within Central and Eastern Europe and include steel plants that were designed to use Ferrexpo pellets
Ferrexpo has besen supplying some of these customers for more than 20 years Ferrexpo has well-established
logistics routes and infrastructure to these markets by both nver barge and ral These markets include Austna,
Czech Republic, Hungary and Slovakia

Total shareholder retum The total return earned on a share over a period of ime, measured as the dvidend per
share plus capital gan, dvided by inibal share pnce

An altsmative measure of the underlying financial performance of the Group s operations  Underlying eamings is
presented as profit attnbutable to equity shareholders before adjusted tems Adjusted items are those items of
financial performance that the Group believes should be separately disclosed on the face of the income statement
to assist in the understanding of the undertying financial performance achieved by the Group Adjusted items that
relate to the operating performance of the Group include impaiment charges and reversals and other exceptional
iterns Non-operating adjusting tems include profits and losses of investments and businesses as well as IPO
costs and nen-operating foreign exchange gains and losses

Ukrainian Hryvnia, the currency of Ukraine

The quality certification system in Ukraine, regulated by law to ensure conformity with safaty and
environmental standards
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VAT Value Added Tax

Value-in-use The mplied value of a matenal to an end user relative to other options, e g evaluating, In financial terms,
the productivity in the steel making process of a particular quality of iron ore pellets versus the productmty
of atternatrve qualties of iron ore peflets

WAFV Weighted average far value

WMS Wet magnetc separation

Yenstovo or Yenistovskoye The deposit being developed by FYM
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